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ST JAMES’S PLACE
WEALTH MANAGEMENT

St James's Place plc s the FTSE 250 histed parent company of the St James’s Place Wealth
Management Group, one of the UK’s leading wealth management orgamsations The St James's

Place Wealth Management Group offers a wide range of high quality wealth management services,

specialising in the provision of face-to-face wealth management advice to individuals, businesses

and trustees, and the management of client funds

The Group provides advice through its representatives —the St James’s Place Partnership —

supporting their advice with a wide range of products and services, which are manufactured by the

Group or sourced from other ‘best of breed’ providers across the market

The St James’s Place Wealth Management Group manages over £34 billion of funds on behalf of

chents, supported by the 1,788 members of the St James’s Place Partnership and 1n total, in excess

of 2,000 qualified professtonals

The strength of our relatlonshlp with clients and the quahty of the advice and service that we offer

was publically endorsed during the last twelve months, when St James’s Place won several

industry awards that were voted for by clients, members of the public and fellow industry peers
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Financial Highlights

Funds under management +22%

2012: £34.8 billion
2011 £28 5 hlhon

Net inflow of funds under management +4%

2012: £3.35 bilhon
2011 £3 21 lnlhon

Gross inflow of funds under management +8%

2012: £5.6 billion
2011 £5 2 ballien

Partnership numbers +8%

2012: 1,788
2011 1,649

IFRS profit before shareholder tax +23%

2012: £134.6 million
2011 £109 7 mullhion

EEV new business profit +13%

2012: £276.8 million
2011 £246 0 millon

EEV operating proﬁt 2%

2012: £365.9 million
2011 £371 5 mulhon

Cash result +37%

2012: £91.7 million
2011 £67 0 rullon

Visit us online

Our website and 1Pad app contains a full investor
relation section with news, reports, webcasts,
financial calendar and share price information
www §)p co uk click on Investor Relations

Annual Re port and Accounts 2012

Dividend (pence per slmrc)

Increase of
33%
2017 I

2011 Y

IFRS Net Assets per Share (pence)

Increase of
9%
2012

2011 ' § oo

EEV Net Asscts per Share (pcncc)

Increase of

20%
2012 I TYY ()

2011 v
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Chairman’s Statement

Another Strong Year
espite the difficult ceonomic environment we faced 1n
2012, 5t James’s Place has had another strong year
! Davud and Andrew cover the performance n detail in their
reports, but it 1s particularly pleasing to achieve record new
business and funds undcr management in this dhfficult
environment This clearly demonstrates the strength and
resiltence of the 5t James’s Place business model

A parucular highlight 1s the increasing emergence ol cash
which has enabled the Board to grow the dividund in hine
with the 33% expectation we set last July at the nme of our
Interim announcement

Corporate Governance

We strive to adopt the best practice in relation to Corporate
Governance thmughout the Group and 1n relation 1o the
disclosures

Charles Gregson Sharcholders wall see 1in the Report and Accounts that the

Charrman usual format of the Remuneration Report has changed this
year as the Board has sought to be an carly adopter ol the
Government’s draft lcglslatlon relating to remuneration
reporting Where practical we have implemented a year
carh the various changes set out 1n the draft legislation,
although as the old legislation has yet to be repealed, the
remuneration report 15 considerably longer than in recent
years Howceser, we hope that sharcholders will appreciate
the clarity of the rey1sed format and the additional
disclosures we have made

We have also adopted carly the changes recommended
by the Financial Reporting Councid relaung to Audit
Commuttce disclosures, more details of which are set
out on page 58

2 St James's Place ple RBeguistered Nao Q3183415




Board Composition

Building on the changes made 1n 2011, we were delighted
to welcome Patience Wheatcrolt to the Board in April

Her substantial business and medha experience has further
strengthened the wide range of shills on the Board

During 2013 we plan to continue our policy of gr‘adualiv
refreshing the Board by the appointment of additional
Non-exccutine Dhrectors, provided that suitable candidates
can be 1dentthied l)y the Nomination Commuttec

The Board and the Nomunation Commuttcc keop succession
planning under regular review, with a view to ensuring that
senior managers are being doveloped appropriately and we
have the rlghl skills around the table to drive forward the
continued success of the Group

Board Effectiveness Review

In 2012 we once again appointed Independent Audit to
facilitate an cvaluation of the effectiveness of the Board and
its Committees, largely to review whether the vanous
changes made 1n 2011 (following their last revicw) had
achteved the objective of ensuring effectinve discussions
around the Board table The findings of Independent Audit
were positne and further detail on the review process and
ﬁn(lmgs can be found on page 52

Annual Report and Accounts 2012

The Future

Looking forward, having established the Group as a
well-respected and trusted pros uler of high quality advice
and wealth management services in recent years, we now
need to build on that success in the yearsahead Critical to
that 1s meeting our customer expectations, the continued
deyclopment and grow th of the Partnership and the Group's
investment proposition We must remain focused on our
corc business principles, and the values and culture that
have stood the Group 1n such good stead thus far

llook forward to working with the Board in achieving
these aspirations

Ol S

Charles Gregson
Chairman

27 February 2013
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Chief Executive’s Statement

Dav1d Bellamy
Chief Frecutne

4 St James's Place ple
1 p

012 will be remembered tor many diffurent reasons,

from the Diamond fubilec to the Olympics and
Parah mpics and other sporting achicvements, not to
mention the amount of rain that fell

From an investment perspecting, low growth, low interest
rates and modest, but persistent inflation once again
dominated the major economies of the Eurezone and North
America, and this pattern may well be repeated 1n 2013
Growth in the emerging and developing cconomies proved
stronger, another trend that looks likely to continue in the
coming ycar

[t was against this backdrop that I am pleased to report
another year of strong grow th further demonstrating the
Group’s continued resilicnce despite the market conditions

We have continued to attract new imestments, grow

our funds undcr managument, inerease the sizc of the
Partnership and their productinity, which in turnas driving
strong growth in profits and dividends to sharcholdcrs

New Business and Funds Under Management

The first six months of the vear saw modest grow thin new
business whilst the second half of the vear saw a sigmficant
pick up 10 activaty, as imvestor confidence returned
Culmmatmg in new business grow th in the final quarter,
on an annual premium equisalent basis ('APE’) of 46%,
resulting 1n the full year total APE being up 16%

New single imestment and pension busmess at £5 88 illion
was 13% highcr than 2011 and 1t 1s particularly pleasing to
note that we continue to mamntain strong retention of
existing chent funds which, combined with the new
imestments, resulted in a net mflow of £3 35 billion

Total funds under management at 31 December 2012, at
£34 8 billion, were 22% higher than the start of the year

Registered No 03183415




Finanaal Performance

The Chief Financial Officcr’s Report and Finanenal Review
which can be found on pages 12 to 29, providesa
comprehensie presentation of the financial results and
detail of the. Group'’s performance for the year

On an [FRS (Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards)
basis, profit before sharcholder tax increased to £134 6

mullion (2011 £109 7 million)

European Embedded Value (‘EEV’) operating profits wre
£365 9 million (2011 £371 5 nullion) reflecting good growth
in new business and the performance of our funds under
management, but without the benefit of the £38 1 million
exceptionally strong expericnce variances that we saw 1n 2011

Dividend

We hayve said before that a growing cash result 15 a trend that
15 expected to continue with the increasing maturny of
funds under management

Shareholders have seen a 33% dinidend rise in each of the
last two years and, given our on going confidence in the
profile of the future cash emergence, we announced at the
time of our 2011 full year results that shareholders could
expect a similarly significant increase 1n the 2012 dividend

I am therefore pleased to confirm the cash result was up
37% to L91 7 millton and, 1n line with this statement, we
are pleased to confirm the final dnidend of 6 39 pence per
share, up 33% as expected Consequently the full year

dividend 15 10 64p also up 33% on 2011

Furthermore, gien our on going confdence in the profile of
the cash emergence going forward, shareholders can expecta
similarly significant increase in the 2013 dinidend  Beyond that
we fully intend to maintain our progressiv e dividend policy in
line with the underhing performance of the business

The final dividend for 2012, subject to approval of
shareholders at our AGM, will be pad on 24 May to
sharcholders on the register at the close of business on

12 April and as with last vear, a Dividend Reinvestment Plan
{'DRP") continues to be available for shareholders

Annual Report and Accounts 20H2
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Chents

Access to some of the best fund managers in the world,
dddinvering above average investment returns, together with
trusted advice and relable service are the essential elements
ol what we have to offer chients

We measure our performance in these areas by traclung the
retentton rates of our funds under management and the
amount of new 1mestments and referrals we recene from
cxisting chents [n addition, we commusston regular surveys
of our chents and scek feedback from them via questionnaires
sent with our annual wealth accounts

All of these mitiatiy es provide us with a rich source of
regular feedback and tell us that our proposition 15 valued
h} our clients

Investment Management
One of the core clements of our busincss strategy 1s the
distinctrne way that we manage our chients” wealth

Despite the difficult economic emvironment, stock markets
generally produced a sohid year of grow th, albert after a
short correction 1n the summer as concerns over a Greek
exit from the Eurozone resurfaced and confidence in Span’s
abality to rcinance 1ts banking svstem wavered Oser the
year as a whole, the FTSE 100 index returned around 6% 1n
capital grow th, 10% with disidends reimested  Slightly
higher growth was achieved in the wider All Share index
and in some overseas equity markets

Similarly, other asset classes ganed ground 1n 2012 with
corporate bonds proving to be one of the best performing
asset classes Bv contrast, the UK commercial property
market remained relamnely flat with income yields being
partally offset by a weakening in capital values

£3.35bn

Funds Under Management

£34.8bn

Cash Result

+37%

Full Year Dividend

+33%




Chiet Executive’s Statement conmed

UK interest rates remain at historic low s and thus continuing
benign interest rate environment has a beneficial effect on
UK wcalth management as clients scek to explore
opportumties for higher returns than available in bank

deposit funds

Against this background, the vagarics and unpredictabihity
of markets serve as a constant reminder to chents of the
nced tor adviec and the importance of a broad diversification
across asset classes, geographies and investment
management styles In this respect, the investment
portfolios, launched last vear, have proven to be 3 useful
starting point for discussions between our Partners and
their chients about how they can create the right strategy

to mituigate risk and achies e financial security

Our clients now have access to over 30 high quahty
imestment managers, chosen from across the world, 1o
manage their funds and we are confident that the strength
and breadth of our fund offering provides an excellent
platform upon which to continue to grow our funds under
management 1n the coming years

The St James’s Place Partnership

We believe that we arc uniquely positioncd 1n the UK wealth
management market because we have chosen to promote our
services exclusively through our dedicatcd adviser team, the
St James’s Place Partnership Increasing the number of
Partners and prov ihing them with the tools and support to
delner high quality outcomes for clients are key drivers to our
achieving our long-term business grow th objectines

It 1s thercfore very pleasing to report continued growth in
the size of the Partnership this year, up §% to 1,788 and the
number of diploma qualified advisers and support staff now
excewds 2,000 All members of the Partnership achieved the
higher professional qualfication standards required by the
Financial Services Authority under the Retail Distribution
Revicw which came into effect on 31 December 2012

Whilst we are confident that we can continue to attract
estabhished high quality advisers, February 2012 saw the
re-launch of our Academy programme We are extremely
pleased with the quality of the indniduals that we have been
able 10 attract so far We have just completed the imitial
training of cur third cohort, bringing the total within the
programme to 54 In addition we ran a paral]cl programme
for the second generation of exisuing Partners, the sons and
daughters of existing Partners who aspire to join the
husiness in due course We anticipate that some of the
Academy Partners will begin to graduate into the
Partnership during the latter part of this year

St James s Place plc

Partners and Employeces

I he strength and continued grow th of the business 15 due in
no small part to the hard work and dedication of our
Partners, their staff and all of our employees and
admimistration support teams

On behalf of the Board and shareholders [ thank everyone
connected with St Jamds's Place for their contribution to
these results and for their continued enthusiasm, dedication
and comnutment

The St James’s Place Foundation

The St James’s Place Foundation has always beun an
important part of the Group’s culture and we were delighted
to celebrate the 20th annnersary of the Foundation in 2012
by raising the record sum of £5 millivn to hedp the good
causes that the Foundauon supports This was very much a
collective effort by the whole SJP communty, including
employees, Partners, suppliers and others connected to SJP
Iwould like to thank all of you for helping to raise such an
rmpressive sum, which s particularly importantin a vear
when surieys indicate that giving 1o charitics has decreased
by around 20% compared to 2011 Further details of cur
CSR activities are sct out on pages 34 to 43

Outlook

Whilst we recognisc that there 15 still econemic
uncertainty, everything we understand about our
markctplace tells us that there has nover been a greater need
for high quality advice dehvered by a trusted adsiser, backed
by a well respected company The scale and strength of the
Company’s adviser led approach to wealth management,
twinned witha proven imvestment manag(.mcnt proposition,
leaves 5t James's Place both uniquely and well positioned to
beneht from the long-term demographic and market
opportumities in wealth management

We have good momentum across all aspects of the business
andarc therefore confident i our ability to continue our
grow than line with our medium term objectnes in 2013
and beyond

ke,

David Bellamy
Chief Executne
27 February 2013

Registered No 03183415
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Our Business Model and Strategy

Our Busimess Model — What do we do?

St James’s Place speciahises 1n providing face-to-tace
advice to clients through our dedicated adsisers, the

St James’s Place Partnorship, and in managing chent wealth

with our distinetis ¢ Investment Management Approach

Our business 1s centred on the UK, attracting clients from the
mass aflluent and, increasingly, the high net worth markets
Our ads1sers monntor and revien chents’ financal necds over
time, adapting advice wherc necessary in arder to ensure that
rccommendations remain appropriate. By focusing on getting
this right, we rctain both the client relanonship and the funds
under management for the long-term

Our relationship-based approach 1s greatly valued by our
clients, no morc so than in the current peried of finanaal
uncertamty There s an mcreasing demand for trusted
advice from expericnced advisers backed by a strang
organisation and brand  Chents also 1alue our unique
Imestment managcmcnt approaCh

The enduring nature of the rclationships we have both wath
Partners and with chients 1s particularly important  These
relationships endure because they are founded on mutual
respect and trust, within our community we emphasise
the importance of bullding and maintaiming long-term
relationships

Our Business Strategy — Where are we going?
St James’s Place has always pursued a simple but effectne
strategy for grow th, based on
— Devclopment of the Partnership through recruitment of
new advisers and productivity improvements
— Increased activaty in the Partnership results in the
attracuion of new clients and new funds
— Meeung {and where possible exceeding) the expectations
of our chents
— Positine long-term relattonships with chients ensure the
retention of funds for the long-term

Business Growth

Meeting Clicnt Expectations

Investment Proposition Partnership Growth

St [ames’s Place ple

— Delnenimg on our im estment proposition
— Positne performancc of our Investment Managcmcnt
Approach delivers growth 1o funds managed and helps
ensure positive chent rclattonships

Measured 1n terms of funds under management, the
business has doubled over the last five years as will as 1n the
five years preceding that, a rate of growth which we aspire
to repeat 1in the next five years, subject of course to the
vagarics of the market We belies¢ that the strength of
relatonship betw een our Partners and our clients, together
with our approach to inestment management, leaves us
uniquely positroned to continue to succecd 1n the wealth
management market

The $t James’s Place Partnership

Members of the St James's Place Partnership play the
lcading role in delivering our wealth management service
The Partners, so called because of the way they work in
partnership with their clients, have, on average, over

17 vars’ experience and include some of the most
experienced and able profcssionals working in wealth
management today

Whlst all of our Partners are experienced ads isers, some
have expertise 1n speailic and highly technical areas If an
individual’s circumstances require addiional experuse,
Partners will consult with, and 1f necessary introduce, a
specialist cnlleague Partners often work alongside other
professional advisers, providing a complementary service
and a fresh perspectine

We have chosen to promote our services xclusively through
the Partnership Ths reflects the confidence we have 1n our
Partner’s abihty to provide clients with sound financial
advice and to build and maintain long-term W orkmg
relationships with them

Relationships are important  Being able to call upon the
services of an adviser who understands an indiv1dual s
personal circumstances enables them to benefit from a
source of trusted advice as their financial needs evolve over
the vears

We are committed to supporting our Partners’ on going
professional development to ensure that they remain
appropriately qualified and techmically able As a result, we
are happs to guarantec the suitability of the adyice that they
gne when recommending any of the wealth management
products and services pros ided by companies in the

5t James’s Place Wealth Management Group

Reprstered No 03183415




Our Approach to Investment Management

Investment Committee ’

Input/Advice from Stamlord Associates

Manages the Ma nagers

4

Appoint the

A4

Set perlormance
ohjectives

Fund Managers

The Investment Management Approach
At the heart of the proposition to our clients 15 our
Imsestment management approach

Successful investment 1s critical to future financial well-
being, but it 15 a ficld which presents a umque problem
future performance 1s unpredictable As a result, when
clients choose an investment manager, no matter how
successtul, they can never be sure that they have made the
right choee, and evenaf they have, 1t may not continue to be
the right choice over the years to come

We believe that our approach to investment management
addresscs these challenges We do not place chents” money
in the hands ol our own team of investment managers
indeed, we have nonvestment managers of our own
Instead, we are free to choose any 1y estment manager from
any fund management firm anywhere in the world

The responsibility of sclecting the range of funds and fund
managers that are made available to St James’s Place chents
at any one time falls upon the St James’s Place Investment
Comnuttee, advised by the respected independent
investment rescarch consultancy, Stamford Associates

Stamford Associates share their extensne rescarch of the
global investment markets with a small number of
companies We are parucularly proud to have them on our
team, as St James’s Place 1s the onlv company they work
with that provides wealth management advice 1o private
individuals or Trustees

The Commuittee meets regularly to review performance and
consider detailed reports from cach investment manager If
a change 1n the marketplace calls for the addition of another
manager, the Committee will select one Equally, if the
Commuttee loses confidence 1 the ability of an existing
manager it will replace them

We rematn committed to monitoring and reviewing all of
our fund managers to ensure we generate the opumum
return for our clients’ imvestment and cxpect to make

furthcr new appontments, of both managers and mandates,
n 2013

Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Risk management

Decisions: Change firm?
Change manager? No change?

and strategy

Long-Term Chent Relationships

Everything we do i targeted at building and maintaining
long-term relationships with clients this s the core of our
business model

We achieve this primanly through the actiity of the

St James's Place Partnership and thar ability to provide an
ndnduahised scryvice to each of our chients Our Partners
recognise that no onc client’s objectin es or circumstances are
the same as another and so the advice must be taillored The
rclationship between Partner and client s founded on mutual
respect and trust, and the emphasis 1s on building and
maintamning 3 long-term relationship Qur high standards are
maintained and remnforced by the high expectations that
members of the Partnership have of cach other Asa result,
clients choose to continuc the working rclationship with thar
Partner indcfimtely, appreciating a source of trusted advicc as
therr financial needs evalve over the years

The success of our approach can be scen from the fact that
over 90% of new 1mestments 1s cstimated to come from
existing clients or from referrals and introductions from
them, and once imested clients tend to stay imested Weare
particularly pleased with the consistent, vear on year, low
rate of surrender of funds (typically less than 5%) The
strength of these relationships 1s also underscorcd through
our annual chent survey, conducted by Ledbury Research,
where we consistently cutperform the market place on all
core satisfaction metrics

Busincys Review

Corporate Governance
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Key Performance Indicators

Funds

Qur objectives

Progress durmg 2012

Key performance indicators

To increase. funds under management
through a combination of growth in new
funds (new business), positis e investment
returns {above market median returnsy and
market leading retention rates quxlsllng
funds under manageme nt (FUM)

New Business

Our objectives

During 2012, FUM increasedto £34 8
llhon representing grow th of 22% over
the yearas a result of £5 6 billon of gross
milows (8% mncreasc) and £3 3lhon
net inflows (4% increasc), aganst the
backdrop of recovoring markets (a 6%
rise in FTSE 10011 2012)

Progress durmg 2012

Funds under Management
(£’Bithon)

2012 I T -+ 22+

2011 28 5 +6%
2000 7 3707 +26%
2009 214 +31%
2008! 16 3 -10%

I he profitability on all measurcs of the Group
1s ulumatcdy drven by the income we earn
from FUM The I UM have exhibrted
Compouml annual grow th of 19% owr the
last 1en years and 27% sincu ineeption

Key pcrformancc indicators

Toachieve year on year growth in new
busincss ahead of our compeutors witha
medum to longer torm objectise of annual
growthol 151620% [his 1s achierved
thmugh a combination of productivity

and grown thin the |’artncrsh1p

Financial

QOur objectives

During 2012, the growth innew
busingss, as measured on the Annual
Premium Equivalent (APL) basis (heing
ncw regular promiums plus one-tenth of
single premuems and umt trust sales)
was 16% The number of Partners
increascd by 8% and APL per Partner
also increased by 8% to £432 5k

(2011 401 2k)

Progress durmg 2012

Growth 1n New Business (APE)
(£'Mullion)

2012 [ TEX + 167,

2011, 5423 +10%
2010 _ 581 8,+32%
20097 440 B)+5%

20087 419 0,-2%

In 2012, the grow thin new business was 16%
resulung in compound annual growth of 17%
over the last ten vears and 18% since
nception

The proportion of our own manufactured
businuss for the year was 86%

Kcy performance indicators

To achier¢ sustainable grow th in reported
I)roﬁtb on a“ habﬂh and to increase [hL IC\ CI!!
of cash emerging from our busmess as it
matures, resulting in the epportunity to
distribute increascel earnings to our
sharcholders

St Jamus's Place ple

New business contribution, IFRS profic
bufore sharcholder tax and the cash
result all increased during 2012

IFRS Profit before Sharcholder
Tax (£’Million)

2012 R +23%

2011 10971 +30%

2010" 842 +69%
2009 459-38%
2008 80 71-16%

The IFRS reporting basis 1s the statutory
requirement and requires that resenue 1s
deferred unul earned and that costs are
amorused over the peniod in which the
benefit 15 obtamed In 2012, profit before
shareholder tax on an IFRS basis
demonstrated grow thof 23%

Repistered No 03183415
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Gross Funds Flow

(£'Billion)

2012 [ XY 5
2011 52 +11%
2010 47 +34%
2009 35 +17%

2008 30 -6%

Gross tunds flow 15 the gross new imvestment
and punsions business {principally single
premiur reccrved that contributes to the
positive movement i FUM

Net Funds Flow

(£’Biihon)

2012 [ BT -+
2011 321 +10%
2010 30+30%
2009 23 +35%

2008 17 -10%

Net funds flow reprusents the combined effect
of the gross funds flow less the outtlows

Number of Partners

2012 TS +5%

2011 1,649 +6%
2010 1,552 +6%
2009 1,464 +9%
2008 1,340 +7%

The growth in the numbcr of advisers in the
St James's Place Partnership contributes to
the grow thin ness busincss yuar on year It
key, not only 10 recrun good quality advisers,
but also ta retamn those already with us
Durning 2012, the number of Partners
increased b) 8% to 1,788

New Business (APE) per Partner
(£'000)

2012 -

2011 401 2 +4%
2010 385 6 +23%
2009 314 1-3%
2008 3232 -9%

New business per Partner 15 a measure of the
productnaty of the Partnership which has
contributed to the grow th in new business
over recent years

New Busimess Contribution on an

LEY basis (£’Million)
2012 +13%

2011 246 0 +13%
2010 217 8 +40%
2009 1554 +26%

2008 123 5 -18%

New business contnbution represents the
gross margin on the European Embedded
Value (‘"EEV’) reporting basis emerging from
new business sales, less the direct expenses
As such it 1+ 2 measure of the profitability of
new business sales In 2012, the growthin
FEV new busincss contribution was 13%

Annual Reportand Accounts 2012

ELV Operating Profit before lax
(£Mullion)

2012 365.9
011 375 +11%
2010 3326 +45%
1009 2289 +12%

2008 043 .17%

The ELV reporung bass asscsses the. full
value of the long-term emergence of the
sharcholder cash returns We aim to achierve
sustained grow thn EEV operating profit In
2012 we experienced a fall of 2% compared
with the prior year but onh because of a
large positne Lxperience variance in 2011
Adjusting for this difference, we would have
expurienced grow th of 9% vear on year

Cash Result

(£’Millon)

2012 [IETW] +37%
2011 670" +39%

2010 48 3 +106%

2009 235 -2%

2008 241 -T%

The cash result (which 1s defined on page 17)
15 the combination of the cash arising from
the businuss in force at the start less the,
mstment to vaUITL bUS]nLGS m thL currcnt
period - 1n effuct a proportion of the cash
arising from the in-force business 1s
reimvested for future cash returns  The cash
result has grown by 37% n the year
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report

T Includcd as part of ths statcment 1s the usual detasled
Financial Review on pages 16 to 29 which provides useful
information to sharcholders and investors

Dcsplte the conunumg uncertain economic and stock
markct environment during the ycar, our financial
performance in 2012 was strong across all key measures,
continutng the positive trend we have seen in recent years

David, in lus CEO statement, has covered the £5 88 billion

of new business, the record funds under management and |
the strong growth in the Partnership In this statement | ‘
will comment on the other financial results

Financial Results

As sharcholders are aware we rcport our results on both an
IFRS and EEV basis as wcll as proy 1ding further detail on
the cash emerging from the. business Further analysis on

thesc measures s provided on pages 16 and 17

Andrew Croft
Chief Tinancial Officer The tables below show the five year record of the financial

results under these measures starting with the IFRS basis

| Profit before shareholder tax on an 1FRS basis
The Board regards the profit before sharcholder tax as the
best measure of the performance of the business on an ITRS
basis, 1n any particular year

As can be seen from the table below, profit on this measure
was £134 6 million, up 23% over the prior year

[n recent vcars sharcholders have seen a steady increasc in
this measure which mirrors the devcdlopment of the cash
result, commented on further below, and reflects the
maturing of the business

Profit before

shareholder tax

L Milhon

2012 134 6
2011 1097
2010 84 2
2009 459
2008 {cxcluding one offs) 645

EEV result

The three ey measures within the EEV results are the new
business profit, the operating profit and the net asset value
pe]’ Share

12 St James s Place ple Registered No 03183415




The new business profit was up 13% during the year and has
grown n each of the vears since 2008, doubling over the
puriod The grow th in new business profit reflects
mereasing new business solumes, positive business mix and
expense managoment

The operating profit 15 impacted not only by the new business
profit but also experence variances from the assumptions in
the EEV calculation Although there was once again a positne
exporience vanance In the current year, the greater positive
experience variance m the prior year meant the operating
profit for the year has marginally declined

The net asset value per share on an EEV basis at the end
2012 was 461 0 pence, some 20% higher than the start of
the year and almost double the 2008 ﬁgure

Wt asset
New business Operating value
profit profit per sharu
£ Million £ Mslhon penct
2012 276 8 3659 461 0
2011 246 0 3715 3850
2010 217 8 3326 3529
2009 155 4 228 9 2845
2008 1235 204 3 232 4
Record EEV new business profit
Growth of 124% over the period
w2 £276.8m |
om0 T 4246 0m]
o0 T L £217 8m)
09— L . _£l55 4m)
008 x123 5m,

Cash result

The Group’s cash income 1s dependent on the level of chient
funds and the level of asset values Since much of our
business does not generate net cash i the first six years, the
level of income wall also increase as a result of new business
from six years ago becoming cash generatne

The frst column in the table below shows how the cash arising
from the in-force business has grown by 18% n the year

Nearly a third of the funds under management are currently
not generating any positive cash flow Since the) are
expected to become cash generative once they reach the end
of thewr sixth year they will support strong organic grow th
in the cash arising from the 1n-force in future

Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Column 2 of the table show s the cash earmings that are
‘re-imested” in acquiring new business The cost of thts
wnsestment has remained relatn el stable over the last five years
notw ithstanding the new business grow th over the same
puriod  Sharcholders should recene a good return from this
isestment, with an expected internal rate of return of ¢ 22%
The net effect ofgro“ ng the cash arising from the in-force
business whilst keeping the level of cash invested i new
business relatnely flat, 1s a grow ing net cash How This net
cash result was up 37% 1n 2012 — a third successive year of

signihcant grow th
Cashartang Cashimested

on m force n acquining Nut cash

business  new business result

£'Million £ Million £ Million

2012 1522 (60 5) 917

2011 1294 (624 670

2010 1097 (61 4) 48 3

2009 888  (653) 235

2008 914 (673 241

Post-tax cash result

Annual compound growth rate of c 40%

N £91 7m]

O T
o0 @~ 8

2000 I :): 5

2003 NN > i)

- Investment 10 new bustness

Capatal

A kev financial objective 1s to ensure the Group’s solvency
¥

1s managed safely through both good and difficult times

This 15 important not only for the safeguarding of our

clients’ assets, but also to ensure we can maintain returns

to shareholders

The Group continues to be capitahised well 1n excess of
regulatory solvency requirements, and the assets remamn
imested prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds
and UK government securities The lack of significant balance
sheet or market risk, together with this prudent investment
policy has provided for a stable and |ncrca51ngl} resthent
sohvency position over recent vears, despite the difficult
financial and market environment At the year end the total
Group solvency net assets were £403 5 mullion, well 1n excess
of the £57 8 million total Group sohvency requirement

Dividend

As the business matures, the cash emerging from the in-force
business 1s increasing vear by vear, whilst the proportion of this
cash that1s reamested in acquiring new business 1s falling

13
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report wmne

This combination means the cash available for corporate
purposes and to return to sharcholders 1s increasing,
consequenth the Board has been able to increasc the
dnvidend 1n each of the last five years

As can be scen in the table below, the dnidend was
significantly increased by 33% 1 both 2010 and 2011 At
the time of the interim results the board announced a third
year of significant dinidend grow th and mcrcased the 2612
interim diadend by 33% Subject to shareholder approval at
the AGM, the Board has resolved to also increase the 2012
final dividend by 33%

I am also pleased to confirm that we expect to increase the
2013 disidend by a similar significant amount Thereafter,
we will continue with a progresswe dividend policy by
growing the dividend 1n line with the underlying

performance of the business
Dividend per

share Growth

Poney %
31 December 2012 10 64 33
31 December 2011 80 33
31 December 2010 60 33
31 December 2009 45 25
31 Dccember 2008 439 21

Future Developments

There are a number of tax and regulatory developments that
have been implemented or are 1n the process of being
implemented which will have animpact on the future
financial results of the business The actual impact will be
dependent upon the level of future new business and stock
markets, however, we currently expect to sce hitle change to
IFRS profit, a small reduction in the LEV ncw business profic
(and operating profity and carher emergence of cash flows

Further comment 15 included 1n the relesant scenons of the
Financial Review

St James s Place plc

Concluding Remarks

2012 has beun another strong vear of financial performance
for the Group This 15 again parucularly pleasing given the
continuing difficult trading conditions that prevailed for the
majority of the year

The business 15 1n good shape and has already benchted from
the positne stock market performance in the hirst two
months of the vear As the business continues to mature we
expect burther grow th in the profits and in particular an
increascd cash emergence which should translate to further
growth in dividensds

Wels

Andrew Croft
Chref Financial Officer
27 February 2013

Registered No 03183415
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Financial Review

The Financial Model

As described earlier, the Group's strategy 1s to attract and
retain retail funds under management on which we recene
an annual management fee for as long as we retain the
funds Ths 1s the principal source of income for the Group
out of which we meet the overheads of the business, invest
mn growing the Partnership and in acquiring new funds
under management

The level of income 15 dependent on the level of chint funds
and the level of asset values In addition, since much of our
business does not generate net cash in the first six years, the
level of Income wall increase as a result of new business
from six years ago becoming cash generatne Ths deferral
of cash generation means the business always has s1x years’
worth ol funds ‘in the gestation period’, and the IFRS
profits and cash result are relatively insensitine to new
business levels (sec page 25)

Group expenditure 1s carefullh managed with clear targets
set for growth in establishment (xpenses in the year Other
expenses increase with business levels and are met from
margins in the products (sec page 28)

A small proportion of Group expenditure 15 required to
support management of existing funds, but the majority

of expenditure 1s investment 1n growing the Partnership
and acquiring new funds The resulting new business 1s
expected to generate income for an average of 14 ycars,
and 15 expected to provide a good return on the insestment
(sec page 26}

In the early years of the business, most of the cash emerging
from the existing business was re-1im ested m the acquisition
of new business therefore hmmng the level of the cash
result and IFRS profit before shareholder tax In recent
years, the maturing of the business has resulted in strong
grow th in both the cash emergence and the IFRS result

Guven the hugh level of reinvestment of emerging IFRS
profits and cash back into new business generation, neither
approach provides a simple gurde to the prohts likely to
emerge 1n the future or the total economic value of the
business However, consideration of the contribution to
profits from just the in-force business docs provide a good
indication of the underl)lng value generated It can also
allow a useful reconciliation of these results to the EEV
result, which presents our detailed, market consistent
assessment (using industry agreed principles) of the
economic 1alue of our business

St James s Place plc

Presentation of Frnancial Results

Management belieses 1t 1s important for investors to
appreciate not only the short term not income position

of our business, but also the full, long-term potentral

We therefore complement our statutory [FRS reporting
with additional disclosure on an embedded salue basis
(using EEV principles) This measurc assesses the
discounted value of all future cash flows and we beheve 1t
better reflects the full economic value of the performance of
the business We also provide analyus of the sources of cash
emergence in the year, which we refur to as the cash result

These three measures, which are described 1n more detail
below, provide investors with differcnt perspectn es on the
performance of the business in a particular year We believe
the additional disclosure will assist them m making their
own assessment of the value of the business

The IFRS result 15 the approach required for statutory
reporting purposes The standards require that profits are
recognised 1n ine with the provision of services and
therefore broadly in line with the cash emergence from a
contract Howeser, for long-term business it seeks to spread
some of the mitial cash Hows over the whole duration of the
contract through the use of intangible assets and habilities
(know n as DAC — Deferred Acquisition Costs and DIR —
Deferred Income Reserve) and recogmises the value of
certain future cash flows, particalarly deferred tax

One pownt of note 1n the IFRS mcthodolog) 15 the
requirement that the tax recogmsed in the accounts should
iclude the tax incurred on behalf of policyholders m our UK
life assurance company Since the pohicy holder tax charge 15
unrelated to the performance of the business, management
believes it 1s useful to provide addmonal disclosure of the
profit before sharcholder tax This measure reflects the
profit before tax adjusted for tax paid on behalf of
pohcvholders, which we believe provides the most useful
measure of IFRS operating performance in the period

The embedded value result 15 particularly uscful for

i estors seeking to assess the full value of the long-term
emergence of shareholder cash returns, since 1t includes an
asset 1n the aluation reflecting the net present value of the
expected future cash flow s from the business This ty pe of
presentation is also commonly referred to as a ‘discounted
cashflow’ valuatton Our embedded value 1s based on the
EEV principles, which were set out as an mdustry standard
by the Chtef Financial Officers (*CFQO’) Forum in 2004

Many of the future cash flows derive from fund charges,

which change with morements in stock markets Since the
empact of these. changes 1s unrelated to the performance of

Regintered No 03183415




the business, managemecnt believes that the EEV operating
profit (reflecting the EEV profit before tax adjusted to
reflect only the expected imvestment performance and no
change 1n economic basis) provides the most useful measure
of performance in the period

Finally, the cash result measure has been developed with
the aim of assisting investors sceking to understand the
sources of cash emergence It1s based on IFRS, but remosves
non-cash items such as DAC, DIR and doferred tax 1t s also
adjusted to refteet the regulatory solveney constraints on
profits emerging from regulated companies such as our
mnsurance businesses The effect 1s to create a measure
which more reflects the underlying cash generated by the
business and which can be used by the Board in determining
the proposed dividend payments to sharcholders

Since the cash result can be impacted by uming variances
and capitahised 1mpacts of changes in sohency requirements
management beheses it 14 also useful to present an
underlying cash result cxcluding these eftects Neither
of these cash result measures should be contuscd with the
IFRS cash flow statement which 1s prepared in accordance
with IAS 7 and disclosed on page 89

Sections 1-3 below provide a commentary on the
performance of the business on these bases, whilst Section 4
covers other matters of interest to shareholders

Section | International Financial Reporting
Standards (‘IFRS”)

The Board rcgard the 1FRS profit before sharcholder tax as
the best measure of the IFRS operating performance for the
vear It provides a measure of performance which recognises
the emergence of profits in line with the prosision of
services, and 1s comparable with other businesses The
detailed ITRS result 1s shown on pages 86 to 136 and 1s
summarised in the table below

Year Ended  Yoar Fndid

31 December 31 Deccmber

2012 201

£ Milhion £ Mallion

Profit before shareholder tax 134.6 109 7
Shareholder tax (27.5) 2%

IFRS profit after tax 107.1 106 §

An analysis of the movement in the profit before shareholder
tax and sharcholder tax 1s provided below

Profit before Shareholder Tax

The profit before sharcholder tax for the year was
£134 6 million, up 23% on the prior year result of
£109 7 milhon

Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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The key driver of the improved result was higher income
from funds under management During 2012, the average
funds under management were more than £31 5 billion, and
some 14% higher than the prior period

A breakdow n by segment of the profit before shareholder
tax 15 provided 1n the follow ing table

Year Ended Year kndud

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

£ Million £ Million

Life business 1117 891

Unit Trust business 335 27 8

Distribution busincss 53 61
Other (159) (13 3)

Profit before shareholder tax 134 6 109 7

Life business

The Life business profit for the year was £111 7 mulhion

(2011 £89 1 milhon) whrch was 25% igher than the prior
year The principal contributor to this risen profit was the
hlgher mncome from funds under management in recent years

Unit Trust business
The Unit Trust business profit for the year was £33 5 million
% Y
(2011 £27 8 million) which was also higher than the same
eriod last year As abowve, the principal contributor to this rise
P 3 P P
in profit was the higher income from funds under management

Distribution busmess

The mmpact of distribution activity 1s separately identified
from ‘Other’ opcrations St James’s Place1s a vertically
integrated firm, allowing 1t to benefit from the synergics
of combining management of funds with distribution
Therefore, as well as the 1ncome generated on the funds
under management, there 15 a further margin from the
distribution activity In any one year this result will depend
upon the level of new business and expenses

The Distribution business profit for the year was £5 3 rmlhon
(2011 £6 1 mullion)

Other

Othcr operations contributed a loss of £15 9 mullion (2011
loss of £13 3 million) [ncluded within this igure is the cost
of expensing share options of L5 4 mullion for the current
perad {2011 £10 5 mullion) The additional loss in 2012 15
made up of a number of items including increased eost of
matching for the Foundation
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Shareholder Tax

The actual tax rate for each year 1s impacted by stock market related iming differences and one off eftects such as the
change in corporation tax rate Therefore, to assist sharcholders, the table below provides a high level analysis of
shareholder tax, and a more detailed analysis 15 included 1n Note 8 1o the financial statements

Year Ended  Year Ended
31 December 31 Dicemlnr
2012 20mn

Expected shareholder tax

£ Mallion £ Mullion
(337) (296

Market related tax effects (4.0) 203
Other tax adjustments 2.0 (0 6)
Corporation tax ratc Lhangc 8.2 70
Actual shareholder tax (27.5) 29
Expected shareholder ax rate 25.0% 27 0%
Actual sharcholder tax rate 20 4% 2 6%

The expected sharcholder tax principally reflects the current corporation tax rate apphicable to profits in the year, and
will vary from year to vear depunding upon the emergence of profit between the different tax regimes which apply to the
St Jame~’s Place Group companies Therd has been a small change this year to reasagn £5 1 mullion of expected tax cfect
as being market related, which we beheve will gre a more useful and consistent analysis going forward More detaib1s
included 1n Note 8 to the finanaial statements

The market related tax effects and other tax adjustments wili typically be small Howcuvcr, the lower investment
markets 1n 2011 resulted 1 a large negatine market related tax offeet in that year

The impact of the corporation tax rate change on deferred tax has reduced the tax charge in both years The impact
on sharchalder tax in 2011 reflects a reduction of 2% in the corporation tax rate, from 27% to 25% The impact in 2012
retlects a 2% reduction from 25% to 23% which will be the tax rate from April 2013

The overall impact of all of the abeve effects 1s to 1ncrease the tax charge on an IFRS basis to £27 5 mullion (2011 £2 9 million)

IFRS Profit after Tax

The followng additional analy sis of the IFRS profit after tax result identifies the differcnt contributions from the business
in-force at the start of the year, and the new business added during the year It starts from the cash result, which can be
found on pages 23 to 25

New
Year Fnded 31 December 2012 Notes in-Force Busifiess Total

’Mallion £Milhon £*'Mllion

Cash result 1 1522 (60.5) 917
DIR amortisation 2 936 S8 99 4
DAC amortisation 3 (74 7) (58) (80 5)
PVIF amortisation 4 (24) - (24)
DIR on new business 2 - (1559) (155 9)
DAC on new business 3 - 155.0 1550
Share options 5 (5 4) - (54)
{FRS deferred tax impacts 6 (8-3) - (83)
Other IFRS 7 5.3 - 5.3
Corporation tax rate changc 8 8.2 - 82
IFRS proht after tax 168.5 (61.4) 107 1
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New

Year Ended 31 December 2011 Notcs In-Foree Businuss Totat

£ Million £ Milhon £'Million
Cash result 1 129 4 624 670
DIR amortisation 2 829 54 883
DAC amortisation 3 (64 6) 54) (70 0)
PVIF amorusation 4 (2 8) - (2 8)
DIR on new business 2 - (1357 (1357
DAC on new business 3 - 144 8 144 8
Sharc options 5 (10 5) - (10 5)
1FRS deferred tax impacts 6 16 4 - 16 4
Other IFRS 7 23 - 23
Corporation tax rate change 8 70 - 70
IERS proht atter tax 160 1 (53 3 106 8

The IFRS profit after tax from the business in-force at the start of the vear increased to £168 5 mullion (2011 £160 1 mullion)
Ths reflects the increased cash result arising from the greater income from the higher funds under management Howeser
this 15 largely offset by the increase in the effecti ¢ tax rate, reflected in this analysis by the difference in contribution from
deferred tax

The loss associated with acquiring new business tor the year was £61 4 million (2011 £53 3 mullion loss) and should be
viewcd as an imvestment for future profits  The increasc in the cost of new business reflected hlgher expenses 1n the year,
particularly development cxpenses and the increased cost of the FSCS levy

[n 2013 we expect to see somc change in this breakdown of the [FRS profit after tax result, as a result of the introduction of
the adviser charging rules Howeser the overall impact of the changes 15 expected to be small

Notes
1 These figures arc cxplained 1o the analysis of the post tax cash resaltin Section 3
2 DIR IFRS riqueres any initial profit which arises on new busingss (ather through an imtial charge or surrcnder ponalty) to b deforred at the outset and then
amortised over the hife of the associated product or the surrender penalty period This required treatment gives nise to two adjustments to armve at the IFRS result
(a} The amortisation of the opening duferred income, w hich increase s profit for the period, was £93 6 mallion (2011 £82 9 millien) in the current year
The reluase 10 a partrcular year will depend upon the value of DIR at the start of the year and the remaining hic of the policies to which the DIR rclates
or lhl‘ era!nlng Surrcndcl’ Pcnall‘\ PCTICI([
In 2012 there was a modification to the outstanding surrender punalty position which increased the level of cash profits resulting ma £1 7 rilhon
reduction i the amertsation of the DIR inthe year from the expected level of £95 3 million The expected release for 2013 15 £113 8 million
(b) The defurral of the inatial profit associated with now business salos reduccd the IFRS result by £155 9 milhon 10 2012 2001 £135 7milhon)  The defurral
of profit m any particular year will be depcndint upon the level of new business Tn addion the modification noted above has resulted 1n an increase in
the DIR on new business in the vear by nearly £8 milhon
3 DAL Speaiic now business acquisition expenscs are required to by doferred in the sear they anise and then amartised in future vears over the hife of the
policies to which the costs relatc. The treatment of these acquisition expunscs gis rise 1o two adjustments n the IFRS resule
(a) The amorusation of the opening DAC which riduces profit for the period, was £74 7 million (2011 £64 6 million) in the current year The ¢hargena
particular period will depend upon the value of the DAC at the start of the yoar and the remaining life of the policies to which the DAC relates The
uxpecteel amortisation charge for 201315 £84 8 nullion
(b) The deferral of the specific acquisition costs, which were incurred in the current period, increased IFRS prohits by £155 million (2011 £144 8 mulhion)
The deferral of expenses in any particular year will be dependunt upon the level of the acquasition costs which themsebves will be determined by the lael
of new business
4 PV ThuIFRS balance shect includes an asset representing purchased raluc of in force ( PVIF ) This assct 1s amortised over the remaiming ife of the policies
assoctated with this asset The amortisation charge for the year was £2 4 milhon (2011 £2 & million) The charge for 2013 1s expected tobe £2 5 mullion
Share options this figurc 1s the netienal cost thatis associated with the various share option schemes
6 1FRSdefurred tax Under IFRS a deferred tax assct s cstablished for future tax benefits that are expected to emerge Thisas not recogmised in the cash result
The sigmificant change botween the two yaars refiects the establishment of an additional tax assct in respect of uxcess B from the tax calewlation for the hife
business m the prior vear and the utihisation of this assctan the current sear Both years also bendfit from an expected small underlying positive contribution,
also related to taxatton in the hife businuss
7 Other [FRS This item refbocts a number of other adjustments from the cash result For instance, the cash result reflects the regulatory sohency requirement
to hold prudent actuarial rescrves but these are not held in the IFRS result Therefore movements in these roserves (generally related o movements in the
stock markets) will impact the cash result but are reversed in the IFRS There will be a smail impact esther positive or negatve, depending upon stock market
mosements, 10 future vears
8 Corparation tax rate change the above adjustments arc all shown net of duferred tax rates preailing at the end of each vear, and this £8 2 million
(2011 £7 O million) reflects the effect on the deferred tax assets and habihities of the change in the 1ax rate from 25% 10 23%

[E.]

Annutl Report and Accounts 2012 19




20

Fil’lal’lCial ReVieW continued

Whilst the Board considers the profit before shareholder tax
15 the best measure of the performance of the business, the

Year Ended  Year Pndod
31 December 31 December

total IFRS result s presented, grossed up for the inclusion of - 2012 - 201
tax incurred on behalf of policy holders, 1n the table below £Millon & Milhon
Purchased value of in-torcc® 333 34 8

IFRS Profit before Tax Ddferred acquisition costs* 7571 6520
Yearknded  Yuarbndid*  Diferred income* (5192) (446 6)

# Dcccn;t(;f; 3 DE“;’;:: Other IFRS net assets 87.8 88 9

© Million © shllon Solvuncy net assets 403 5 342 2

IFRS profit/(loss) before tax 2518 (20 1y Total IFRS nct assets 7625 6783

Policyholder tax (117.2) 129 8 * net ot de ferred tax

Year Fnded  Year Enddd

Profit before shareholder tax 134.6 109 7 3i December 31 Dtcember
Sharcholder tax (27.5) 29 2012 011
IFRS profit after tax 107 1 106 8 Pence Fenee
Net asset value per share 150 4 1375

*  To more appropriately refleet the EFRS profit b ford tax figure, the 2011
pahieyholder tax has buen re presented to incdude a credit of £41 4 mithon
in relation to the tax provision for tax deductions on deemcd disposals of
umi trust holdings which v as provacusly treated as a movement 1n actuarial
reseries Lhas has had the eflcet of reduang the prior year IFRS proht
befure tax by a corresponding £41 4 mullion Mare information s gnanin
Note 1 to the financial statements

[n 2012 the EFRS profit before tax for the year was

£251 8 mullion (2011 £20 1 mullion loss) with the principal
contribution to the change hemg the movement 1n the
policyholdcer tax from a £129 8 mubon credit in 2011 o

a charge of £117 2 milhon 1n 2012

The pohicyholder tax mainly reflects the UK tax pad

or payable in the future within the hife business at the
policyholder tax rate of 20% and prinaipally reflects the
morement in the tax provision within the pollc_v]hnldcr unit
linked funds At the previous reporting date, thare were
unrealised capital losses withan the lunds, agamst which a
deferred tax asset was established The inercase 1n the stock
markets over 2012 has reversed this position and as a result
there are now unrealised gains in the funds, on which a
deferred tax hability has been established The movement
betw een the reporting dates has resulted 1n a tax chargc_
of £117 2 mullion

By comparison, during 2011 stockmarkets and asset values
decreased, which resulted in a tax credit of £129 8 million

Analysis of IFRS Assets and Net Assets per Share

The table below prosvides a summarised breakdow n of the
IFRS position at the reporting dates

5t James’s Place plc

Section 2 European Embedded Value (‘EEV’)

Life assurance and wcalth management business differs from
most other businesses, 1n that the expected sharcholder
mcome from the sale of a product emerges over a long
pertod in the future We therefore complement the IFRS
result by providing additional disclosure on an EEV basis
The EEV result bnngs into account the net present value of
the expected future cash flows and v e believe this measure
1 useful to imestors when asscssing the total economic
value of the Group'’s operating performance

The table below and accompanying notes summarise the
profit before tax of the combimed business The detailed
results are shown on pages 147 to 156

Ycar Ended  Year Ended
31 December 31 Docember

2012 2011

£ Milhion £ Milhon

Life business 29319 294 2
Unit Trust business 826 845
Distribution 53 61
Other 159 (13 3)
EEY operating profit 365.9 3NS5
Imvestment return varnance 190.4 (180 4)
Ecenomic assumption changes {3.7) (0 3)
EEV profit before tax 552.6 190 8
Tax (114.5) (42 5)
Corporatton tax change 21.6 505
EEV profit after tax 4597 198 8§

Total EEV operatng profit for the year, at £365 8 nithon,
was shghtly lower than the 2011 result of £371 5 milhon
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EEV Operating Profit

Life business

The Life business operating profit has marginally decreased
to £293 9 million 1n the year (2011 £294 2 millivn) mainly
due to the low er contribution from the experience varance
in the year A full analysis of the result 15 show n bcdow

Year Fnded  Year Ended

31 December 31 Ducember

2012 201

£ Milhien L Million

New business contribution 208.9 182 5

Profit from existing business

— unwind of the discount rate 76.9 727
— experience vartance 69 3194
— operating assumption change {1.7) (27
Investment income 29 23
Life business ELV operating profit 2939 294 2

The new business contribution for the year at £208 S
mudlion (2011 £182 5 nulhon) was over 14% higher than the
prior year reflecting the higher volume of new business
together with continued control over the growthin
associated expenses

The unwind of the discount rate was £76 9 mithon
(2011 £72 7 mallion) The unwind 1s now calculated based
on the opening discount rate

The experience variance in the ycar was £6 9 milhon
(2011 £394 million) Continued strong retention of funds
undcr management made a positine contribution in both
vears, but the prior year also benefitted from negotiation
of a lower level for adminmistranion costs compared with the
level assumed in the embeddcd value calculation

There was a small negative operating assumption
change of £1 7 mullion, similar to the prior year (2011
£2 7 mullion negatine variance)

The 1nvestment income for the vear was £2 9 million
(2011 £2 3 milhon) and reflects the assumed interest rate
we earn on our free asscts

Unit Trust business

The Umt Trust operating profit was £82 6 million (2011
£84 5 muillion} and a full analysis of the result 1s shown in
the follow ing table
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decemhber 31 December
2012 2011
£ Mallion £ Million
New business contribution 679 635
Profit from existing business
— unwind of the discount rate 191 185
— experience variance (23) (13
— opurating assumption changc (26) 33
Investment income 05 05
Unit Trust business EEV
operating profit 826 84 5

New business contribution at £67 9 milhon (2011

£63 5 mullion) was 7% tugher than the prior year as a result
al the new business growth in the penod and control of
growth in associated expenses

The unwind of the discount rate was £19 1 million
(2011 £18 5 milhon)

There was a small negatne experience varance of

£2 3 milbion (2011 £1 3 million negative variance) which
13 accounted for by a number of small positn ¢ and negatine
1items in both years

There was also a small negative operating assumption
change of £2 6 rullion (2011 L3 3 mullion positive
\ariance)

Dustribution business and Other
The results from distribution and other operations have
alrcady been commented onan the [FRS section

Investment Return Variance

The investment return yariance reflects the capuahsed
umpact on the futurc annueal management fees resullmg
from the difference between the actual and assumed
investment returns Grnven the size of our funds under
management a smal]l difference between the actual and
assumed 1mvestment return can result in a targe positise
or negatne yariance

During 2012, world stock markets rose, with, for example,
the MSCI £ world index increasing by some 10 7% Ths
was reflected in the imestment return on our funds, which
comfortably exceeded the assumed investment return Asa
result there was a positive investment teturn variance of
£190 4 mullion for the year

In the prior year there was a ncgatn e investment variance
of £180 4 mullion, reflecting falls 1n stock markets, and
imvestment grow th which was lovwer than that assumed 1n
the embedded value projection for the year
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FinanCial RGVieW continued

Economic Assumption Changes

There was a small negative varance of £3 7 million arising
trom changes i the cconomic basts adopted at the year end
(2011 £0 3 million negatine variance)

EEY Profit before Tax

Ihe total EEV proht before tax for the vear was £552 6 million
(2011 £190 8 million)y The most significant contributor 1o
the increase was the changt. 1N IMvestment return variance
reﬂcctmg stronger actual investment rcturns in 2012
compared to 2011

Tax
The tax charge at £114 5 million (2011 £42 5 mulhon
charge) was higher than 2011 reflecting the higher profit

betorc tax

Corporation Tax Rate Change

At the last valuation, the EEV reflected a corporation tax
rate of 25% in 2012, reducing over two years to a long-term
rate ol 23% In the 2012 Budget the Chancellor reduced the
rate of corporation tax applying from April 2012 10 24%,
and 1n his Autumn Statement he announced further planned
cuts to 23% Irom April 2013 and 21% irom Apnil 2014 The
imipact of a(loptmg thesc changes has reduced the corporation
1ax charge by £21 6 mullion (2011 £50 5 million}

EEV Profit after Tax

The EEV profit after tax was £459 7 mullion (2011 £198 8
million) The principal reason for the variation 1s the change
Inimestment return varianco

New Business Margin

The largest single element of the EEV operating profit 1s the
new business contribution (analysed in the previous scetion)
The leael of new business contribution generally moses in
line with new business performance To demonstrate this
hink and aid undLrstand:ng of the results we provide
additional analysis of the new business margin (‘Margin’)
This 1s calculated as the new business contribution divided
by a relcyant new business measure, and 1s expressed as a
percentage

The table below presents margin results based on each of
the two mamn measures of new business performance used
by the insurance sector

— Annual Premium Equnalent (APE) — calculated as the

sum of regular premiwums plus 1/10th single premiums
and also including APE from non-manufactured business

St James's Place ple

— Present Value of New Business Premium (PYNBP) —
calculated as single premiums plus the present value of
cxpected premiums from regular premium business,
allowing tor lapses and other EEV assumptions, but
excluding non-manufactured business

Year Ended  Year Foded
31 December 31 December

w2 201
Life business
New business contribution (£'Mullion) 208.9 1825
APE (£’ Million) 594 8 5054
Margin (%) 351 361
PVNBP (£'Million) 44244 40232
Margin (%) 47 45
Unit Trust business
New business contribution (£'Million) 679 635
APE (£ Mullion) 148.5 136 ¢
Margin (%) 45.7 46 4
PVNBP (£'Million) 1,484.7 13688
Margin (%} 4.6 46

Total business
Ncw business contribution (£"Mullion) 276.8 246 0

APE (£'Million) 7433 6423
Margin (%%) 37.2 383
PVNBP (£'Million) 59091 5,3920
Margin (%) 47 46

The Life business margin has increased from 4 5% to 4 7%
on a PYNBP basis, reflecting not only grow th in new
business being greater than grow thin expenses (the
operational gearing), but also the impact of reduced Partner
remuneration This reduction in Partner remuneration
reflects recent changes to equalise Partner remuneration
betw een the Life and Unit Trust business, as noted in last
year's Financial Commentary Howeser, on an APE basis
the margin has reduced from 36 1% to 35 1%, which
reflects not onls the effects noted aborve, but also the greater
proportion of low er margin non-manufactured business
APE thus year

Having completed the changes to Partoer remuneration
on Umt Trust business in 2011, the Unat Trust margin has
remamned unchanged at 4 6% on a PYNBP basis and 1s
broadly unchanged at 45 7% compared with 46 4% on

an APE basis

The combined margin has dechned marginally on an APE
basis, reflecting the greater proportion on non-manulactured
business noted above, whilst there was a small increase in
the overall PVNBP margin
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In addition to the new business profit ansing i the ‘manufacturing’ companies, the Group also makes a profis or loss within
the Distribution business  Allowing for the current year result of £5 3 million (2011 L6 | mullion) increases the combined
margin arising on new business to 4 8% (2011 4 7%) on a PVNBP baus and 1o 38 0% (2011 39 29) on an APE basis

Following the adoption of the new regulatory rulcs in respect of adviser charging there will be a small decling in the Life
business margin in futurc years This reflects a loss of tax rehef on certain cxpenses within the UK lite company's 1-E tax
computation

Analysis of the European Embedded Value and Net Assets per Share
The table bilow provides a summarised breakdow n of the cmbeddcd value position at the reporting dates

Year knded  Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

£ Millhon £ Milhon

Value of in-force

— Life 1,549 3 1,251 5
— Unit Trust 383.5 305 8
Solvency net assets 403 5 3422
Total embedded value 2,336 3 1,899 5

Year Ended  Yuar Fnddd
31 Decernber 31 December

2012 2011
Pence Pence
Net asset value per share 461.0 3850

Section 3: Cash Result and Capatal

In addstion to presenting the financial performance on the IFRS and EEV basis, we also provide an analysis of the sources of
cash emergence in the year which we refer to as the cash result The cash result is based on the IFRS resuit, but removes
non-cash items such as DAC, IMR and deferced tax It 1s also adjusted to reflet the regulatory solvency constraints on
profits emerging from regulated companies such as our insurance businesses The effcct 15 a measure which more reflects
the underlying cash emergence of the business, and which 1s available to pav divdends An underlying cash result 15 also
presented, stripping out the effects of uming variances and capitalised impacts of changes 10 sohency requirements

Year Ended Year Endod
31 December 31 Ducembor

2012 201

£ Malhon £ Millon

Undcrlying cash result 840 630
Variance 77 40
Cash result 917 670

In 2012, the cash result was £91 7 oillion (2011 £67 0 mullion) which was 37% higher than the prior vear, principally
from increasud net income from funds under management In both years there were positive vartances and within these
results the underlying cash result was £84 0 million (2011 £63 0 mullion) up 33%

The cash result 1s a combination of the cash emerging from the business in force at the start of the year less the investment
made to acquire new business during the year

Annual Report and Accounts 2012 2 3
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F inanCial RCViGW continued

The tables and commentary below provide an indicative analysis of the cash result, wdentifying the different contributions
trom the business in-torce at the start of the year, and the new business added during the year

New
Ycar Lnded 31 December 2012 Notes In-Force Business Total
£ Million £Milhon £EMilhon
Net annual management fee t 2311 222 253.3
Unwind of surrender pcnaltics 2 (85.5) (10.7) (96.2)
Nct income from funds under management 145.6 115 157 1
Margm arising from new business 3 - 133 133
Establishment cxponses 4 (7.8) (70 0} (77.8)
Davclopment expenses 5 - (72) (72)
FSA/FSCS Fees 6 (09) 81) (%0)
Sharchokder interest (regulated companies) 7 2.4 - 24
Shareholder interest (non-regulated companies) 7 31 - 31
Miscellancous 8 21 - 21
Underlying cash result 144 5 (60 5) 840
Varance 9 77 - 7.7
Cash result 1522 (60 5) 917
New
Yiar Ended 31 Decumbar 2011 Notes In Fores Busini ss Total
£ Million £ Million L£'Million
Net annual management fec 1 196 4 195 2159
Unwind of surrender penalties 2 (69 3) (70 (76 3)
Net income from funds under management 127 1 125 1396
Margin arising from new business 3 — (12) {2
Establishment expenses 4 72 (65 0) (72 2)
Development expenses 5 - 3 3) 33
FSA/FSCS fecs 6 (0 6) G4 60
Sharcholder interest (regulated companies) 7 29 - 29
Shareholder interest (non-regulated companies) 7 22 - 22
Miscellaneous 8 10 - i0
Underlying cash result 125 4 (62 4) 630
Variance 9 40 - 40
Cash result 129 4 62 4 670

St James's Place plc
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Notes

Sance all numbers are expressud after tax, they are impacted by the presailing tax
ratefor each year In 2012 the tax rate has reduced by 2% compared 1o the prior
year

1 The net annual management fee  This 1s the manufacturing margin the
Group retains from the Tunds under management after payment of the
associated costs (e g investment advisory fews and Partner remuncrauon)
Broadls speaking the Group retains around 1% before tax (0 75% after
tax) of funds under management
The level of net annual management fue was some 17% gher than 2011
This inerease 15 10 line with the growthin funds under managument which
averaged £31 5 billion 1n 2002 compared to £27 7 billion in 2011

2 Uowind of surrendur penakies This relates to the roscring methadology
applied to the surrender penalties within the charging structure of the
single premium Life bonds and punsions At the outset of the product we
establish a hability net of the outstanding surrender penalty whach would
apply 1f the policy were to be encashed
As the surrendur punalty reduces to zero, so the habibny 1o the
policvholder is unhanced by increasing thur funds by 1% per annum oser
the first s1x years of the product Ife, 1o correspond to this unsind of the
surrender ponalts [n othor words therd 1s a cost which offsets the annual
managume ot fee above
Like the net annual maragement fee, the unwind of surrender penalues has
mcreased du te grow than funds under management Howeser, the
mcrease has been partly offsct by the fact that the funds under management
sdded six years ago have completed the surrender penalty period
In addion during 2012 we have modified the calculation of the
outstanding surrender penalty position resulting 1o an increase in the lesel
of vutstanding surcender penalty on the existing business However this
modificatron has resulted ina simular incrcase in the amount of the unw ind
of surrender penalties for 2012 compared to 201!

3 Margin arising from new business This s the cash impact of now busncss
1n the year atter taking into account the directly attributable expenses
in 2012 the reduction in tnitial Partner remuneration on Life business
noted last vear, combinud with the modification notud abos e, has increased
the margin artang from new business to £13 3 milbon 2011 £1 2 eallion
negative variance)

4 Tstablishment expenses Thes are the expenscs of rurming the Group's
infrastructure as shown 1n the table on page 28 In Line with the rest of this
table they are prusented after altowance for tax These cxpenscs were
7 8% higher in the current year

5 Duvdopment cxpenses These represent the expenditure associated with
significant desclopmunts i our imestment proposition together wath the
costs associated wath regulatorv changes The impact on the cash resultin
the yaar was £7 2 mulbion (2011 £3 3 million)

6 FSA/FSCSFies The fees pavable to the FSA and the FSCS in the year
were £9 0 mullion (2011 £6 O million)

7  Sharcholder interest ansing from regulated 2nd non regulated business
This 1s the assumed income accruing on the imestments and cash held for
rigulators purposes together with the interest recenvid on the surplus
capital held by the Group
The intcrest recened is at a sumidar level to the prior vear and reflects the
low presailing interest rates we obtain on the free assets

8  Misccllaneous This represints the cash flow of the business not coseredn
any of the other categories [tincludes product charges from a closed book
of protection business as well as income and expenses from other
operations of the business The contribution ta the. cash rosult increased
shghtly 10 £2 1 mulhen (2011 L1 O mulhon)

9  Varance This reflects variances in the cash result 1n a vear due to the
impact of actual experience (including economic assumptions changes and
imestment performance) on wnsurance reserses, as well as variances 1n the
settlement of tax related labilitres betw cen the pohicvholders (unit-hinked
funds) the sharcholder and HMRC In 2042 the »anance alse reflects £4 0
mtlhon from the modification to the calculation of the surrcnder punalts
position noted abone

Following the adoption of the new regulatory rules on
adviser charging the future cash flows on some new business
will be recogmsed carlier This should have a positive
impact on the future cash result
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Return on In-Force Business

As show nin the tables abose, the return on the in-force
business 15 mainly driven by the leve! of the annual
management fees, the unwind of the surrender penalues,
and the level of expenses

The sast majority of the return relates to the net income from
funds under management (annual management fues less the
unwind of the surrender penalty) Funds under management
have been increasing and as they continue to develop, the
futurc net income should also imcrease corrcspondingly

In addition, a proportion of the new business has a
surrender penalty which unwinds during the first six ycars,
meaning that this business does not contribute to the cash
result until vear seven The table below provides an
estimated breakdow n of the single premum business over
the last s1x years whore these surrendor penaltics apply
These premiums are not yet generating income within the
cash result

Year With surrender penalties

£ Ballion
2007 16
2008 14
2009 16
2010 21
2011 22
2012 24
Total 113

The total business not yet contributing to the cash result s
£11 3 billion* winch 1s just about a third of the total hunds
under management at 31 December 2012 Once this business
reaches the end of the surrcnder pertod the cash result will
merease Forllustration purposes, if all the business was now
at this levcl of maturity then the annual post-tax cash result
(based on 0 75% post-tax earnings from funds under
management) would be some £85 mullion higher*

* ignores steck market movements and outflow s since the date of original
clunt imestment

The Board therefore expect the cash earnings from the
in-force business to increase as funds undcr management
grow and the business matures

Return on Investment in New Business

As noted 1n the table on page 24, L60 5 million (2011 £62 4
mullion) of the cash anising from the in-force business has been
re-invested 10 acquiring the new business durmg the vear
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Final’lCial ReVieW continued

This investment 1n news business will generate income in the future that should s:gmﬁcnml} cxcecd the cost of im estment
and therefore provide positine returns for shareholders The table below provides details of the new business added during
the reporting periods and different measures of valuing the investment

Year Ended  ‘Ycar Ended
31 December 31 December

2012 2011
Post-tax investment in new business (£'Million) (60 5) (62 4)
Post-tax present value of cxpected Future cash returns (£'Mithon) 278 8 2535
Post-tax present value of expected profit from investment (£°Malhon) 2183 191 1
Gross intlow of tunds under management (£’ Billion) 56 512
Investment as % of gross inflow * 1.1% 1 2%
New business margin (% of APE) 37 2% 38 3%
Cash payback period (years) 4 5
Internal rate of return (nct of 1ax) 22 5% 20 6%

* Thu investment as a poreentage of netinflow of funds unsder management was 1 8% compared with 1 $% for the prior vear

The cost of this re-msestment to acquire new busingss 1s not cxpected to increase significantly and therefore the proportion
of cash generated from the in-force business avalable to pay dividends to shareholders 1s expected to expand

Capaital Position

The capital position of the Group, calculated on the regulatory basis {‘solvency net assets”) and allow ing for the regulatory
sol ency requirement, 1s shown 1n the table below

The Group continues to be capitalised well in excess of regulatory solsency requirements, and the assets are imvested
P :4 ) Y req >
prudently in cash, AAA rated money market funds and UK gosernment securities

Comparison with previous valuations would show that the Group solvency position has remained stable despite market
volatihty, reflecting the low appetite for market, credit and hquidity risks in relation to solvency

Other
Life  Regulated Other Total

£Millon £Milhion £Million £Mullion

Solvency position

Solsency net assets 199 1 294 1750 4035

Solvency requirement 43 8 140

Solvcney rato 455% 210%

Analysis of solvency net assets

UK gorernment gilts 84 3 _ - 84 3

AAA rated money market funds 2327 457 432 e

Bank balances 99 9 475 351 1825

Liquid assets 416 9 93 2 78 3 588 4

Fixed assets — - 35 35

Actuanial reserves (84 3) - - (84 3)

Other assets and liabtlities (133 5) (63 8) 932 (104 1)

Solvency net assets 199 1 29 4 1750 403 5 |
Reconcihation to IFRS net assets !
Sohency net assets 199 1 294 1750 4035 .
— Purchased VIF 333 - - 333

— DAC and DIR 272 9 350y — 2379

— Other 86 4 14 — 87 8

Total [FRS net assets 5917 4 2) 1750 762 5
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Included within the ‘other’ capital resources 1s an implicd reserve that 1s being built up to cover one years' dn wlend cost
At 31 Decarnber 2012 the amount set aside to date was £45 milhion compared to a full year dis idend cost of £53 8 nillion

Analysis of Liquid Assets
As noted in the previous table the Group has hiquid assets of £588 4 mullion and these amounts are held in UK Goyvernment
backed debt, AAA rated money market funds and bank deposits A further analysis of the holdings 15 provided below
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Holding Name "Million £Milhon
UK government gilts

4 5% UK Treasury 07/03/2013 52

8% UK Treasury 27/09/2013 70

2 5% UK Treasury Index Linked 26/07/2016 12 2

2 5% UK Treasury Index Linked 17/07/2024 18 3

2% UK Treasury Index Linked 26/01/2035 218

4 25% UK Treasury 07/12/2055 46

3 5% War Loan 15 2 84 3
AAA rated money market funds

BlackRock 60 6

HSBC 60 7

[nsight 632

Legal & General 400

RBS 571

Scottish Widows 400 3216
Bank balances

LIK banks* 181 0

Others 15 182 5

588 4

* HSBC, Barclays, Lloyds I'SB Bank of Scotland, RBS, Santander and NatWest

We are not intending to change our approach of investing in UK Government Calts lollow ing the recent credit dow ngrade
of the UK

Solvency I1

We arc well advanced 1n aur preparation for the adoption of the new EU Solvency 1l requirements, and to mimimise
unnecessary expensc artsing from the delayed implementation we are re-aligning our processes to reflect the expected new
rules as far as possible We expect to be able to manage any period of ‘dual running’ with minimal cost As noted
previously, we don't beliese the Group will be adversely inpacted by the new requirements and we expect to see a
reduction in the total capital we are required to hold for regulatory purposes

Share Options Maturity
At 31 December 2012 there were 12 § million share options outstanding under the various share option schemes which, 1f
exercised, will provide up to £34 0 million (2011 £49 1 million), of future capital for the Company

The table below provides a breakdown by date and exercise price

Average Number of
exercise  shareoptions Potential
Earhest date of exercise price  outstanding proceeds
£ Million £ Million
Prior to 1 Jan 2013 273 10 9 298
Jan — Jun 2013 204 02 05
Jul — Dec 2013 - -
Jan — Jun 2014 242 03 06
Jul — Dec 2014 - -
Jan — Jun 2015 29 03 09
Jul — Dec 2015 2758 08 212
125 340
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FinanCial RGViGW continued

Section 4 Other Matters
This final section covers a number of additional areas that will be of interest to sharcholders

Expenses

The table below provides a breakdow n of the expenditure (before tax) for the combined finanaial services activinies

Year Fnded  Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Notey 2012 2011

£ Million £ Midlion

Paxd from policy margms

Partner remuneration 1 307.0 2767
Imvestment expenses 1 894 925
Third party admimistration 1 326 335
4290 402 7
Direct expenses
Othor new business related costs 2 59.5 545
Establishment costs 3 102.4 95 0
Desvelopment costs 4 10.3 45
FSA/FACS levy 5 12.0 80
Contribution from third party product sales 6 (21.4} (13 5)
162.8 148 5

591 8 551 2

Notes

These costs are met from corrcsponding policy margins and any variabon in them from changes 1n the solumes of now business or the level of the stock
markets docs not direetly tmpact the profitabihity of the Company

The reduction in 1nvestment Lxpenses i recunt years riflects the consohidavon of our invstment approach resulting 1n a moe towards our 1nsurance busine ss
funds invcsting through our umat trusts As a result, the imvcsimens expenses within those unit trusts that hase heunimvested into by our insurance funds, are
ne longer exphuth reported, which results in a reduction in the reported ipvestment expense in the yvear of changu

The other new business related costs such as sales forec incentivisation, vary with the level of sales — determuned en our mternal measure As production nises
or falls thest costs will move in the correspanding direction

Establishment costs arc the running costs of the Group's infrastructure and arc reJatnely iixed i nature n the shorz term although they are subject toanflationary
increases These costs will increase as the infrastructure expands to manage the highor numbeor of cxasting clients and the grow thin the Partnership

[he growth in cstablishment expunses during the vear was 7 8%, above aur uniginal « xpeetations of 5% as a result of increasod costs assaciated with the high
lovelof Partner recruitment in the vear

Devilopment costs represcnt the cxpenditure associated with a significant development 1n our imvestment proposition together with the costs associated wath
regulatory change

The development expenses were £10 3 sullion during 2012 and we expect further costs in 2013 of £5 3 aulhon

The FSA/FSCS costs reprusent the fues pavable to the FSA of 45 1 million (2011 £4 5 million) together wath our required contribution to the Financial
Services Compensation Scheme of £6 9 mullion (200) £3 5 mulhon)

Contribution from third party product sales reflects the net income recened from wealth management sales of £0 9 mullion (2011 £3 5 million), sales of
group punsion products of £7 8 million (2011 41 5 million) and sales throegh the Protection Panel of £12 7million (2011 48 5 mulhon)

During the current year, £3 6 milhon of software development costs have been capitalised as an mtanglble asset in
accordance with IAS 38 Thas asset will be amortised over the follow ng four years
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Movement 1n Funds Under Management
The table below shows the mosement in the funds under management of the Group during the reporting period

Year Ended Year Endod

31 December 31 IDecember

2012 2011

£' Bilhion £ Billion

Opening funds under management 285 270
New money imvested 56 52
Im estment return 30 (138)
37.1 30 4
Regular withdrawals/maturities (0.7) (0 5)
Surrenders/part surrenders (1.6) (14
Closing funds under management 34.8 285
Implied surrender rate as % of average tunds under managemont 4 9% 5 2%

Net mflow of funds 3.35 3121
Nt inflow as % of opening funds under management 11 8% 11 9%

Shareholders will be pleased to note that the continued strong retention of funds under management, together with the level of
new money invested, provides for net inflow of funds of £L3 35 bllion, slightly higher than the prior year This net inflow
represents 11 8% (2011 11 9%) of opening funds under managument and can be viewed as the organic growth in funds

Noted below 1s an explanation of regular withdrawals, maturities and surrenders

I'he regular withdrawals represent those amounts selected by clients which are paid out by way of penodtc income

The withdrawals have been assumed 1n the calculation of the embedded value new business profit

Maturities are those sums paid out where the plan has reached the selected maturny date (e g retirement date)
The expected maturitics hase been assumed 1 the calculation of the embedded value new business profit

Surrenders and part surrenders are those amounts where chents have chosen to withdraw money from their plan
Surrenders are assumed to occur in the calculation of the embedded value new business proht based on actual experience,
updated on an annual baus, by plan duration and the age of the chient The implied surrender rate show nin the table above
15 very much a simple average and reflects only recent experience Whilst it could be comparcd with the long-term
assumptions underlying the calculation of the embedded value, it should not be assumed that small mosvements in this rate

will result in a change to the long-term embedded value assumptions

Analysis of Funds Under Management

The follow ing table prov ides an analysis of the funds under management at 31 Decumber 2012 sphit by geography and asset type
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FUM % of 1otal
£hillon

LK Equities 106 31%
North Amcrican Equities 46 13%
Eurcpean Equities 41 12%
Asia & Pacific Equities 39 11%
Property 08 2%
Fixed interest S0 14%
Alternative Investments 13 4%
Cash 32 9%
Other 13 4%
Total 348 100%
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Risk Management Report

he mechamisms for identifying, assesaing, managing and monitormg risks are an integral part of the management processes
of the Group Understanding the nisks we face, and managing them appropriately, enables effective decision-makeng,
contributes to our competitine advantage and helps us to achieve our busmess objectives as sct out on pages § and 9

Risk Management Framework
The Risk Management Framework enables the continuous identification and assessment of risks that may impact on the
successiul delnery of our Group husiness objectives

Overseung our Risk Management Framework 15 the Risk Commutice: The Risk Commuttee 15 made up of Non-exccutnve
Board membrs responsible for ensuring that a culture: of effcctive risk 1dentification and management is fostered across the
Group Further information setting out the actinities of the Risk Commuttce 1s on pages 60 and 61

The Risk Commuittee 15 supported by a Risk Executive Commuttee and Risk Management team w hich are responsible for ensuring
that an appropriate framework 1s in place and for the on-going development and co-ordination of risk management within 8]

Each division of the Group is responsible. for identfying, managing and reporting 1ts risks as part of a quarterly process

Each risk 1s assessed by considering its putuma] impact and the probabilits of tts occurrence Impact asscssments are made
against financial and non-financial metrics The Risk Management team support divisions in this activiny

This process for identify ing, evaluating and managing the sigmificant risks faced by the Group has been i place for all of the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts It 1s regularly roviewed by Risk

Committee on behalf of the Board and accords with the Guidance for Directors in the UK Corporate Governance Code

A diagram showimg the kev aspects of our Risk Management Framework 15 set out below

Risk Management Framework

Group Risk Appetite
Risk Policies

Business Managers  p

. . . Risk Management
Exccutive Oversight p ) s
Team

Board Oversight »

Group Risk Management Information

Business Units

¢ Risk Schedule ¢ Lossdata  * Risk & Control Meeting

Risk Appetite and Risk Policies

At the centre of our Risk Management Framew ork 1s the Risk Appetite Statement 1n our Risk Appeute Statement, the
Board clearly sets out risk ‘boundaries’ 1 ¢ a specification of the tvpes of risks the Group 1s willing to take and to what
extent The Statement 1s regularly reviewed and updated to ensure that 1t continues to outhne the values which drive how
the Group conducts itself Italso sets out how the Group operates in its chosen business and specifies appropriate metrics
for momitoring comphance

In support of our Risk Appetite Statement, we have a number of Risk Policies which clearly establish our objectives,
principles and high level management actnity 1n relation to each of the main types of nisk that the Group faces When
analysing risk, we use these categories to help improve understanding and management of our exposure
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Risk Schedules and Key Risk Indicators

Business Review

Corporate Governance

Financiral Statements

Other Information

Corporate and Divisional risk schedules and quarterly Key Rusk Indicator reports are produced to facilitate the monitoring
of risks by the Risk Executne Committee, Risk Commuttee and Board The Risk Management and Finance functions also
regularly monitor risk capital These schedules and indicators pros 1de a mecchamism for capturing and considering the

significant risks facing the business

Princaipal Risks and Uncertainties

The follow ing tables summarise the principal risks and uncertainties that are inherent within both the Group’s busincss
model and the market in which we operate These principal risks and uncertainties, and the high level controls and
proacesses through which we aim to mingate them, are as follow s

Risk Description Management
Adhvice Advice ginen by anindividual Partner Advice guidclmes are agreed by technical speciahists and
or authorised by the Group 1s deemed  reviewed by Group management These guidelines are
unswitable leading to redress, costs, supported by Training and Accreditation arrangements with
potential reputanonal damage and close compliance monitoring to ensure the advice gmde]lncs
prospective/retrospective regulatory arc followed Appropriate incentives exist to promote
Interyention Partner complance, whilst non-compliance 1s subjct to
censure and other sanctions The Group also has appropriate
professional indemnity insurance in place
Distribution The Group's distribution strength may ~ We employ a number of specialist managers specifically to
Capablity be eroded due to an inabihty to recruit  manage the recrmitment and retention of high quality
and retain Partners of the appropriate  Partners Formal retention strategies are in place to ensure
quality that, wherever possible, we retain good qualty and
experienced Partners All recruitment and retention activity
15 closely monitored We are also continuing wath the SjP
AcadLm), overseen b) a dedicated scnior management team,
to broaden our recruitment streams
Ethos Changes to the §)P ethos and culture Wo have a range of strategic mechanmisms 1n p]ace lncludmg,
adversely impact the continuing tor example, regular surieys and consultauon groups, which
success of the business enable us to monitor the sentiment of our stal and Partners,
to 1dentify any potential adverse impacts upon our culture
and allow us to take action
Investment Our approach to investment We actinely manage and monitor the performance of our
Management management may fail to delver im estment managers through the Investment Commuttee
Approach expected returns to chents of the which also makes usc of a firm of professional advisers —
Group Stamford Associates — to help them with this kev task At the
same time, and to ensure chients can manage thar risk as
well, we offer a broad range of funds, which allows
diversification and mitigates new business, persisteney and
market risks
Market Changes A new entrant or competitor in the We dosely monitor competitor actin ity and the market

adhiser-based wealth management
market has an impact on the success
of 3)P’s business

place, for signs of any potential new entrants or threats, for
example, a crow ding of the high net worth market place if
firms concentrate on wealthier chents As noted above,

we have a proven track record in Partner acquisition and
retention, which we believe would make it dsfficult for a
new entrant to challenge $JP’s posiion In addion, more
established S|P Partners often have significant equity stakes
tn their practices and their ability to access these 1s
structured to awd retention
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Risk Descrlptlon Management
Outsourcing The Group’s dependence on We maintamn close w orkmg rclationships with our
outsourcing may come under threat outsourced business partners to ensure we would have
should any of its key imvestment warning of any materal change that would significantly
management or administration impact our business model All rclatlonahlps are gorverned
business partners decide to exat the by formal agreements w ith notice periods and full exit
market, significantly revise their management plans, and if required, strong alternative
strategy or fail providers exist in the market Business continuity
arrangments of cach outsourcer arc cnntlnuall} testesd
and impros ed and secnario analysis carried out
Regulatory, That the Group could face a fine or Our governance structures, management committecs and

Legislative and
Tax Emvironment

regulatory censure from failure to
complv with applicable regulations,
or that changes in the wider
regulatory, legislane or tax
emvironment could have an adverse
impact on the Group’s business

compliance monitoring activities seck to ensure we remain
compliant with regulation Our active approach to
mantaining an open and mutually benefiual relationship
with our regulator provides intelligence to mitigate the risk
of operating in a highly regulatcd sector Membership of
appropriate trade bodhes can also provide information about
proposed changes The Group also engages the services of
public relations and communications consultants

Retail
Distribution
Review

Market adjustments follow ing the
implementation of the changes
adversely impact the Group

Although e have successfully implemented the changes
required by the new rules, some uncertainty remains about
how clicnts and the financial seryvices market place will react
1n the medium to long-term to the new regime During the
course of this year, any impact will become clearer, but we
F o

believe the strength of the chient relationships, on which our
business 1s built, should help mingate any adverse (ffect

Other Key Risks and Uncertainties

In addition to the principal risks and uncertainties mentioned above there arc other key risks and uncertamnties that are
inherent within the businesses and markets in which we operate These are detailed in the following table under the
relevant risk categories, together with the high level controls and processes through which we aim 1o mitigate these risks
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Risk Description Management
Credn The risk of loss due to a debtor’s The Group has adopted a risk averse
non-pay ment of a loan or other linc of  approach to credit risk and has a stated
credit, including holdings of cash and ~ policy of not actively pursuing or
cash equivalents, deposits and formal accepting credit risk except when
loans with banks and finaneal necessary to support other objectnes
mstitutions
Liquidity The risk that the Group, although The Group 15 averse 1o liquidity risk
solvent, erther does not have mvailable  and secks to mimimise this risk by not
sufhcient financal resources 1o cnable  actively pursuing it cxeept where
it to meet 1ts obligattons as they fall necessary to support other objectives
due, or can secure such resources only  Generally frec assets are invested in
at excessive cost cash or ncar cash asscts and the
Group's cash position and forecast
are momnutored on a monthly basis
Market The risk of loss due to the impact of The Group adopts a risk averse
movement in the valuc of equuty or approach to market nisk, with a stated
othor asscts markets sohency policy of not actinely
pursuing or accepting market risk
except where necessary to support
other ebjectines Generally, free assets
are imvested 1n cash or near cash to
minimise market movernent tmpact
However, future prohits are dependent
on annual management charges which
will vary with markct movements
Insurance The risk that arises from inherent The Group has a medum appetite for

uncertainiies as to the occurrence,
amount and uming of 1nsurance
habiliies The Group assumes
insurance risk by 1ssuing insurance
contracts under which it agrees to
compensatc the clicnt 1if a specified
future event occurs

msurance risk, only actively pursuing
it where beneficial, or in support of
strategic objectines The Group insures
mortality and morbidity risks but has
no longevity risk as wehave never
written annmty business

Economic Emvironment

A major and prolonged economic
downturn, a Euro area country/
countries default or stock market crash
leads to a significant under-
performance of the business plan

We closely momitor the performance

against our business plan, the

behaviour of the markets and |
consumer confidence lhrough the use ‘
of darly Management Information |
circulated to senior management Thus |
should help us to idenufy early signals

of the impact of a market ducline, so

that we can manage expenses and

adjust our stratesuppropnatd\

Further detail about the Group's exposure to financial risks 1s included in Note 27 to the consolidated accounts
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

St James’s Place 1s committed to growing our businessn a way that considers the economic,

social and environmental 1mpacts of what we do We understand that rcspons1blc management 1§

important to all our stakeholders — shareholders, chents, Partners, employees, supphers and the

communitics n which we operate

O ur commitment to responsible management was
established 1n the founding principles and 1s expressed
in bath the ‘Our Approach’ document, which 1s shared with
all members of our community, and the *What it means to
be a member’ brochure, which scts out the expectations for
our Partners We believe responsible management s
cmbedded in our culture and exists in the heart of our
organisation Reminders and encouragement to Ine this
philosaphy are provided regularly, for example through
promotion within our community of our chanitable
foundation, through challunge to cmployees to delner for
clicnts, and by encouragement of our Partners to live up to
the high standards cxpected of members of the Partnership

By In ing up to the expectations established within our
culture, we belicve we will be able to demonstrate
trustworthiness, reliability and a commitment to the
common good Ina world where the reputation of the
financial services industry 1 constantly under pressure, we
aspire to create an authentic alternative which chients and
suppliers can trust, and which the communitics wo are part
of can appreciate and admare

The St James’s Place Approach To CSR

Communty
& Culture /
1{; parme\’S

<

St James's Place plc

W are constantly secking to improve our didnery, but

recent pubhic endorsements include

— Vanious awards relating to our client offcring including
the City ot London “Wealth Management Company of the
Year’, the Personal Finance Awards ‘Best Finanaoal
Adviser’ and the Financial Times/Investors Chronicle
‘Wealth Manager of the Year,

— Endorsement of our business model by the London
stockmarket in the UK Stockmarkct Awards, and by our
peers, wanning i the insurance sector in the Britain’s
Most Admired Companies awards, and

— Maintaming our inclusion 1n the FISE4GOOD Index,
which comprises compantes that meet globally recognised
corporate soctal responsibibity eriteria

This report provides a short summary of how we manage
Corporate Social Responability (CSR) at St James's Place
Morc detail can be found in our standalone CSR report and
ot our website at www sjp co uk
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CSR Governance

Responsible management 15 central to our culture, and the task of maintaiming this culture (including our CSR ambitions) 1s
a key focus of the Exccutne Comnutred of the Board, compnising the four Executine Directors Oversight of this key asset
of our business 1 provided by the full Board

The Executive Commuttee of the Board 1s supported in this objectne (as in all of their work) by a number of ExCos, which
arc chaired by the Dhirectors and which involve other members of senter management Responsibility for specific areas has
been turther dclcgatecl to a numbar of specalist sub-commttees

Busincss Review

Corporaie Governance

Finanaal Statements

Other Injormation

Managing Committec Remit

Our Culture and People Exccutive Committee of the  lo ensure the strength and maintenance of the unique
Board culture throughout the SJP community

Qur Clients Chent Steering Group To monitor the chent carc experience and promote high

standards in all our interactions with clients

The 5t James’s Place Foundauon Trustces To manage the $JP Foundation, including oversecing

Foundation grant-makmg and compliance with the chanity’s objectines

CSR overview, Local CSR Group lo co-ordinate SjP’s approach to CSR, with specific focus

Community and Suppliers on promoting local commumity actiities and volunteering

QOur Imvestments [nyvestment Commuttee To enourc the Investment Management Approach and our
fund managers deliver in line with mandates and client
t.xp(.clatlons

The Environment Enyironment Steering Group  To promotc environmental considerations in the

management of the business, and encourage staff in making
their personal contribution

Our Culture
Our culture 1s central to the success of cur organisation and we are pro-active 1n building and remforeing it

To ensure continuity of cur culture all employces and members of the St James’s Place Partnership receve a booklet entatled
‘Our Approach” at induction, which gises gurdance on the culture and values of St James’s Place. We believe it s important
for all areas of our community to know and understand our objectives, including the ethos behind the St James's Place brand
and how rts integnity and values should be maintained We are keen to promote our corporate culturc and management style,
to provide information about how we deal with internal and external communications, and to encourage a shared commitment
to the St James's Place Foundation

Members of the Partnership are also provided with a document entitled *“What 1t means to be a member’, which sets out a
philosophy and some principles We believe the shared commitment to Iining up to these principles 1s what gives the
Partnership 1ts competitive edge and makes it a group of professionals that other adsisers aspire to join - The document
emphasises integrity, trust, openness, partnership and teamwork and 1s designed to guide individual and corporate actions,
decisions and standards across our communiry

Maintaining the freshness of the commutment to its culture s a key challenge for all businesses, and it 1s parucularly relesam
for SJP given the growth which has been achiesed  We recognise this challenge and are pro-active in reinforcing our culture,
with key actnities including an Annual Company Mecting, employee and Partner survevs, regular Partner meeuings, feedback
opportunites for employees with Directors, and a Leadership Conference for semor managemont These activties all proside
opportunities to renew our jomnt understanding and encourage commitment 1o our shared culture The same activities also
pros ide opportunities for all our community to develop a common awarencss of the financal and economic factors affecting
the Company's performance
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Our People

We are a people business and take pride in all our
community We believe that our success as a business
depends on the loyalty and dedcation of our people,
whether Partners or employees, they provide the Group
with a sustainable competitive advantage and the attitude,
know ledge and commitment of our people continues to be
a strong differentiator We aim to attract the best people
and hedp them fulfil their potenttal We sceure their
commitment by providing them with an interesting and
challunging career within a first class working environment,
and we reward them compctllncI} takmg into account the
whole packagc and by encouraging equity ownership We
share. 1deas and are alw ays receptine to suggestions for
Change We gnve credit where credit 1s due and work hard
to recogiuse indn wdual performance

The Company 15 commutted to maintaining an appropriatcly
skilled and diverse worklorce irrespective of age, colour,
race, nationality, ethmaity, sex, or disability It 15 our policy
to ensure that all job apphcants and emplos ces bemg
congidered for promotion are treated fairly and on merit

In particular, we strne to give full and fair consideration to
applications from and promotions of disabled people, having
regard o therr particular aptitudes and abilities, and where
appropriate, we will consider possible modifications to the
working environment so they can take up opportunities or
enhance their role. We will similarly make every effort 1o
achieve continuity of employment in the event of an
employee becoming ill or disabled, for example, by
arranging appropriate training By adoptmg best practice
principles we scek to ensure that our responsibihities are
met as an equal oppr)rtunlty meloyir and that everyone
can enjoy an environment that 1s free from diserimination
of am sort

Employee Feedback

Inour 2012 Employee Survey we received a strong survey
response rate of 86% (compared to 85% 1n 2010) which
provided us with a good snapshot of how our emplosvees are
feeling on a number of important 1ssues A key result from
the survey 15 the ‘employee engagement index’, which can
be used to compare S]P’s results to those of other financal
services organisations We were naturally pleased that §)P’s
overall engagement score was 86%, which was sigmficantly
higher than the financial services benchmark of 73%

Partner Feedback

Our 2012 Parwner Survey also ehated a strong response
rate of 75% (up from 69% w 2011) and the fiedback on
areas as dnerse as the Im estment Management Approach,
our new Electronic Business Submassion system and the
support recenved from local management, Head Office and
our key administration centres, was pleasingls positine

St James's Place ple

As part of our cycle of continuous improvement we also seek
feedback from all new Partners six months after they join the
Company Oser 90% of these new recruits rated their initial
months with the Partnership as seven or more out of ten,
and we are pleased that most indicated a willingness to
recommend 5t James’s Place to former colleagucs

People Development

We are keen to ensure that all individuals are encouraged 1o
develop and are grven opportunities to seek new challenges
across the business Many of our initiatives in 2012 will
continue into the future including

— Membership of the Institute of Customer Scrvice ((ICS),
with a number of employecs imolved n the scheme

— Anuw Apprenticeship programme welcoming five school
leavers into the business

— Know ledge Development Meetings (KDMs), helping
cumployecs develop thar understanding of our business
and enhancc their knowledge

- Management desclopment opportunities, including
mentoring from more senior managers and spcathe
workshops for new managers

— Specihic development programmes for the specialist roles
within cur Field Management Team

2012 was a key vear for members of the Partnership as the
changes in regulation required many of them to gain a
higher level qualification by the end of the year Having
worked hard to support Partners, the Company was vers
pleased that all Partners were able to qualify 10 advance of
the dcadline We are also pleased to be providing support
for thase now purswing further qualificanions, with 45%
having plans to achieve Chartered status We continue to
provide training for our Partner support teams and seck to
ensure they are quallﬁtd to a simular or even hlghcr level
than the Partnership

2012 also saw the relaunch of the Academy mitiatie,
providing an opportunity for suitably quahified indiniduals
to recen e traming and assistance to jon the adviser
commumty We now have 54 participants in threo phases
of the Academy programme and the success of earlier
programmes has resulted m the estabhshment of careers
for more than 40 new fAinancial advisers

Health and Safety

We work hard to create an excellent working ens ironment
for emplovees and Partners  We ensure every office comphes
with Health and Safety regulations and also seek to improve
awarencss through regular training sessions on subjects such
as manual handling, hre marshal and first aider traming
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Each year we carry out fire risk assessments, fire evacuation
tests and health and salety inspections and the actions
wdentificd irom these are completed appropriately and
overseen by the Health and Safety working group  The

w orkmg group s chaired by the Operations Director and
mects at least quarterly to review policies, review the
progress against targets and agree the action plan for the
tollow ing year

Our Clients

Putting the chent at the centre of everything we do 15 core
to our culture and means we seck to run a genuinely
chent-focused business Through our relationship-based
adhice service, we aim to help chients manage their wealth
n a way which reflects their personal circumstances

Thas approach has allow ed us to deselop long-lasting
relationships, founded on trust, with many of our clients

We seck 1o delner for clients by
— Providing personal face-to-face financial advice from our

expertenced Partners
Gnving them the opportunity to review their financial

affairs regularly
Ensuring all investments are managgd effectively

I

Ensuring that our correspondence and literature 1s clear
and casy to understand

Listening to feedback

Ensuring that v ¢ are sensitive to their individual needs at
all timcs

!

The St James's Place Partnership plays the leading role in
delnering our service The Partnership, so called because
they work m partnership with their clients, includes some
of the most expericnced and able professionals working 1n
wealth management today and we are committed to
supporting their on going professional deselopment

We seek to ensure they remam appropriately quahified,
techmnicallv able and equipped to delinver a first class service
to our clients, and as a result we are happy to guarantee the
quabry of the adsice that they gne w hen recommending
mm estments and other services provided by companies in
the St James’s Place Group

Gnven the importance of the Partner-client relationship we
are quite proud of the positive results we receive 1n our
I'Lgulal' chient consultation work This work 15 undertaken
via chient survey s and focussed research and 1s our key way
of cherting feedback about the seryvice clients recene and
what they expect In our 2012 chent survey 25% of clients
rated thor satisfaction level at ten out of ten and 82% of
chients confirmed thev were happy with the frequency of
contact from their Partner
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The following two responses from our recent survcy are
examples of the henefit chients have gamed from our client
focus and service ethos

‘tam very pleased with the service | am a woman on my own and |
hase put my trust 1 someone who takes time to explain things two
or three times to make sure I understand’

I was recammended to St _James’s Place by someone after a double
bereavement It was one of Iife s crossroads They explained what 1
could do and what I could not do, 10 make sure I was safe and secure
as | wanted’

[Despite recening much posine feedback from chents, we
neser become complacent We are constantly strnving to
improve our standards, and areas for improvement wlentihed
n the chient suriey will be followed up during 2013

In order to ensurc that our business continues to be client
focussed we have established a Client Steering Group, which
meets regularly and monitors all arcas of the business which
can aflect the chient experience Areas discussed cover all
stages of the client lite eycle, from the sutability of advice,
through the policy administration and 1nvestment
performance, to the msurance claim expericnce and, where
relevant, client complaints During 2012 the group was able
to recommend enhancements to existing processes and the
development of new 1deas to bring about improvements in
the client cxperience, including development of our on-line
services and the sharing of examples of best practice client
service with Partners

In all we do, St James's Place secks to meet the needs and
expectations of our clients, and the e idence suggests we
achieve this goal for many chents In addition to the positive
fcedback we recene from our client suriey work, we also
experience low rates of surrender of funds, ty pically less
than 5% p a A further reflection of the level of client
satisfaction 1s that the number of complaints we recene 1s
low, and it remained low 1n 2012 despite further growth in
both numbers of clients and funds under management
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St James’s Place Foundation

The St James's Place Foundatton was established in 1992,
in the same year that the Group began trading and support
for the Foundation (and the underlying prineple of gning
back to those less fortunate in socictvy has always been

a core part of our culture The Foundation has grown
sigmficantly in the last 20 years and has become one ol
the most successful company charities in the UK [talso
enjoys considerable support from the S]P communuy, as
dcmonstrated from the results of the recent emplosce
survey where 96% of employees stated that they ‘felt
proud of thc work S]P does to help others through the
SJP Foundation’

20th Annrversary — a record year

To celebrate the 20th anninversary of the Foundation, the
Trustees challenged the SJP community to raise the record
sum of £4 million 1n 2012, a substantial increase on the
£3,062,000 raised 1n 2011 Each office was asked to
organise fundraising events and nearly everyone within the
5JP community playcd their part in helping the Foundation
reach (and exceed) the targct, whether by organising or
attending events, sponsoring others, or by contributing to
the Foundation through the regular giving scheme

Az s s0 olten the case, the S]P community considerably
exceeded the expectations of the Trustees by raising just
over £5 million 1n 2012 The Trustees wish to express therr
gratitude to vyervone who contributed to making the 20th
annnersary of the Foundation such a resounding success,
both 1n terms of funds raiscd and the support we were able
to prov ile to the vartous good causes that the Foundation
supports Inayear when surveys have suggested that
charutable contributions have reduced by around 20% duce
to the economic chmate, 1t 15 particularly pleasing that

St James's Place commumty has been able to increase its
charutable givoing by 69%

As in previous years, all funds raised by members of the
S5]P community were matched pound for pound by the
Company, thus doubling the impact of local fundraising
Ohver 80% of all Partners and employees continued to make
regular monthly donations out of their mcome or salary to
the Foundation and this type of longer-term support
enabled the Trustees to help charities over a longer period
via mulu-year grants Much of the remainder was raised
through the many events organised by our community
throughout the UK, wcluding,

St James’s Place plc

Everest Challenge

A team of 25 employees and Partners took part ina trek to
Everest Base Camp, with Roger Owen, one ot our
emplo)ceq, succcssfu"} c]lmbmg to the summit and the
team mggthcr raIsing 1n excess of £700,000

Palace to Palace 24 Hour Walk

A team of 117 walkers set off from Windsor Palace in May
wntent on walking 50 mules of the Thames Path and finishing
at Buckingham Palace within 24 hours, raising in excess of

£100,000

Cyele Challenge
97 cychists successfully rode over 500 kilomctres from
London to Reims 1n France raising over £270,000

Less strenuous activities included balls, quiz nights, fashion
shows and avariety of other events organised across the
country, providing hundreds of employ ces, Partners,
suppliers and friends with the opportunity to celebrate

20 yvears of the Foundation whilst ratsing additional funds
for good causes
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Supporting those most 1n need

In light of the record funds raised in 2012, the Foundation
was able to increase the support it gines to the chantable
sector, in a year that many charities are finding that they are
being forced 1o cut back on the services they ddwer duc to
budget cuts and the withdrawali of local gorernment funding

In 2012 the Foundation was able to donate over £3 8 million
to UK Registered Charities operating both in the UK and
overscas The Foundation also launched two major projects
designed to change the lives of many disadvantaged and
disablud young people, as well as those requiring palliative or
end of hfe care i the UK Further details are featured below

The Foundation also made a number of multi-vear
commuitments to vartous charities and (subject to the
satisfaction of various conditions) has made conditional
commitments of £3 4 million to various charities botween

2013 and 2015

Sportfor Good — Our Olympic Legacy

The first project Sport for Good, was imually inspired by

the 2012 Olympics and the social legacy” that was such a
significant part of the oniginal Olympicbid  The Foundation
aims to use sport as the *hook’ to help disadvantaged and
disabled young people across the UK In total the Foundation
has commuted £1,750,239 (over three years) and this support
will ¢cnable seven organisations to deepen and extend therr
work with more margmalised young people

The project has had considerable success in its first year,
with the following being achieved

— Ovser 5,000 young people engaged so far, working with
some of the mast disadvantaged young people 1n our
community

— Over £350,000 match-funding secured

~ Nearly 500 profcssional quahifications achieved

— Many young people helped to achieve the transition into

Coilcge or the w orkpia(:(.
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Hospice at Home Care

Research has shown that the majority of people recen ing
end of life or palliative care would prefer to be cared for at
home, but unfortunately this 1s otten not possible The
Foundauon has committed £900,000 oier three years to
the Hospice Movement with the first award dedicated to
helping indepondent hospices to develop and cxtend their
hospice at home services  The Foundation has linked with
Help the Hospices, the umbrella organisation for most of
the UK's adult hospices, supporting eight hospices in 2012
to improve the care they provide in the home and we are in
the process of choosing turther projects to support in 2013

Foundation Themes

I'he themes that gmdc the Foundation’s regular grant
making are chosen by the St James™s Place community and
currently those themes include,

— Supporting children and young people suffering from
illness, disability or disadhvantage,

— Supporting the hospices sector, and

— Supporting people with cancer

‘The majority of the projects the Foundation supports are
based 1n the UK, although around one third of funding 1s
focused overseas, mainly in Africa, Eastern Curope, India,
Nepal and Guatemala In 2012 the Foundation donated

£0 8 muillion to UK Registered Charitics operating overseas
and thus continucd our commitment to children Ining 1in
some of the most challenging parts of the world

In addition to the major projects summarised above, the
Foundation continues to support small to medium si7ed
charities that match our themes, and donated a total of
£0 9 million to 158 chariues through the small grants
programme, with grants ranging from a few hundred
pounds to up to £10,000

Plans for 2013

The Foundauon plans to build en the success achiesed in 2012
by continuing to support hundreds of charities operating in
the UK and overseas Plans are well underway to award a
major grant of orer £1 mullion in 2013, whilst at the same
ume expanding on the small grants that are so vital to the
charitable sector in these difficult times ' We have no doubt
that the S|P community will continue to support the
Foundation to achiese its objectives in 2013 and beyond
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Community Activities

SJP 15 mindful of 1ts role 1in cur local communities An
important element of the grants distributed from our
Foundation 1s focussed on charitres which are local to our
ofhces, and these are often supported by our employecs or
Partners as weil The Company also regularl) provides
support for local events, particularly 1n Cirencester, where
our Head Office 1s based Grants in 2012 have included a
signihcant donation to match fundraising for the restoration
project for the local church, and sponsorship of the local
outdoor swimming pool, which was at risk of closure

We are also prowd of the generous spirt of our employees
In our recent Emplovee Survey over 40% indicated that
they arc actively engaged 1n voluntcering 1n thear local
communities and we support them through our Employee
Volunteering programme Two examples demonstrating the
breadth of activity are

— two of our emp10)ces act as Trustees of Young
Gloucestershire (‘Young Glos’), the lcading voluntary
youth organisation 1n Gloucestershire, delhncring
high-quality programmes and training for vulnerable
young people, and

— staff 1n our Carencester office cntered into the Christmas
spirit by donating over 200 Christmas presents to the
County Community Projccts (CCPY Hamper Scamper
Appeal supporting disadsantaged chaldren in the county

However the central strand of actin 1ty in our local
communities s locussed on schools and col]cgcs The two
key mitiatines are

— Cirencester College has over 1,600 students between
the ages of 16 and 19 and our mamn involsement s 1n
providing support for the ‘Academy Programmes’, of
which there are five, each designed for students who
aspire to work n a particular market sector Wi regularly
support students with paid summer mternships and we
also provide extensive personal mentoring and business
coaching St James’s Place sponsors a number of awards
and continues to have representation on the various
Academv Boards at College and National levels We have
also been able 10 offer thirteen Academy students jobs
follow ing their graduation, as a direct result of our
relationship with the College

St James s Place plc

A recent Academy graduate, who completed an
Internship with us, went on to win a National student
award 1n 2012 He reflected on his internship and w rote
“The opportumty that was given to me to complete an
mnternship at St James's Place, and the support and
guidance you all provided me whilst I was there, was hie
changing for me, and [ believe this was true for the other
students and will be tor tuture students to come’

— Building on our position as one of the leading providers

of financial advice (for adults), we have started exploring
how we might also help young people learn to manage
thewr finances better During the year, nearly 50
olunteers from the Company participated in a full day
of activ1ties focussed on financial education at three local
secondary schools, benefitting nearly 500 pupils in

Year ten Ina parallel mitative, 12 members of staff have
deln cred shorter, hour long, financal education sessions
at a number of other local schools The feedback from
pupils and staft was very posionve, with over 97% of pupils
mdicating that they understood more about the fimancial
demands they will face as a young adult Asa result of the
success of these intiatives we are further deseloping this

offering i 2013

Finally, followng such a successtul Olvmynes, we

are pleased to be continming our sponsorship of the
Loughborough Unicraity Swimming programme

Qur support has enabled the squad to recuve additional
coaching, and, since our relationship started in 2007, the
team have medalled 1n all major UK and International
events including European, Commonwealth and World
Championships, as weli as the Olympics We are pleased
that our sponsorship of the programme will continue until
the 2016 Olympic Games
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Supphiers

S5t James's Place believes in treating all our stakeholders
fairly We also believe in the benefits to be gained from
building long-term relationships based on mutual trust
As aresult, many of our key supphers have been associated
with the Group for a number of years and we have been
able to cultnate very strong and mutually beneficial
relationships Key examples of the posiuve and benefical
relationships we hae been able to establish with major
supphers are those with our providers of outsourced
admimistration services, Prudential, Capita, IFDS and
State Street

More generally, we expcet all our suppliers to act in
accordance with the standards embedded 1n our culture,
and will undertakc due diligence on new sersice providers
to ensure we are comfortable with their approach to soaallv
responsible management We are particularly pleased that
many of our supphiers share our desire to make a positive
and lasting difference to the lives of those less tortunate
than oursehes, and we are very gratetul to all those who
have provided support to the St James’s Place Foundation,
both through donations and through actin e participation in
many of the events

St James’s Place has always placed grear reliance on the
support of third party suppliers and the continued success of
our business reflects, amongst other things, our success in
culmatmg and managing successful relationships with
supphers We are pleased to have signed up to the Prompt
Payment Code which 1s encouraged by the Department of
Business Innovation and Skills (BIS) and demonstrates a
commitment to good practice between orgamsations and
their suppliers Signatories to the Code commut to paying
their suppliers within agreed and clearly defined terms, and
commut also to ensuring that there 1s a proper process for
deahing with any 1ssues that may arise
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QOur Investments

As a result of the success of cur business, St James's Place 15
now imvesting over £34 billion of assets on behalf of our
chents This gnves us influence on stockmarkets and we
recognise our responsibility for managing these imvestments
in a socially responuble fashion

As described under the section Qur Business Model and
Strateg}, our imestment mManagement approach 15 at the
heart of our tnvestment proposition to dients, and this
involves an active approach to selecting and monitoring
fund managers from around the world, whilst retaining
appropriate ov er51ght responsibihities Our fund managers
will cach have their own standards for how they manage
their portfolios responsibly, but as part of our oversight we
require that they all meet a minimum requirement

The Stewardship Code 1s a set of principles or guidelines
first released in 2010 and updated 1n 2012 by the Financial
Reporting Council, directed at institutional investors who
hold voung nights in United Kingdom companies Its
principal aim 15 to make 1nstituttonal investors, who manage
other people’s money, actively engage in corporate
governance in the interests of their bencficiaries (the
shareholders) St James’s Place requires that our fund
managers should comply with these principles m full and as
part of our oversight of the fund managers we undertake a
process of monitoring annually
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The Environment

St James's Place 1s commuitted to managing the Group’s emvironmental impact through cffective management of our energs
svstems, travel, water usage and waste rcqcllng We recognise the effcct our business can have on climate change and we
take a positive approach to managing our business activities, whilst at the same ume encouraging all Partners and staff to
consider their own personal impact on the environment

We measure our emvironmental data from October to September and the follow ing tables summarise both our absolute and
normalised CO_e Emisstons 1n recent years for our core business actimities, using 2012 conserston rates as provided by
DEFRA for all our emission categories We also report on levels of paper recycled and water usage  The data has been
checked and verified by Ecometrica

Althnugh gmwth 1n staff numbers has causcd us to miss our target for Absolute Emissions related to business travel, we are
already q1gmﬁcantly ahead of our three year targets on the key Normalised Emussions basis A reduction in the number of
buildings has contributed to the reduction 1n water usage, while the reduction in paper recsvcled reflects a reduction in
paper usage as a consequence of the introduction of our Electronic Business Submission system

I. Absolute Emissions (Core business operatmns)

2010 2011 2012 2012 Targat % Changeon 3 YR Target
Ycar to End September Tonnts COL Tonnes COe Topnes COL Tonnes COe 2010 2010 2013
Energy 2,954 2,947 2,683 2,907 -9 2% -4 0%
Business Travel 1,137 1,195 1,245 1,117 +9 5% -3 0%
Waste il6 112 i1 113 -4 3% -5 0%
Total Tonnes 4207 4254 4039 4137  40%  -34%

COpe= Carbon Dioxide cqunalent — Methane and Nitric Aeid are comverted to Carbon Dioxide
Current targets were sct in 2010 for three years and will be reviewed agam in 2013

Absolute

2000 2011 2012 change on

Year wo Lnd Seplember Tennes Tonnes Tonnes 010
Paper Recycled 194 195 176 -9 3%
Absolute

2010 Cubic 2011 Culie 2012 Cubic changc on

Year to End September Metres Metres Metres 2010
Water usage 6.371 7,856 6,579  +33%

§t James s Place plc Registred No 03183415
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2 Normahsed Emisstons (Full Ttme Employees (FTE)/Absolute tonnes quO‘,e)

2010 FTE/ 2011 FTE/ 2012FTE/ 2012 Target % Change 3 YR Target

Year to End Suptember COzc COLC COxc  FTE/CO,e On 2010 2014 2013
Energy 1992 1 869 1 611 1 899 19 1% -8 0%
Business Travel 1638 1578 1467 1 505 -10 4% -11 0%
Waste 0078 0071 0067 0074 -14 1% -10 0%
Total Tonnes 3708 3518 3145 3478 -15 2% -8 9%

Normalised

2010 2011 2012 change. on
Year to knd September Tonnes Tonnes Tonnes 2010
Paper Recveled 013 0124 0105 -19 8%

Normalised

2010 Cutue 2011 Cubie 2012 Cubie change on

Year to End Septembar Metres Mutres Metres 2010
Water used 4 296 4 982 3549 -8 1%
Year to Fod Scptember 2010 2011 2012 2012 Target
FTE (Energy/ Wastc) 1,483 1,577 1,666 1,531
ETE (Business Travel) 694 757 849 742

Other Inttiatives

Carbon offsetting — Recognising that we arc unable to reduce our carbon emissions to a sero level while energy 15 primanly
sourced from fossil fuels, we have made arrangements to offset our consumption through the purchase of carbon credits
through the Carbon Neutral Company

Electronic sharcholder communicattons — We remain a member of the €lree imuative (w ww eTreeuk com), which
encourages shareholders to recene electronic communications, and 1s run in association with the Woodland Trust
‘Trec for All" campaign

More information about our Environmental Pohcy and activity can be found on our website at www s)p co uk
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Board of Directors

Chulrman

(N}

Charlcs yoined the Board in January 2010 as
an indepundunt Non-executn e Director and
was appothd Non-executive Chairman with
flect from January 2012 1e 1s Chair of the
Nomination Commuttec Charles s
Non-uxecutive Chairman of ICAP plc and
CPP Group ple and a Non-c x4 cutive Diarector
of Calcdonia Investments ple He has
extensive board and senior management
wxperience in the UK and overscas and has
more than thirty years of expericnce in the
financial sers1cus sector Charles has
previously served on the boards of Uinited
Business Media ple, Provident Finanetal ple
and MAl plc Charles graduatcd in History
and Law from Trinity Hall, Cambridge and
has an MA in Law He qualificd as a sohcitor
n 1972

—
David Bellamy
Chicf Eaecutive

David joined the Company in 1991 and was
appointed to the Board in 1997, before
becoming Chief Exccutine in 2007 He
previously fulfilled a numbwr of roles at

St James's Place including Group Operattons
Dircctor and Managing Dircctor Dasid has
worked in the financial suryvices industry since
1973 and 15 a Trustee of the §t James's Place
Foundation

lan Gascs Ii:__:lll'

Managing Director

lan 1s the Managing Director responsible for
the management and development of the
Partnershup He has worked in the financial
services industry since 1986 and joined the
Company in 1991 He was apponted to the
Board 10 2003 He has a degree from
Lancaster University and an MA from
Leicester University Tan s a Trustee of the
St James™s Place Foundation

T

Andrew Croll
('hh_’[‘.l"hmm'iuf (_]]ﬁ'( or

Androw joined the Company in 1993 and has
been Chicf Frnancial Officer since 2004 Ele
qualified as a Chartered Accountant at
Pricewaterhousc Coopers 1in 1988 and has a
(]l..gl'(.(: n Accounting and Lconomics from
Southampton Unnersity Andrew 1s a lrustee
of the 5t James's Piace Foundation

Pravid Lamlb

Manuging Director
SR

)

David jomned the Company in 1992 and was
appointed to the Board 1n 2007 David s the
Managing Director with responsibility for
Operations, including Client Scrvices,
Markt_tmg, Businuss Development and the
Group's fund range Heisa mumber of the
[nvestment Commuttee and a Trustee of the
St James's Place Foundauon David s alsoa
Director of the Assoctauon of Prinate Client
Investment Managers and Stockbrokers and a
member of the Counail for the CBI (South
West) He s a graduate of City Unnersits,
London and a Fellow of the Insutute of

Ker Actuaries
{A) — Member of the Audit Commitzee

{I) — Member of the Imestment Commtiee

{N) — Member of the Nomunauen Commuttee

(R) — Member of the Risk Commuttee

{Rem) — Member qfthe Bemunerarton Committee
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sarah Bates

Independent Non-cwecuwtive Directer

(1) (Rem)

Sarah joined the Board as an indcpundent
Non-exceutne Director 1n 2004 and hecame
Senior Indupendent Director in January 2012
She ts Chair of the Remuncration Comnutted
and 1s a member of the Investment
Comemutte: Sarah has over thirty years
tmvestment experiened and s Chairman of the
] P Morgan Amcrican Investment Trust ple,
Non-¢ xecutive and semor indupendent
Director of Develapment Secunitics phe and a
Non-¢xcutive Director of three othor hsted
investment trusts Sarah1s Chairman of Stena
Lane (UK) Pension Fund Trustces, of Rutley
Russia Property Fund and of the Cancer
Research UK Pension Fund [nvestment
Committee Sarah 15 also an advisor to, or
member of, various other tnmvcstment
committees and was formerly Chairman of
the Assomation of Investment Companies
Sarah graduated in Philosophy and | aw from
Trimty Hall, Cambridge and has an MBA
from the London Business School

lain Cornish

Independem Non-cvecutive Director

() (R) (N}

[ain joined the Board as an 1indcpundent
Non-executise Director in October 2011 He
1s Chairman of the Audit Commintee and a
member of the Risk and Nomnation
Comrmuttees lain has considerable board and
senior management experience and was Chief
Executne of the Yorkshire Building Sociery
from July 2003 unul December 2011, having
toined the Society tn 1992 lainisa

Non executive Director of Vanquis Bank
Limited and also scrved as a member of the
FSA Practitioner Panel from 2007 to 2011,
becomang Charrman i 2009 Prior to joining
the Socicty, he was a Semior Consultant in
KPMG's Strategy Services Consultancy
Practice, speciahising in bartking and finance
sector consuhanc} PrD]tCtS
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Vivian Bazalgetie

Independent Non-eecutive Director

(1) (Rem) (4)

Vivian joined the Board in July 2011 as an
independent Nen-cxccutive Director and 1s
Chairman of the Investment Committee He
15 also a mumber of the Remuneration and
Audit Commuttces Vivian has a wealth of
board and senior management experience and
has over thirty years’ experience of
imvestment markets He 1s a Non-executine
Iirector of Henderson I{lgh Income Frust
plc, Brunner lavestmem Trust ple and
Perpetual Income & Grow th Imvestment Trust
plc Vivian 15 currently Vice Chairman of the
Governors of Dulwich Cotlege, a Member of
the Advisory Board of Greunwich Hospital
and advises the BAF Systems Ple Punsion
Fund and the Imestment Commutice of thy
Nuffie Id Foundation Vivian has an Caglish
d(.gFLL from Cambrldg(,

Mike Power

{ndependent Non-cwentive Director

{A) (R} (N)

Mike joined the Board as an independunt
Non-executive Director in 2005 He charirs
the Risk Committee, 1s a member of the
Audit and Nommnation Commitices and sits
on the Board of St James's Place International
where he also chairs the Comphance and Risk
Committee He s Profussor of Accounting ag
the l.ondon School of E.conomics and Political
Science and Director of the Centre for
Analvsis of Risk and Regulauon Heisa
Edllow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, an
Associate of the UK Chartered Institute of
Faxation and an Honorary Fellow of the
Institute of Risk Management Mike holds
honorary doctorates from the Unnersites of
Uppsala and $t Gallen and he lectures and

w rites on risk management, regulation and
CDmPI lance 1ssucs

‘.“
l

Steve Colsell

Non-cweutive Director

Stuve was appointed to the Board as a

non independent Non-txecutive Director in
2009 to represent Lloyds Banking Group plc
He 1s Finance Director of Group Strategic
Initiatives, Wealth, Assct Finance &
International Banking at [ loyds Banking
Group Stove has held a number of sentor
finance and strategy roles in the hfc, general
insurance, banking and consumcr finance
sectors Huois a Fellow of the Institute of
Actuaries and a graduate of Impenal College,
London

Bareness Hheateroft
Indepemdens Non-evecutive Divector

{R} (Rem)

Baroness Wheatcroft was appomted to the
Board as an independint Non-cxecutive
Drrector in April 2012 and 15 a member of the
House of Lords She is currently a Non-
exccutine Durector of FIAT S p A and of the
Association of Large Visitor Attractions
Baroness Wheateroft has considerable
expiricnce of the media and yournalism and
was prextoush Editor-in-Chiefl at the Wall
Street Journal, Furope, a former Editor of the
Sunday Telegraph and was Business and Ciny
Editor of The Times between 1997 and 2006
She has been a Non-executne [Director of
Barclays Group plc and Shafteshury ple and
acts as an adhisor to, or member of, varnious
other hodies, mcludmg the British Museum,
the UK/ India Round Table and Policy
Exchangc
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Directors’ Report

The Dircctors present their Report and the Annual Report and
Accounts and the audited consolidated Financial Statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012

Business Review
The information that tulhls the Companies Act requirements of
the Business Review can be found i the follow ng sections

The Risk and Risk
Management section on pages

31 and 32

Principal risks and
uncertaintics

Performance and development  Chudf Exccutive’s Statement
of the business during the year on pages 4 to 6, the Chief

and position at the end of the  Financial Officer’s Report

year on pages 12 to 14 and the
Finanaal Review on pagus
16 to 29

Chief Exccutive's Statement
on pages 5 and 6, the Chief
Financial Officer’s Report

on page 14, and the Financial
Review on pages 19, 25 and 27

Infoermation on hikely future
desvelopments

Dircctors” and Officers’
Indemnity and Insurance

The Corporate Governance
Report on page 54

Financial and non-financial Key Performance Indicators

KPls on pages 10 and 11

Environmental, employee and  The Corporate Social
social community matters Responsibility Report on

pages 34 to 43

Contractual or other Page 48
arrangements cssential to the
business of the Company

Results and Dhividends
The consolidated statement of comprehensie income 15 on
page 86 and profit for the financial year attributable to equity

shareholders amounted to £107 | million An interim dnidend of

4 25 pence per share, which equates to £21 4 million, was paid
on 19 September 2012 (2011 3 2 pence per share/£15 7 million)
The Directors recommend that sharcholders approve a final
dividend of 6 39 pence per share, which equates to £32 4 million
(2011 final dinidend of 4 8 pence per share/£23 7 million) 10 be
paid on 24 May 2013 to shareholders on the register at the close
of business on 12 Apnil 2013

The Directors introduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (‘DRP")
n 2012 Details of the DR scheme are set out on page 158

Status of Company

The Company 1s registered as a public hmited company under the
Companies Act 2006

46 St James s Place plc

Principal Activities

The Company 1s a financral services holding company, with
principal mterests in the provision of wealth management advice
and services to the clients of the Group A full review of the
activities of the Group and the basis on which the Company
generates or preserves value over the longer term 1s grven m the
Chicf Executive’s Statement on pages4to 6

Substantial Shareholders

As at 27 February 2013, the Company had been notified of the
follow ing interests disclosed to the Company under Disclosure
and Transparency Rule 5

Lloyds Banking Group ple ('LBG’) 288,935,818 (56 894%)
Prudennal plc 28,047,643 (5 53%)
Details of the relationship agreement between Lloyds Banking
Group plcand the Company are set out on page 54

The interests of the Directors, theirr families and any connected
persons in the 1ssued share capital of the Company are shown on
page 81

Share Capital

Structure of the Company’s Capital

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s 1ssucd and fully paid up
share capital was 506,831,147 ordinary shares of 15 pence each
All ordinary shares are quoted on the London Stock Exchange
and can be held 1in uncertificated form via CREST Details of the
movement 1n the 1ssued share capital during the year are provided
in Note 29 to the financial statements on page 129

Articles of Assocration

The full rights and obligattons attaching to the ordinary shares of
the Company are set out 1n the Articles of Association The
articles can be amended by a special resolution of the members of
the Company and copies can be obtained from Companies House
Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to recen e the Company’s
Reports and Accounts, attend, speak and exercise voting rights
and appoint proxies to attend general mectings

Voting Rights

At any General Meeting, on a show ol hands, each member who
1s present 1n person has one vote and every proxy present who has
been duby appointed by a member entitled to vote on a resolution
has one vote On a poll, every member who 15 present in person
or by proxy shall have one vote for every share of which he 1s

the holder

Forms appotnting a proxy sent by the Company to shareholders,
m relauon to any General Meeting, must be recened by the
Company or their registrars not less than 48 hours before the
time appotnted for holding of the meeting or adjourned meeting

Registered No 03183415




Restrictions on Voting Rights

If any shareholder has been sent a notice by the Company under
Section 793 of the Companies Act 2006 and faled to supply the
relesant information for a period of 14 days, then the sharcholder
may not (for so long as the default continues) be entitled to attend
or vote either personally or by proxy at a sharcholders” meeting,
or to exercise any other right conferred by membership in
relation to shareholders” mectings

If those default shares represent at least 0 25% of their class, any
dividend payab]c In respect of the shares will be withheld by the
Company and (subject to certain himited exceptions) no transfer,
other than an excepted transfer, of any shares held by the member
mn cernificated form will be registered

Restrictrons on Share Trangfers

There are restricuions on share transfers, all ol which are set out
in the Articles of Association Restrictions include transfers made
in favour of more than four jont helders and transfers held in
certihicated form Directors may decline to recognise a transfer,
unless 1t 15 1n respect of only one class of share and lodged (and
duly stamped) with the Transfer Office  [he Directors may also
refuse to register any transfer of shares held in certificated form
which are not fully pard Directors may also choose to decline
requests for share transfers from a US Person {as defined under
Regulation § of the United States Securities Act 1933) that would
cause the aggregate number of beneficial owners of 1ssued shares
who are US Persons to exceed 70

The registration of transfers may be suspended at such times
and for such periods {not exceeding 30 days 1n any year) as the
Drrectors may from time 1o time determine in respect of any
class of shares

The Company 1s not anare of any agrecments between
sharcholders that restrict the transfer of shares or voting nights
attached to the shares

Directors

Details of the Directors as at 27 Februarv 2013 and their
blograph:es are shown on pages 44 and 45 Brief particulars of the
Directors’ membership of the Board commuttees are contamed in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 50 to 64

Baroness Wheatcroft was appointed to the Board as an
independent Non-executive Director on 2 April 2012 and was
elected by sharcholders at the AGM on 8 Mav 2012

Roger Walsom resigned from the Board on 8 May 2012

The Company’s current Articles of Association require that any
Dircctor appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy must
stand for reappointment at the next Annual General Mecung and
that, at each Annual General Meeting, all those Directors who
were elected or last re-elected at or before the Annual General
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Meeting held in the third calendar year before the current ycar,
shall retire from office by rotation Directors can be removed
from office by an ordinary resolution of shareholders or in certam
other circumstances as set out 1n the Articles of Association

In accordance with the recommendations of the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the whole Board of Dircciors will retire by
rotation at the AGM in 2013 Before a Director 1s proposed for
re-clection by sharcholders, the Chairman considers whether his
or her performance continues to be effectinc and whether they
demonstrate commitment to the role The Chairman is pleased o
confirm that, following the performance evalvation referred to
on page 52, the Directors seeking re-election continue to make a
valuable contribution to the effective functiening of the Board
and to the appropriate muix of skills and experience needed by the
Board and 1ts committees The Chairman also confirms that the
Directors have demonstrated their continued commitment to
these roles and continue to dedicate sufficient time to thair

duties The Board therefore recommends that those Directors
retiring at the forthcoming AGM should be re-elected Further
details on the Directors are set outin the Directors biographies
on pages 44 and 45 and in the Notice of Meeting

The Board 1s recommending the articles be amecnded at the 2013
AGM 1o ensure that the articles reflect the provisions of the

UK Corporate Governance Code that all the Directors offer
themselves for re-clection annually A furthcr explanation of the
changcs proposed to the Articles of Association 1s contained 1n
the Notice of Meeting

Except as stated 1n the Directors’ Rumuncration Report, no
Director has, or has had during the vear under review, any
material interest 1n any contract or arrangement with the
Company or any of 1ts subsidiarics Details of all Executive
Directors’ Scrvice Contracts are set out 1n the Remuneration

Report on page 72

The Company does not have agreements with any Director or
emplovee that would provide compensation for loss of ofhice or
employment resuling from a takeover, except that provisions in
the Company’s share schumcs may, in certain circumstances,
causc share awards grantcd to emplovees under such schemes to
vest on a takeover

Power of the Directors

The Directors are responsible for managing the busmess of the
Company and their powers are subject to any regulations of the
articles, to the provisions of the Statutes and to such regulations
as may be prescribed by Special Resolution of the Company

The Company's Articles of Association contain, for example,
specific provisions and restrictions concerning the Company’s
power to borrow money They also proside that directors have
the pow er to allot unissucd shares, up to pre-determined levels
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set and approved by shareholders i general meetings This also
applics to the directors allotung equity securities otherwise than
1in accordance with statutory pre-emption rules

Creditors’ Payment Policy

The payment of supphier invoices 1s made on the Company s behalf
by 5t James’s Place Management Services Limited {S]PMS'),

a subsidiary company The Company has signed up to the
Department for Business, Innovation and Skills’ Prompt Pay ment
Code, a copy of which can be obtained from the Prompt Payment
Code webaite at ww w promptpaymentcode orguk $JPMS's
average number of days purchases outstanding 1n respect of trade
creditors at 31 December 2012 was 17 days (2011 20 days)

Charitable and Political Donations

Charitable contributions made by the Group to the St James’s
Place Foundation during the year totalled £2,439,000

(2011 £1,400,000) Contributions during the year to other
charitable orgamsations totalled £71,000 (2011 £63,000) A Lst
of charitable donations made by the Foundation is available on
request Further detarls on the Foundatton are included in the
Corporate Sccial Responsibility Report on pages 38 and 39

It 15 the Group’s policy not to make any donations to pohucal
parties withun the meaning of the definitions set out in the
Politcal Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000 and
sections 362 to 379 of the Companies Act 2006 The Group did
not make any pohtical donations during the year (2011 Nil)

Employees

Full details of the Group’s approach to employce imolvement,
traning, development and communication can be found in the
Corporate. Social Responsibility Report on page 36

Bribery Act 2010

During the year, the Company undertook an annual review to
ensure that it has adequate palicies and procedures in place to
present bribery and corruption This included review ng and
updatmg the Brlber} Act Policy Statement, along with other
related policies and procedures, and providing traming to
employees and Partners The Bribery Act Policy Statement was
first 1ssued 1n 2011 and 15 available to all cmployees and Partners
vta the Company s intranet

Significant Contracts and Change of Control

The Company has a number of contractual arrangements
which 1t considers essential to the business of the Company
Specifically, these are committed loan facthities from a
number of banks and arrangements with third party providers
of administration seryices

A change of COnU’O] of the Compan) ma} cause some agreemems

to which the Company 1s party to alter or terminate These
include bank facihty agreements and employec share plans
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The group had commuitted facilities totalhing £70 8 million as at
27 February 2013 which contain clauses which require lender
consent for any change of control Should consent not be gnen,
a change of control would trigger mandatory prepayment of
the facilities

All of the Company s employee share plans contam provisions
relating to a change of control Qutstanding awards and options
may vest and become exercisable on a change of control, subject
where appropriate to the satisfaction of amy pcrformance
condittons at that ume and pro-ratung of awards

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s Annual General Mecting will be held on 21 May
2013 at The Royal Aceronautical Society, 4 Hamilton Place,
London W1] 7BQ) at 11 00am

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the Annual General Mectuing in 2012, sharcholders granted
authority to the Directors for the purchase by the Company of its
own shares The authority will expire at the cnd of the Annual
General Meeting to be held 1n 2013, or 18 months from the date
granted, whichever 1s earlier During the year, the Company did
not purchase any of 1ts own ordinary sharcs The Dircctors will
propose the rencwal of the authority to purchase own shares at
the forthcoming Annual General Mceting

Going Concern

The Company s busmess actinites, together with the factors
likely to affect 1ts future development, performance and position
are set out in the Business Review, as referred to on page 46

The financial position of the Company, its cash flows, liquidity
positton and borrowing faciliies are described in the Frnancial
Review on pages 16 to 29 [n addition, the Notes on pages 113
and pages 119 and 120 and the Risk and Risk Management section
on pages 30 to 33 include the Company's objectnves, policies and
processes for managing ws capital, its financial risk management
objectives, details of its financial instruments and 1ts exposures to

credit nisk and hquidity

As shown on page 26 of the Financal Review, the Group’s capital
position 15 strong and well 1n excess of regulator) requirements
The long-term nature of the business results in considerable
positne cash flows, arising from existing business Asa
consequence, the Directors beheve that the Company 15 w el
placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully

The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to continue 1n business
for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing the accounts Further
information on the basis of preparation of these accounts can be
seen in Note | to both the Consolidated Accounts under
Internattonal Financial Reporung Standards and Parent Company
Accounts on UK GAAP basis
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Statement of Dhrectors’ Responsibilities
This statement 15 st out 1n the Corporate Governance Report on
page 64 The complete Corporate Governance Report 1s set out

on pages 50 to 64

Disclosure of Information to Auditors

Each of the Directors, at the date of approval of this report,

confirms that

— So far as each Director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit
information of which the auditors are unaware, and

— Each Director has taken all reasonable steps to ascertain
relevant audit information and ensure that the auditors are
aware of such information

This confirmation 1s grven and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of <418 of the Companics

Act 2006

Independent Auditors

The auditors PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have indicated their
willingnuss to continue n ofhce and a Resolution thar they be
re-appointed untl the end of the 2014 Annual General Meeting
will be put to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
21 May 2013

On behalf of the Board

Yuso— N CO

D Bellamy A Croft
Chicf Exceunrve Chief Fanancial Qfficer
27 February 2013
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Good governance 1s a cornerstone of a successful and sustamable company St James’s Place 1s commtted
to good corporate governance across the Group, for which the Board 1s accountable Thus report explains
the approach the Company has taken to apply the principles and provisions set out in the UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Codc) and corporate governance activities during 2012

'/M.. _4,\\\\\\\\\.\\\

Charles Gregson

Succession Planning

Building on the changes made 1n 2011, we were dehighted to
welcome Baroness Wheatcroft to the Board in Aprl Her
substantial business and media experience has further
strengthened the wide range of skills on the Board, as well
as increasing the Board’s diversity

During 2013 we plan to continue cur policy of gradually

- o
refreshing the Board by the appointment of additional Non-
executive Directors, provided that suitable candidates can be
identified by the Nomination Committee

As regards the four Executive Directors, the Board do not
anticipate the need for any changes in the immediate futuce to the
existing successful team led by David Bellamy However, both the
Board and the Nomunation Commitiee keep succession planning
under regular review, with a view to ensuring that senior
managers are being deseloped appropriately and we have the right
skills around the table to drive forw ard the continued success of
the Group

Board Effectiy eness Review

In 2012 we appointed Independent Audnt once again to facilitate
an exaluation of the effectineness of the Board and its Committees,
largel} to review whether the various changes made n 2011
(follow ing their last review) had bedded in well and had enhanced
the discussions around the Board table The findings of Independent
Audit were positive and further detail on the review process and
findings can be found on page 52
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Corporate Governance Deselopments

Shareholders will see that the usual format of the Remuneration
Report on pages 65 to 83 has changed this year as the Board

has sought to be an early adopter of the Government’s draft
legislation relating to remuneration reporting Where practical
we have implemented a year carly the various changes set out in
the draft legislation, although as the old legislation has yet to be
repealed, the remuncration report 1s considerably longer than in
recent years However, we hope that sharcholders will appreciate
the clarity of the reviscd format and the additional disclosures we
haye made

We havc also adopted carly some of the changes recommended by
the Financial Reporting Council relating to Audit Commuttee
disclosurcs, more detarls of which are set out in the Report of the
Audit Committee on page 58

We will continue to strive to adopt best practice in relation to our
Report and Accounts disclosures where it 1s practical to do so

CN I

Charles Gregson

Charrman

27 February 2013
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Comphance with the UK Corporate Governance Code
St James’s Place 1s committed to high standards of corporate
governance and supports the principles set out in the Code The
Listing Rules require UK listed companies to state whether thC)
have comphed with the provisions of the Code during the year
The Board considers that the Company has achicyved compliance
with all of the prosisions of the Code throughout the financial
year, except in relatton to the constitution of the Audht
Commattee for the first three months of 2012, during which
Charles Gregson remaimed a member of the Audit Commuttec
Charles Gregson is considered by the Code to be non-
indcpendent, follow ing his appointment as Chairman of the
Company i January 2012 The membership of the Audit (and
Dthu') Commuttees was reviewed follow ing the appomtment of
Baroness Wheatcroft to the Board in April 2012 and as a result,
Vnian Ba/a]gctt(, replaced Charles Gregson on the Audit
Committee on 8 May 2012 The Board considered that it was
important for the continued clectin cness of the Audit Commuttee
for Charles Gregson to remain a member of the Commuttee up
until that time Details of how the Company has applied the
principles of the Code are set out in thus report, other than the
principles of the Code relating to remuneration, which are set out
in the Remuneration Report on page 66

information relating to substantial sharcholdings, restrictions on
voting rights, powers of the Directors, appointment of Directors
and the authority 1o purchase ow n shares are disclosed within the
Directors’ Report on pages 46 to 49 The fundamental clements
of the Company’s business model are set out within the Business
Review on pages 8 to 9

The Board

The Board 1s responsible for providing entreprencurial leadership
and dircetion to the Company and agrees the Company s strategic
aims, viston and values The Board also aims to ensure that
adequatc controls arc in place and the necessary financiai and
human resources to deliner value to sharcholders and the wider
community of individuals and organisations which benefit from the
Company 's actin ities

There were six formal Board mectings during the year, plus a full
day Board Strategy meeting A table detailing the Directors’
attendance at Board mcetings can be found on page 53

In advance of each meeting, all members of the Board are
supphied with an agenda and pack containing reports and
management information on current trading, operational 1ssues,
comphance, risk, accounting and financial matters The Chairs of
the various committees of the Board also report to the Board at
cach Board meeting and copies of committee mecting minutes
arcincluded in Board packs, for snformation purposes

Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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The Board has a format schedule of matters speafically reserved
for 1t and 1ts primary responsihilities include

— Detcrmiming the overall stratgy of the Company,

— Ensuring that the Company s operations arc w ell managed and
Proper succession plans are 1n place,

— Ruviewing major transactions or imitiatises proposed by the
Exccutine Directors,

— Implementing appropreate corporate gavernance proccedures,

— Pertodically review ing the results and operations of the
Company,

— Ensuring that proper accounting records are mamtained and
adequate controls are 1n place to safeguard the assets of the
Company from fraud and orher significant risks,

— ldenufying and managing risk, and

— Deaiding the Company’s policy on charitable and
pohucal denations

Operational matters arc delegated to management via the Board'’s
Exccutne Committee, comprising the Executive Directors of the
Board and nternally referred to as the Executive Board The
Executne Board 1s responsible for implementing the Group's
business plan objectives, cnsuring that the necessary resources
are put 1n place to achivve those objuctives and managing the
day-10-day operational activities of the Group

A copy of the schedule of matters reserved for the Board and the
terms of refurence of the Executive Board can be found on the
corporate wchsite at www sjp co uk

The Company maintains a Board Control Manual w hich scts out
the primary policy and deaision-making mechanisms within the
Company The manual includes the terms of reference for the
various sub-commuttees of the Board, the Company’s risk policies
and risk appeuite statement In addion, detailed job descriptions
for each Executne 1s included, as weltas a general job description
outlining the responsibilities of the Non-executne Directors The
Board Control Manual 1s updated by the Company Secrctary and
approved by the Audit Committee onan annual basis

The Roles of the Chairman and Chiefl Executive

The division of responsibiiities between the Chairman of the
Board, Charles Gregson, and the Chiefl Executive, David Bellamy,
arc clearly defined and documented No single Director has
unfettered powers of'(lemsnon-makmg The Chairman s
responsible for leadership of the Boardand for ensuring the
continued effectiveness of the Board and for setting 1ts agenda

s0 that adequate time 1s av atlable for substantive discussion on
strategic ssues The Chairman also promotes effective
communication between the Executn e and Non-executnne
Directors and with sharcholders generally. The Chief Excoutine’s
primary responsibility 1s to manage the Company v1a the
executine management team and implement the strategies
adopted by the Board
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The Senior Independent Director

Sarah Bates 1s the Sentor Independent Director, having succecded
Michael Sorkin in January 2012 following his retirement from the
Board The Senior Independent Director acts as a sounding board
for the Non-executive Directors and provides feedback to the
Chairman on his pertormance follow ing the Board evaluation
Sarah 15 available to meet with sharcholders on request and to
ensure that the Board 1s aware of sharcholder concerns not
resolved through the normal channdls for imestor
communication

Directors and Directors’ Independence

The Board currently consists of a Non-cxecutine Chairman, four
Exceutive Directors, five independent Non-executive Directors
and one non-independent Non-executine Director, being Steve
Colsdll, who was nominated by the Company’s largest
sharcholder, Lloyds Banking Group ple Biographical details of
all the Directors can be found on pages 44 and 45 The terms
and conditions of appomtment of the Non-cxecutine Directors
are available on request and will be available lor inspection at
the Annual General Meeting

Charles Gregson was appointed as Non-executive Charrman on
1 January 2012, following the resignation of former Exccutne
Chairman, Mike Wilson, who retired from the Board on

31 December 2011 The Chairman was deemed independent on
appointment as a Non-executine Director 1n 2010 Baroness
Wheatcrolt jorned the Board as an independent Non-exccutne
Director wih effect from 2 April 2012 Roger Walsom resigned
trom the Board on 8 May 2012

The quality of indin idual Directors and the Board’s overall
composition 1s a kev contributor to the Board's effcctineness
Committee memborship 1s reviewed annualh to ensure skills are
refreshed over time [he Board is satisfied that all Directors have
sufficient time to devote to their roles

When determining whether a Non-executne Director 1s
independent, the Board considers cach individual against the
critenia set out 1n the Code and also considers how they conduct
themseles 1n Board mectings, including how they exercise
Judgement and mdependent thinking Taking these factors into
account, the Board belies s that all Non-executive Directors
cantinued to demonstrate their independence throughout the vear

Induction and Continuing Professional Development
On joining the Board, an appropriate induction programme 1s set
up to enable the new Director to meet senior management,
understand the business and future strategy, the main risks
potentiatly affecting the Group, visit office locations and speak
directly to Partners and staff around the country
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During the year, the Chairman and the Company Sceretary put
n place an induction programme for Baroness Wheatcroft and
continuing professional deselopment for all Directors, hascd on
their indivdual requirements In addition, ad hoc training was
set up in the year to deal with individual requests and the
Non-cxecutive Directors are able to attend seminars or
conlerences which they consider will assist them i carrying out
their dutics Non-executn e Directors are briefod on the views of
major sharcholdcrs at Board meetings and have an opportuniy to
mect with shareholders, as necessary

DMrectors are regularly updated on their duties and
responsibilities and have access to the advice of the Company
Secrctary, as well as independent professional advice where
nceded in furtherance of thar duties Further traming 1s made
available, as necessars, to cnsurc that the whole Board 1s kept
abreast of rclcvant des elopments (such as regulatory changes)
applicable to thur roles Topical 1ssues are addressed prior to
Board meetings by way of a presentation trom a member of the
senior management team During 2012, the Company Sccretary
and other senior executn s updated the Board on an array of
pertincnt topics, such as the changes being brought into force by
the FSA's Retail Distribution Review, the Solvency Il regime and
the results of chient and employce surveys

Board Evaluation

The Board has commutted to undertaking externally-led
evaluations every three years in accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code Tollowing the externally led evaluation carned
out by Independent Audit Linited m 2011 {the results of which
were summarised in last year’s Report and Accounts) it was
decided to appoint Independent Audit to carry out a lurther more
Limited review in 2012, assessing the effcctiveness of the varous
changes made to the compaosition and operation of the Board and 1ts
committees since the review in 2011

Independent Audit Limited has not undertaken any other work
for the Group, other than thc Board cvaluations in 2011 and
2012, and carried out the 2012 review by undertaking
confidential interviews with all the Directors and the Company
Secretary The evaluation was deslgncd to assess the quality of
the Board's decision making and 1ts overall contribution 1o, and
impact on, the long-term health and success of the Company,
and 1ts preparation for future challenges

The review indicated that, whilst the Board had undergone
considerable change 1n the last vear, these changcs had been
handled smoothly and had improsed the discussions, dnersity
and dynarmes of the Board [n addition, the new Chairman had
adapted to his new role on the Board well, striking a good
balance betwcen allowng enough time for debate and discussion,
whilst maintaining pace and momentum and ensuring each
Director has the opportunity to contribute therr views
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As part of the evaluation process, the Board was asked to comment on the skills and attributes needed by any new Non-executinves to
be recrurted to the Board in the future, taking into account the skills and expericnce of the wasting Non-exceutive Directors The
results of this exercise have been discussed by the Nomuination Commuttee and have assisted the draw g up of a job specification to be
used by search consultants appointed to dentify potential candudates to join the Board in duc course

T'he evaluation identified that the changes to the Board packs made at the start of 2012, including revscd management intormation and
key performance indicators, were unnersally wclcomed by the Board Vanous suggestions were made to build on the data in certain areas
and these changes are in the course of being implemented  In addition, the format and timing of the Board Strategy Day 1s being reviewed

As regards the various Committees of the Board, the evaluation did not iduntify any material issues grven the wdll-established Commuittec
process and standing agendas How cver, 1t was noted that the Remuneration Commuttee would need to review the structure of the
Group's reporting on remuneration issues 1n hght of the reforms recently announced by the Government in thisarea This process has
now taken place, rcsultmg in the ravised format of the Remuneration Report set out on pages 65 to 83 of this document In addation,
the Imvestment Committee 15 1n the course of review ing how 1t operates, given the increasing number of funds and fund managers
within the Group's imvestment platform

Finally, Independent Audit discussed with the Chairman any comments on the indiv ilual performance of members of the Board, with
any comments on the Chairman being discussed with the Scnior Independent Director These comments are discussed with the
relevant Dhrector at one-to-one mectings w ith the Chairman

Board Committees

There are five sub-commuttces of the Board, Audit, Intestment, Nomination, Rumuneration and Risk The membership and terms of
ruderence of the commuttees are reviewed annually and the terms of reference are available on the corporate website (www sjp co uk),
or on request from the Company Scerctary Biographical details for members of these Commuttecs are sct out on pages 44 and 45

Attendance at Meetings
The attendance by indiidual Directors at Board and Committee meetings during the year ended 31 December 2012 was as follows

Board™ Rusk Audt® Rovmreration  Nomunation Investment

(6 meetings) (¢ meenngs) {5 mectings) (3 matngs) (4 mectings) (10 meetings)

Sarah Bates 6 - (1) 3 - 10
Vivian Basalgette 6 - 3/3 2 - 10
David Bellamy 6 (3) - 3 (2) -
Steve Colsell 5 - - - - —
lain Cornish 6 4 5 - 4 -
Andrew Croft 6 - (5 (3] - -
lan Gascoigne 6 ) - - - -
Charles Gregson™ 6 - 2/2(2) - 4 -
David Lamb 6 - - - - 10
Mike Power 6 4 5 ) 4 -
Roger Walsom® 2/2 1/1 - 2/2 - -
Baroncss Wheatcroft™ 4/4 3/3 (1) 1/1 - -

(1) Baroness Wheateroft was appointed to the Board 2 Apnil 2012

(1) Vivian Basalgetie was appomted to the Audit Commuttee on 8 May 2012

() Charles Gregson ceased mumbership of the Audit Commattee on 8 May 2012 and attended 1wo further Audit Committee meetings in 2012 as an observer

(1) Roger Walsom ceased to be a member of the Risk and Remuneration Commuttces when he resigned from the Board on 8 May 2012

(+) Baroncss Wheatcroft was appointed to the Risk and Remuncration Comamittees on 8 May 2012

(1) Figures 1n brackets indicate where a Pirector has becn invited by a Committee to atiend the meeting but 15 not a formal member of the Committee The Group Rask
Dircetor is i iied to attend Board moctings throughout the year to prosent his Group Risk report He also attends Risk and Audit Commmittee mectings during the year
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Directors’ and Officers’ Indemnity and Insurance
The Company has taken out insurance cos ering Directors and
officers against habilies they may incur in their capacity as
Drrectors or officers of the Company and its subsidiaries

The Company has granted indemnities 1o all of its Directors (and
Directors of subsidiary companies) on terms consistent with the
applicable statutory provisions Quahfying third party indemmity
provisions for the purposes of section 234 of the Compantes Act
2006 were accordingly 1n torce during the course of the inancial
year ended 31 December 2012, and remain in force at the date of
this report

Procedures to Deal with Directors’ Confhicts of Interest
Procedures have been approved by the Board to deal with
situations where a Dircctor either has a conflict of interest, or
where a potential conflict of interest situation arises  Under the
procedure, the relesvant Dhirector must disclose to the Board the
actual or potential confhet of interest for discussion by the other
members of the Board The Board will consider the potential
conthct on its particular facts and decide whether to wane the
potential conflict if it belicves ths to be 1n the best interests of
the Company The process invalves keeping detatled records and
Board minutes in respect of authorisations granted by the Board
and the scope of approrvals gnen Conflict authorisations are
reviewed annually by the Board

Relations with Shareholders

The Board maintams close relationships with institutional
shareholders through dialoguc and frequent meetings and the
Chief Financial Officer provides feedback to the Board on any
material topics raised by sharcholders The Company also meaets
regularly with JPMorgan Cazenove and Bank of America Merrill
Lynch (joint brokers to the Group) who facilitate mectings with
investors and their representatives The Chairman, Semor
Independent Director and other Non-executive Directors are
available for consultation with shareholders on request Board
members recene copies of the latest analysts” and brokers’
reports on the Company and attend sharcholder and/or analyst
meetings from time to nme

Members of the Board w1l be available at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeuing to answer sharcholders’ questions on
the Company 's business and the activities of the Board and s
committees
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Relationship with Lloyds Banking Group plc

The Company entered into a Relauonship Agreement (the
‘Agreement’) with Hahifax Group ple in 2000, to regulate the
relattonship betw een the two compames after the completion
of a Partial Offer The Agreement was nnated to HBOS plce,
tellowing the merger between Halifax and Bank of Scotland in
2001 On 16 January 2009, HBOS plc was acquired by Lloyds
TSB Bank ple, which subsequently changed its name to Lloyds
Banking Group pic {{LBG")

The principal purpose of the Agreement 15 to ensure the
Company operates 1ndependcntl} of LBG and to provide that the
relationship between LBG and the Company will be conducted
on an arm’s-length basis Under the Agreement, LBG has the
authortty to appoint a number of directors to the Board and 1ts
committees and the number varics 1n relation to LBG's
sharcholding 1n the Company  LBG currcntly has the right to
appoint up to three Non-exceutive Directors to the Board
although, as at the date of this report, LBG has appointed one
Non-executive Director, being Steve Colsell

Rugisiered No 03183415




Business Resren

Report of the Nomination Committee

Cur.purd te Governdace

Financial Statements

Other Information

Having the appropriate range of hlgh calibre Darectors on our Board 1s kcy to achlevmg success 1n the
Group’s strategic objectives, whilst helping to mitigate the regulatory and other risks faced by the Group

This report provides details of the role of the Nomination Commuttee and the work it has undertaken
durmg the year

Charles Gregson

Meetings and Membership

[ he Nomination Commuttee comprises two independent Non-
exccutive Directors and the Chairman The Commuttee met four
times durmg the year and the currunt members and attendees are
Members Attendees
Charles Gregson (Chairman) David Bellarmy
Mike Power

latn Cormish

Committee Role and Responsibilities

The Nomination Commuittee 15 responsible for identify ing and
nominating candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they
arise. Prior to any appomtment bung made, the Nomination
Committee evaluates the skills, knowledge and experience of
existing members of the Board and prepares a description of the
role and capabilities required for a particular appomntment The
Nomnation Committee uses the services of external search
consultancies to asaist 1n inding sunable candidates from a wide
range of backgrounds

Successton planning also forms a core remut of the Nomination
Commuttee, taking 1nto account the challenges and opportuniues
facing the Company both now and in the future The Nomination
Committee regularly reviews succession plans witha view 10
ensuring that appropriate successors have been identified for cach
sentor management role
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Commuittee Activities During 2012

As disclosed in last year’s Report and Accounts, the members of the
Committee were actively invoh ed during the start of 2012 1n the
search and selection proccss which led to the recommendation and
appointment of Baroness Wheateroft to the Beard in April 2012
Followng an assessment of the skills and experience required lor
the Board going forward, the Nommnation Committee began the
search for potential Non-cxccutnyves with the assistance of an
external search agency, which has not undertaken any other work
for the Group As a result, Comnuttee members met a number of
candidates prior to recommending the appointment of Baroness
Wheatcroft to the Board

Succession Plannlng

In terms of Non-executne succession, the Committee noted that
Sarah Bates and Mike Power will hase served n excess of eight
and seven years respectnely on the Board in 2013, so the
Commuttee discussed during the year the attributes needed for
new Non-cxecutives to join the Board in due course  An agency
has been appointed to commence a search process for potcninal
new Non-executive Directors (‘NED') to join the Board in 2013

As regards Execuun e succession, the Commuttee discussed in
depth with the Chief Executive the succession plans in place for
cach Executive on the Board and senior executnves below the
Board, including the deselopment being undertaken by the
Executive team The Chief Exccutine was asked to update the
succession plans for on going discusston by the Committee ona
regular basis

Board Diversity

The Board outhined 1ts approach to dnersity in the 2011 Report
and Accounts

As regards the Executive team, the Commuttee noted that they
have all been Directors of the Company or other group compamnies
for many vears and there are no plans to change the Executive team
in the short term  Having said that, the Board acknow ledges that
dnersity extends beyond the Boardroom and 1s commutted to
developing the members of the senior management team below the
Board so that, so far as possible, they are ready to join the Board as
part of a planned succession programme in due course Naturally,
the des elopment programme for the Executives below the Board
has dnersity as one of 1ts core prineaples, with the various elements
of the programme being available to all senior emplovees, without
reference to gender, race, religion or other discriminatory factors
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As regards the Non-executive team, the Nomination Committee
will consider the parucular skills needed for a replacement NED
and draw up a job specificaton settung out the skills required, to
assist any search firms appointed to find suitable candidates lor
the role The Board does not believe it would be appropriate to
ask a search firm to narrow their scarch towards a particular
gender, although the Board appreciates the importance of
diversity inits widest sense All suitable candudates wall be
considered on merit, with the Nominauon Commuttee
recommending to the Board the person they consdor to be the
best suited to the role

The Board agrees with the description used in the Financial
Reporting Council {(FRC) gudance on board effcctiveness — that
hoards should aim for diversity in psychological type and
background, as well as gender In this way, the Board 1s more
likely to consist of people from different backgrounds and skill
scts 5o as to avold any kind of ‘group thinking” and enhancc
constructive discussion and challenge at Board mectings

As a result of the above, whilst the Board will seck to ensurc

that there 15 sufficient diversity (in the wider sensc) on the

Board at all times, as 1llustrated by the recent appointiment of
Baroness Wheatcroft to the Board, 1t dous not balicve that setting
a target for female representation 1s appropriate at this time

Charles Gregson
On behalf of the Nomimation Commutiee
27 February 2013
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In addition to reviewing the remuneration packages for the semor executives, the Commuttee has
during the year engaged with the government’s consultation process on remuneration reporting and,
where practical, sought to adopt the proposed changes in this year’s Remuneration Report a year early
Ths report, together with the Remuneration Report on page 65, summarises the Commuttee’s
activities 1n 2012

Committee Role and Responsibilities
—1 The Commuttce 1s responsible for determining the Company’s
! broad policy for executne remuncration and the indinidual
4 remuncration packages for cach of the Executive Directors,
; the Group Risk Director and other scnior executives (where
+  applicable}, including any executie whose total remuneration
.

15 expected to exceed the median total remuneration of the
Executine Directors

+ The Commuttee agrees at the startof the year the short term
bonus and long-term icentive schemes tor the Executive

Directors, including any applicable performance conditiens or
metrics and then reviews the performance of indiaidual Directors

Sarah Bates

and senior management against the objectives set by the
Commuttee In the event of a Dircetor leaving the Group, the
Commuttee will review and determine the scope of any

Meetings and Membership termination payment and screrance terms The Commuttee 1s

The Remuneration Committee comprises solely independent also responsible for selecting, appointing and sctung the Terms

Non-executive Directors The Remuneration Commuttee met of Reference for any remuneration consultants who ady 1se the

three times during the year and the current members and Commuttee Currently, the Commuttee has appointed

artendees are independent consultants New Bridge Street to perform this role

Members Attendees The terms of reference that set out the Remuncration

Sarah Batis (Chairman) Das1d Bellamy Commuttee’s role and authority can be found on the corporate

Vivian Barsalgette Andrew Croft website at www s)p co uk A detailed report to sharcholders from

Baroness Wheatcroft the Remuneration Commuttee including a description of the
Remunceration Committee’s activities during the year 1s contained

Roger Walsom ceased to be a member of the Remuneration in the. Directors’ Remuncration Report on page 65

Commuttee follow ing his resignation from the Board on 8 May 2012,

at which point Baroness Wheatcroft joined the Commuttee

David Bellamy and Andrew Croft are invited to attend part of

the proceedings of the Commuttee, as and when appropriate, Sarah Bates

10 assist the Commuttec withits decision making On behalf of the Remuncration Commtiee

27 February 2013
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Corporate (Governance Report continued

Report of the Audit Committee

The integnity of the Company’s financial results and the effectiveness of its internal control systems are of
utmost importance to the Directors, sharcholders, chents and other stakcholders of the Company The
Audit Commuttec assists the Board in its oversight and momitoring of financial reporting and internal
controls, by testing and challenging thesc arcas and working in conjunction with management and the
external and internal auditors as appropriate Thus report summarises the Commuttee’s activities in 2012

[ L R R R

lain Cornish

Meetings and Membership
The Audit Committec met five times during the year and the
current members and attendees of the Committee are

Artendees

Steve Colsell

Andrew Croft

Bill Tonks (Group Risk Director)
Simon Risby (Head of Internal Audit)

Members

lain Cornish (Chairman)
Mike Power

Vivian Basalgette

lain Cornish replaced Mike Power as Chairman of the
Committee on 8 May 2012 and Vivian Bazalgette joined the
Commuitee on the same date, in place of Charles Gregson

All members of the Audit Commuttee at the end of the year were
independent Non-executive Directors Charles Gregson remained
on the Audit Commuttee unul May 2012, following hus
appointment as Non-executne Chairman of the Company n
January 2012 He was replaced by Viian Basalgetie on 8 May 2012
Attendees at meetings during the vear included the Chief
Financial Officer, the Risk Director, the Head of Internal Audut
and members of the Finance team, as well as representatn es from
the external auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers Steve Colsell
also attended meetings as the representative of Llovds Banking
Group The Board 1s satisfied that all members of the Audit
Commuttee have the experience and qualifications to perform
their roles, in parucular that a majority of members have recent
and relevant financial experience and expertise
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Committee Role and Responsibilities
The Audit Commuttee 15 responsible for
— the accuracy and integrity of the Group’s financial statements,

reviewing the external auditors' reports thereon,
monitoring the effectiveness of the Internal Audit function, and
ensuring the effectineness of the systems of internal control

|

This includes review mg the Company s internal and external
audit resource and examining amy matters that relate to the
finaneial affairs of the Company, monitoring the financal
reporting process and adsvising the Board on the Compam’s
interim and annual financial statements, 1ts accounting policies
and compliance with accounting standards The Commutree also
assists the Board 1n ensuring that the inancial and non-financial
information supphed to shareholders provides a balanced
assessment of the Company’s position

Other duties include maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the external auditors, reviewing the nature and scope of the work
performed by them and their responses to management

The terms of reference that set out the Committee’s role and
authority can be found on the corporate website at www sp co uk

The following sections provide more detail on how the
Commuttee fulfilled its role in these areas

Commuttee Activities During 2012

The key activities of the Commuttee during 2012 were

— Reviewing the annual and half yearly report and accounts,
including the external auditors’ reports and associated
announcements, and

— Momttoring and res iew ing the effectiveness of the Internal Audit
funcuion, including consideration of the Internal Audit plan

Registered No 03183415




Business Resren

Corporate Governance
P

Financial Starements

Other Information

Whilst review ing the annual and half vearly report and accounts,

the Comnuttee focussed on the following areas in particular

— The accounting principles, policies, assumptions and practices
adopted,

— Judgements exercised in the production of the financial results
mctuding the appropriatencss of persistency assumptions, the
valuation of assets, and the IFRS adjustments relating to
deferred acquisition costs and deferred income reserve,

— Conseration of how the future ecenomic and regulatory
developments may 1mpact these judgements,

— Tax habilities and deferred tax assets and habihines, and

— Assumptions around the caleulation of share option costs

Throughout the year the Committee recenved regular updates
from the Head of Internal Audit in relation to progress against
the internal audit plan and results from completed audits Audits
are risk-based and during 2012 covered key areas such as
outsourced services, I'T systems and processes in place to control
advice In preparation for the year end reporting, the Internal
Audit function also facilitated an overall review of the Company s
svstem of internal financial controls

Other actiities undertaken by the Commuttee during the year
mcluded a formal review of the risk schedules and reviews of the
Group’s ‘whistle-blowing’ and Bribery Act policies Commttee
members also recen ed updates from the chair of the Risk
Commuttee, reports from the Audit Commuttec of St James’s
Place International plc (the Irish-registered life company) and
presentations on various topics including Solvency I1, a draft
Own Rusk and Solvency Assessment (ORSA) for §t James's Place
UK plc and IT governance The Committee also reviewed the
control environment of the Company's key outsourced prosviders
in conjunction with the Risk Commuttee

Through the Board evaluation exercise explained more fully on
page 52, the Commuttee review ed its ow n performance against
the responsibilities set out n 1ts terms of reference, which
assisted the Committee Chairman in determining any special
focus objectives for the coming vear
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External Auditor

The Committee has responsibiliy for the work of the auditors
and during the vear the annual review of the mdependence,
cffectnn eness and objectiity of the external auditor was
conducted by senior management Based on this review,

the Commuttee concluded that the audit service of

Pricew aterhouse Coopers LLP was fit for purpose and proy ided a
robust evaluation of the risks underlying the Company’s financial
statements The Committee 15 also satisfied, having considered
the performance of Pricew aterhouseCoopers LLP during their
pertod in office, that that they remain independent and objective
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was appointed as the Company’s
external auditor in 2009 to harmomse the audit arrangements
with the Lloyds Banking Group Given the current relationship
with Lloyds Banking Group, the Company considers that putting
the audit engagement out to tender 15 not necessary at prescnt
Having assessed the performance and independence of

Pricew aterhouseCoopers LLP as outlined above, the Commuttee
recommends that PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP be re-appointed
as external auditor and a resolution will be put to sharcholders at
the Annual General Meeting

The Company has put 1n place a formal pohicy for the provision
of non-audit ser ices by the external auchtor Thas pohicy aims
to ensure that external auditor objecunity and independence 15
safeguarded and sets out the catcgones of non-audit services
which the external auditor 15 allowed to provide to the Group
The financial limit for non-audit related advice and consultancy
work by the external audit firm 1s £100,000 per year Non-audit
assignments exceeding 25% of the audit fee, either indi tddually
or cumulatn ely, must have the prior approval of the Audit
Commuttee Details of the amount paid to the external auditors
during the year for audit and non-audit related services are set
out 1n the Notes to the Accounts on page 103

lamn Cormsh
On behalf of the Audit Commuttee
277 February 2013
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Report of the Risk Committee

Fostering a culture of effective risk identification and management 1s of utmost importance to the Group
The Risk Commuttee assists the Board in providing leadership, direction and oversight of the Group’s
management of nsk. This report summarises the Committec’s key activities in 2012

Y
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Mike Power

Meetings and Membership
The Risk Committce met four times during the year and the
current members and attendees are

Attendees

David Bellamy

lan Gascoigne

Wil Tonks (Group Risk Director)

Members

Mikc Power (Chairman)
lain Cornish

Baroness Wheatcroft

Baroness Wheatcroft jomned the Commuttec on § May 2012,
replacing Roger Walsom

All members of the Risk Commuttee are independent Non-
executne Directors who have considerable financial and /or
risk-based experience Attendees at meetings during the year also
included the Compliance Officer, Head of Risk Management, the
Corporate Actuary and a representative from Lloyds Banking
Group, the Compan's major sharcholder

Both Mike Power and lain Cormish share common membership

of the Audit Committee and the breadth of each Commuttee’s
oversight was further enhanced by joint Audit and Risk Commuttee
presentation mectings held durimg Juh and October The terms of
veference setting out the Committee’s role and authority can be
found on the corporate website at www sjp co uk
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Committee Role and Responsibilities

The Committee’s key over ﬂght responstbihties include

— Monitoring and cncouraging a culture of effectne risk
identification and management throughout the Group,

— Contmually reviewing the principal nisks and uncertainties
affecting the Group, as refurred to in the Principal Risks and
Unccrtainties section of the Business Review on pages 31 and
32, and monitoring progress on speafic mitigating actiens,

- Undertakmg an annual review of rsk management
arrangements,

— Rerviewing relevant reports produced by the Group’s Risk and
Comphance functions, and

— Liaising with the Audit Committee and reporting to the Board
any material areas of concern or weakness identified

Commttee Activities During 2012

At cach meeting durmg 2012 the Commuttee reviewed and

considered

— The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, as
recorded within the Emerglng, Topical and Corporate Risk
schedules, and challenged the executine team about therr
management of thuse risks,

~ The corporate key risk indicator suite, which is ahgned 1o the
Group's Risk Appetite Statement and corporate objectn es
The Commntee contributed 1o and influenced the ongoing
design and refinement of the key risk indicator suite during
the year, and

— Minutes of the Risk Executive Committee meetings, where
exccutne oversight 1s given to the appropriateness and
obsersance of the Group’s Risk Appetite and the application
of the Group's risk management framework

During the year, the Commttee also recened regular updates

from sentor executines on nisk identification and mingation

against the Group's corporate objectives and principal risks

These included presentations from

— The Chief Imvestment Officer on the identification,
managemment and mitigation of key risks facing the Group's
[nvestment Management Approach,

— The Corporate Actuary on preparing for Solvency Iand the
Own Risk and Solvency Assessment for the UK Life company,

— The Business Dexclopment Director on the product
desclopment process and the management of risks throughout
thas process,
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— The Executn e Director for IT on IT governance, the [T risk
schedule and the approach to risk management within the
IT function, and

— The Executn ¢ Director for Compliance on the structure of

Risk and Complhance n the field

Throughout the year the Commuttee also recened regular
updatcs from the Group Risk Director and Head of Risk
Management on emerging risk 1ssues Both havc direct access to
the Chairman of the Risk Commuttee should the need arise The
Committee also resiew ed the Group’s Risk Appetite Statement
and Key Risk Indicator suite and recommended them for approval
by the Board

The annual Money Laundering Reporting Officers’ report was

reviewcd and approy ed by the Commuttee durlng the year The
report included an examination of the governance framew ork,

operation of syvstems and controls and training requirements in
respect of anti-money laundering activities within the Group

The Committee also discussed and approsed the Risk
Management Annual Report during the year, which set out the
views of the Risk Division on how well the Group discharged 1ts
responsibihties under the FSA's risk management principles

Mike Power
On behalf of the Rusk Committee
27 February 2013

Annual Report and Accounts 2012

Business Revien
Corporute Governunce

Finuncial Meatements

Other Informanion

61




Corporate Governance Report cwmne
Report of the Investment Committee

The cornerstone of the St James’s Place approach to mvestment management 1s the Investment
Commuittee The objectlve of the Investment Commuttec 1s to gcnerate c0n51stently superior mnvestment
results over the medwm term by selecting the best mdividuals within the appropriate nvestment
compantes This report summarises the Commuttee’s activities in 2012

Commttee Activities During 2012
During the year, the Committee monitored the performance
of the Group’s Fund Managers and focused on specific manager

tssues as they arose Face-to-face reporting sessions were held
; with managers, which provided the Committee with an
ﬁ opportumty to ¢valuate and assess their insestment philosophy
2 and processes and question the individual fund managers on
2 topical 1ssues
rd
1: The Committee also considered the Investment Manager Report
' from Stamford Associates and brought about a number of changes
! and additions to the Investment Managers appointed by the Group
¥Yivian Bazalgeltc
Follow ing a rigorous review and selection process, the Commuttee
oversaw changes to the range of funds announced ;m April 2012,
introducing three new fund managers to the Group's fund range
Meetings and Membership and two new funds to be managed by existing managers on the
The Investment Comrmittee met ten times during the vear platform The Commttee also provided osersight on the
The current members and attenclees of the Committee are intreduction of the Defensne Portlolio which increased to eight the
number of Example Portfohios available to clients
Members Attendees
Vivian Bazalgette (Chairman) Andrew Humphries Regular addinional monitoring meetings ran throughout 2012
Sarah Bates Chris Ralph More detail on the work of the Commuttee can be found in the
Peter Dunscombe ‘Report of the Investment Committee 2012', located on the
David Lamb Compamy's website at www s)p co uk
Win Robbins
Win Robbins was appointed to the Imvestment Commuittee 1n
September 2012 Various members of the Company’s investment Vivian Bazalgette
support team were imated to attend meetings during the year and On behalf of the fnvestment Commiztee

representatives from the Company’s imestment advisers, Stamford 27 Februarv 2013
Associates, attended all meetings during the year AON Hewitt g
also attended one meeting in an iy estment ads 1sory capacity

Committee Role and Responsibilities

The Commuttee’s main responsibilines include overseeing the
Company’s Imy estment Management Approach, monitoring the
performance and suitability of the Group’s range of mdependent
Fund Managers, as well as ensuring that the Fund Managers
follow the terms of their agreements with the Companmy Where
necessary, the Committee will make recommendations in
relation to the appointment or removal of Fund Managers and
also considers any new funds which are to be made available to
the Group’s clients
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The Board retains overall responsibility for the effectiveness

of the Group's system of risk management and internal control
systems (including, financial, operational and compliance
controls) The Audit and Risk Commuttees of the Board, along
with appropriately structured, staffed and qualified Internal
Audit, Risk Management and Compliance functions support the
Dircctors in the discharge of these responsibilities and oversee
their outcome

The Group has Ful]} complied with provision C 2 1 of the UK
Corporate Governance Code throughout the financial year and
up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors and senior managers of the Group are commutted
to maintaining a strong control culture within all business areas
and have processes for ey a]uatmg and managing the slgmﬁcant
risks faced by the Group Adherences to codes of conduct are
required at all times and the Board actinely promotes a culture
of quality and integrity In addition to these ongoing procedures,
the Audit Committee conducts an annual review that considers
the effectneness of the Group’s risk management and internal
contral systems, including finaneial, operational and comphance
The review also includes the nature and scope of the ongoing
monitoring processes, including the effectiveness of the Internal
Audit function and the potential impact during the year on these
processes from any changes to the risks that the Group faces

The Group utilises a number of outsourced service pros iders to
provide administration services These are detailed in formal
contracts and their deliiery 1s momitored by dedicated
relationship managers against documented Sersice Level
Agreements and Key Performance Indicators

Each year the outsourced service providers are required to
confirm and evidence the adequacy and effectiveness of their
internal control framew ork (as assessed against the requirements
of the COSO Internal Control — Integrated Framework) They
are also required to confirm that no matenal control 1ssues have
been dentified in therr operations over the course of the year

The Company operates a mululayered framew ork of internal
controls over its financial reporting processes The key elements
of the framew ork comprise the documentation, performance and
assessment of controls 1n key risk areas, monthly rev iew and sign
off of all financial accounting data submitted by outsourced service
providers together with the results of all subsidiaries within the
Group, and the formal review of the financral statements by senior
management, for both indin idual companies within the Group as
well as at the consohidated Group level In addition, the published
financal statements of the Company and the Group are formally
reviewed by the Audit Commuttee, with particular focus on ke
areas of judgement and accounting estimates
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This system of internal control 1s de51gned to ensure that the
primary objectisves of compliance with applicable laws and
regulation, effective and efficient operations, quality financial and
opcrational reporting and safeguarding of assets, are met

When significant control issues have occurred, the Audit Commttee
has recen ed full and detailed reports from management and
Internal Audit, inclucing proposals for amending and strengthening
the business systems involved 1n hine with the Group’s focus on
continuous improsement  Where appropriate, such 1ssues have
been referred to the Board by the Chatrman of the Audit
Commuttee and the Group Risk Director for further discussion

In establishing the svstem of internal control, the Directors have
regard to the maternality of relevant risks, the likclihood of risks
occurring and the cost of mitigating risks It s therefore de51gncd
10 manage, rather than elimnate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can provide only reasonable, not absolute
assurance against material financial mis-statement or loss

In the Board’s view, the information it has recened from
entity-wide risk assessment, operational management, and the
reports 1ssued by Internal Audit has been sufficient to enable 1t
to properly review the effectiy eness of the Company’s svstem of
internal control, 1n accordance with the Turnbull Guidance for
Directors on Internal Control
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Corporate Governance Report continued
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements
n accordance with applicable lan and regulatlons

Company law requircs the Directors to prepare financial
statements for cach financial year Under that law the Directors
hasc prepared the Group financial statuments in accordance with
International Financial Reporung Standards (IFR Ss) as adopted
by the European Union, and the Parent Company hnancial
statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generaliy
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicablc law) Under company law the Directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisficd
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period In preparing these finaneial statements, the Directors
are required to

— select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

— make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

- state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and
apphicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 1n
the Group and Parent Company financial statements
respectively, and

— prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless 1t 1s iappropriate to presume that the company will
continue 1n business

The Directars are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explarn the Company 's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
finanaal position of the Company and the Group and cnable them
to ensure that the iinancial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and,
as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and the Group and hence for takmg reasonable
steps for the presention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities

The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary information
n accordance with the European Embedded Value Principles
1ssued 1n May 2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, as
supplemented by the Additional Guidance on European
Embedded Value Disclosures 1ssued in October 2005 {‘the EEV
Principles’) When compliance with the EEV Principles 15 stated,
those principles require the Directors to prepare supplementary
information in accordance with the Embedded Value
methodology (EVM) contamned 1n the EEV Princtples and to
disclose and explain any non-compliance with the EEV Guidance
included in the EEV Principles
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In preparing the EEV supplementary information, the

Directors have

— prepared the supplementary information in accordance with
the EEV Principles,

— wentified and described the business covered by the EVM,

— apphied thc EVM consistently to the covered business,

— determined assumptions on a realistic basis, having regard o
past, current and expected future experience and to any
relevant external data, and then applicd them consistently, and

— made estimates that are rcasonable and consistent

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Compam's website Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation 1n other jurisdicuons  Each
of the Directors, whose names and functions are hsted 1n Board
of Directors section of the Annual Report confirm that, to the

best of thur know ledge

— the Group financial statements, which have been preparcd in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, gine a true and
fair view of the assets, habihities, financial position and profit of
the Group,

- the European Embedded Value (EEV) supplementary
information has been prepared in accordance with the
European Embedded Value principles 1ssued in May 2004 by
the Chief Financial Officers Forum as supplementcd by the
Addrtional Guidance on European Embedded Value Disclosures
1ssued 1in October 2005 (‘the EEV Principles’), and

— the business review referenced to in the Directors” Report
mncludes a fair review of the dovelopment and porformance of
the business and the position of the Group, toguther with a
description of the principal risks and uncertamties that 1t faces

By order of the Board

Hugh Gladman
Company Secretary
27 February 2013

Reguistered No 03183415




Bustness Revren

Directors’ Remuneration Report

C(Jf[)()l'l"l' Governance

Frnanetal Statemenis

Orher Information

--;“s\\;;ﬂj

Sarah Bates

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, [ am pleased to present the Drrectors’
Remuneration Report for 2012 Thas report sets out the Group’s
remuneration policy and the remuneration paud to the Executine
and Non-executive Directors in respect of 2012

In anticipation of the UK Government's leglslatlon relaung to the
reporting of directors’ remuneration and revised requirements
for shareholder approvals, we have sought to mcorporate sevcral
of the expected reporting requirements into this year's report
We hope this adds clarity to our reporting in this area

Our Remuneration Policy

Our remuneration policy 15 designed to support and drive delnery
of the Group's busincss objectives Remunerauon packages overall
are sufficiently compeutne to attract, retan and motnate
executnes of the highest calibre Our incentives are based on
measures reflecting grow th 1in long-term shareholder 1alue and
encouraging sustainable performance through delnery of a
significant proportion of remuneration in 8t James's Place shares

Corporate Performance and Remuneration for 2012
Shareholders will be aware that the Group has achicved strong
growthn the last three years, including 1n 2012, during a period
of considerable change for the industry Our Executnes’
remuneration reflects this As a result of the three year
performance to the end of 2012, 87% of the Executine Directors’
PSP awards granted in 2010 wall vest in March 2013 In addition,
the Remuneration Commuttee determined that 46% of the
maximum annual bonus should be payable for 2012, reflecting the
challenging performance targets set by the Commuttee at the
start of the year Shareholders should note that, 1n periods when
the Group’s performance has been less strong, bonus levels have
been materally reduced by the Committee in the past
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Our Remuneration Pohcy for 2013 and Looking Forwards
During the year the Commitiee review cd the operation and
effecin eness of its remuneration policy 1n supporting and drinving
the delncry of the Group’s shortcr-term and long-term business
ohjectives [t has also continued to monitor deselopments in
remuneration in the inancial services sector and companies
gcnerall) and 1s interested in the debates about the advantages and
disadvantages of various approaches to rumuneration

For 2013, the Commuttee concluded that no matcral changes 10
§]P’s overall policy are required We have anarded an increase of
3% 1n base salary for the Executine Directors Fhis follows a freese
1n salanes for the Executive Directorsin 2012, and s 1in hine with
increases awarded to the worklorce as a whole In addmion, we
have amended the weghtings of the financal and non-fi nancial
elcments of the annual bonus for 2013 1n order ta reduce the
emphasis on new busincss grow th and increase the cmphasis on
some of the non-financial objectrves set out in the 2013 business
plan The details of our policy are clearly set out in the policy table
on page 66 1n a form which fol lows the revised requirements
currently being consulted on by the UK Government

Laoking forward to 2013, the Commuttec intends to carry out a
thorough review of the Group's remuneration policy, taking into
account the latest guidelines from both investor and regulatory
badies The review 15 timed to comnade with the introduction of
the new remuneration reporting requirements and the end of the
Ife of the Group's long-term incentn e schemes, which were
approved by sharcholders in 2005 The Commuttee looks forward
to presenting the revised policy to sharcholdcrs in next year’s
Remuneration Report

Summary

Striking the right balance between fairness, performance and
reward, and making sure that remuneration structures align
exceutives effectinely with shareholders’, clients’, and other
stakeholders’ interests 1s not a straightforward task The
Committee belieses that the policy achies es a reasenable balance
and that the Executives arc being rewarded fairly for the value
they are creating for shareholders, particularly in the long-term

Shareholders will be invited to approve the report at the Annual
General Meeting on 21 May 2013 1f in the meantime you have
any questions regarding our remuneratton policy then m
collcagues and I on the Remuneration Commttee will be pleased
to Lngage with you
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Remuneration Policy Report
Thas part of the Directors’ Remunerauon Report sets out the remuneration policy for the Company from 1 January 2013

In setting the remuncration policy for the Exceutive Directors, the Commuttee takes into consideration a number of different factors

— The Commuttee applies the principles set out in Schedule A of the UK Corporate Governance Code and also takes into account best
practice gudance 1ssucd by the major UK insututional 1nyestor bodses, the FSA and other relevant orgamsations,

— The Commuttee has overall responsility to be aware of the remuneration policies and structures of the Group as a wholc and 1t
review s remuneration pnhc_) on a irm-wide basis When the Committee determines and reviews the remuneration poliey for the

Ex«cutive Directors it considers and compards it agamnst the pay, policy and cmployment conditions of the Group to ensure that 1t1s
comfortable that there 1s ahgnment and cquny between the two, and
— The Commuttce constders the external market 1n which the Group operates and uses comparator remuneration data from time to time,
but as a guide only rccognising that data can be valatile and must be used carefully 1o avord the risk of an upward ratchetin
remuneration The Commuttee recognises that there 1s often a need 1o phase-in changes over a period of time

Engagement with Shareholders
The Remuneration Commuittce cngages with the Company’s major sharcholders and will discuss with them its proposals for 2014 1n
advance of sceking sharcholder approval at the AGM 1n that year Italso engages with the major investor bodies when a material

change 15 proposed to the remuneration policy and gnes full and proper consideration to their views

Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors
I he remuncration policy 1s designed to support and encourage the delivery of the Group’s short-turm and leng-term
business objectives

The follow ing table summarises cach element of the remuneration policy for the Exccutne Directors, explaining how cach element
operates and how each part links to corporate strategy

Flement

Purpose and hink to
strategy including
choice of performance
metrics

Operation

Maximum
opportunity

Perlormance metrics

How policy will be
implemented 1n 2013

Changes from prior
year

Salary

Essuntial 1o recruit
and retain
Executives

Snlar} levels are nat
artificially low and
cover reasonable
living « xpenses

Reviencd annually
and fixed for 12
months commencing
1 March

I evelintluenced by

* role, experience
and performance

* avcrage change in
broader workforce
salary

* ptriodic
bcnchmarkmg for
cach role against
similar UK hsted
companies

Up 10 a median lovdd
bascd on similar UK
listed companies

For promotions/role
changes salary
mcreases may be
highc r than usual
and increases may be
phascd

No spcaific metrics
but salary reviews
take into account
expericnce and
performance in role

[rectors’ salaries
will be increased
within the
Company's policy by
3% 1n linc with the
average workforec
Increase

rom 1 March 2013,
the salarics of the

Executne Directors
will be

* David Bellamy
£478,000
(2012 £465,000)
* Andrew Croft
£346,000
(2012 £336,000)
* lan Gascorgne
£346,000
(2012 £336,000)
* David Lamb
£346,000
(2012 £336,000)

3% increas
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Purpose and hok 1o
strategy including

Busine + Revien
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Other Information

chotce of performance Maximum How policy wtll be Changes from pnor
Element metrics Operation opporiumty Performance metrics implemented in 2013 vear
Bonus Rowards the Performance 120% of base salary  Half of the annual Maximum bonus Balance between

achusement of
annual financial and
strategic business
plan targets and
delinery of tuam
objectines

Dieferred element
auds retention,
Lneourages
long-term

sharc hu!dmg‘
discourages
wxcessive risk taking
and aligns with
sharcholder
intoerests

Performance
metrics reflect the
key purformance
drivers of the annual
busine ss plan,
achieveme nt of
which will reflect
prformance n hine
with the Group's
stra[eg}

measures and
W clghllngs are sebin
hine with the annual
business plan

Bonus payment 1s
determined by the
Committee after the
year end, bascd on
performance against
the targets set

50% of any bonus
payable s paid in
cash with the
remamning 50% usecd
to purchase S]P
sharus subject to
threv year
CONLINUOUS SLEYICL
requirement

Annual bonus
payments subject to
clawhack

bonus 1s based on
l}]L ﬂthlb\- tment
of challcnging

financaal objcctives

* One quarter of the
bonus (2 maximum
of 30% of salary)
determined by
pertormance of
LEV Group
operating profit
before tax (see
note. 1)
Onc-quarter of
the bonus {up to
30% of salary)
deternmined by

El ¥V Group proht
from new business
{sce note 1}

The remaining half
of the honus (up to
60% of salary) 1s
based on the
performance of
the | xccutives as a
team in dolnering
on arious
non-financial
objectnes relating
to chient
satisfaclion,
sharcholders and
other stakcholders,
as set out1n the
business plan (see
note 2)
Commuttee
discretion to adjust
honus dow n or up
{within the overall
maximum of
120% of salary) to
take, account of
lactors such asan
exceptional
pOS]ll\C or
negatsse event

appottunity remaimns
within the policy at
120% of salary The,
precise targets arc
commecrcially
sensitnve and will be
discloscd when the
bonus outcome 15
determined and
reported in the
mmplumentation
section of the 2014
Repart)

two profit clements
and non-financial
element changcd
from «qual one
thirds to

25% 25% 50%

I'LSPCC“\ Ll)

Financial undcrpin
added to
non-financial
clement 1o give

the Commuttec
discretion to
scale-back payment
in the event that
financial
performance 1s

disappointing
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Purpose and hink to
strategy including

chaice of performance Maximum How policy witl be Changes from prior
Element metrics Operation opportumity Perlormance mctrics mmplemented in 2013 year
Performance incentivises the Awards of nil-cost Maximum award The vesting of For 2013 an award No change
Share Plan  Directors to achieve  options are granted  under planrulesof  awardsis dependent  of 190% of salary

Supl'rlﬂr 1Dng-lerm
sharcholder returns

Provides long-term
rutention

Focuses the
Executives on
longer-turm
Corporall.
purformance and
performance
ohjectines

A mix ol three
performance
conditrons provides
an appropriate
balance of targuts
that both incentivise
the Executnes to
aclieve stretching
long-term financial
performance while
also keeping ther
intersts aligned to
those of sharcholders
and the creauon

of value for our
long-term
sharcholders and
focused on stock
market out
performance

annually with
vesting dependent
on the achieveme nt
of slrelchmg
purformance
conditions measurcd
aver a period of
three financial years

Mctrics and largets
are set tn line with
the business plan
and arc reviewed
annually to ensure
they rumain
appropriate as well
as the w elghtmg
between them

Vested awards
subject to clawback

200% of salary as at
date of grant

on the achiesement
of three equally
weighted
performance
measures

* EPS grow th based
on FEV adjusted
profit from 2012
var end figure
(see note 3)

EPS grow thas
above but
excluding the
impact of the FEV
unwind of the
discount rate from
2012 year ead
figure (cflectnely
excluding the
impact of stock
market movements
on carnings) (see
note 3)

* Relatine TSR

For FPS conditions,
25% vests at
threshold (EPS
growth of RP1 + 5%
per annum})
increasing to 100%
for LPS growth of
RPI + 16% or more
per annum with
straight line vesting
in between

For 18R, 25% vests
at median, with
100% v csting for
upper quartile
performance with
straight line vesting
n between,
compared to the
constituent
compantes 1n the
FTSE 250,
excludmg
imestment irusts,
the oil, gas and
mining sectors

will be made to the
CHFO and 175% of
sa]ar) for the other
Lxccutines
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Purpose and link to
strategy including

Business Revien

Corparate Govermarne

Frnancral Starements

Other informanen

choice of performance Maximum How policy will be Changes from prior
Element metrics Operation opportunity Performance metrics implemented 10 2013 year
Penston Helps recruit and Defined 20% of base salary Nonc - Ne change
retain Exccutines contribution pension
scheme  20% of
Provides a discrete 1 )
salary 15 paid into
element of the :
c the Group pc rsonal
pac :1%:, to pension scheme tor
contribute Lo the Fxecutive or an
past-retirement cqunalent cash
hitestyle
K amount via
non-pensienable
salary supplement
i the I xecutnineas
affected by the
pension cap
Other Operate compeutne  Company car (or Cuont of benefit Nont — No change
Benefits bunefits to help salary supplement

recrut and retain

Curtam boncfits

{L g provate medhical
cover) are provided
to minmimise
disruption to the day
to day business (L g
from 1llncssy

protision set out in
table of Dhirectors
emoluments

w lieu), private
medical insurance,
Ife, critical illness
and deathn scrvice
cover

Insurance based
bun fits provided
by thard pary

] )

providers

Participation in the

Group's all employce

SIP and SAYT '
schemes

Shareholding guidelines

Aligns Executives with shareholdcrs and te long-term carporate performance

Lxecutinves are required 1o build and maintain a sharcholding equinalent to 100% of basw salary Until threshold 1s
reachcd, 50% of vested shares from the PSP and other sharc awards (less tax hiabihty) must be rctained As shown
on page 81, the current sharcholdings of the Exccutive Directors are we llin e xcess of the shareholding requirement

Non-executive Directors’ fees

To attract high quality, expcrienced Non-executive Directors
The Chasrman 1s pard an all encompassing annual fee, wlich 1s reviewed pertodically by the Committee

All Non exe cutive Directors recunve a basic annual fee for carrying out their duties, together with additional fees ban
ymg » Lg g
paid 1n respect of Board Commuttees and other responstbiliuies, with fee lesels reviewed periodically by the Board

Reviuws take 1nto account market data tor similar Non-exccutine roles in other company 's of a similar size 10
St James's Place as well as the time commitment of its Non-executine Directors

Policy to pay up to the median based on similar tme commutments of Charrman and Non-executives in similar
SIZEd compamcs

bor 2013, there wall be no increase to the fees paid to the Chairman and other Non exccutine Dhrectors The table
below scts out the fees payable to the Chairman and the Non-executive Dircctars in 2013

Charles Gregson £165,000
Vivian Ba?ﬂlgettc £82,950
Mike Power £102,200™
lain Cormish £67,200
Sarah Bates £66,675
Baroness Wheatcroft £48 300
Steve Colsell £26,250"

Fuus pavable to Lloyds Banking Group

£35 000 of these fes are 1n respect of Mike Powcr’s appointment as Non executise Director of St James s Place International ple the Group's Dublin based msurance. company
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Notes

1

The FI V operating profu metric includes the impact of pursistency on funds unde r manag: ment and othe r opcrational vartances and the profit from now business metric
includes both grow th tn new business and the control of expenses The npcrating profit and profit from new busmess targets sct by the Commattee for 2013 are based ona
sheding scale, to progressinidy reward incremental purformance with the bottom cnd of the scales representing an increase

The ttam elumdnt of the 2013 annual bonus will b assessad by rcderence to throd key <duments bung chient satisfaction, shareholder experience and stakeholder
satisfaction, including regulatory compliance Specific objectives snclude the delnery of strong imestment performance, the ddiery of appropriate advice to chents, the
chient uxperie nce 2s measurd by surscysand awardy client feedback and complaints, enhancing the rangs. of investment funds and standards of service for St James s Place
clients, the successful recruntment and retention of hagh quality now Partnrs, succcssully controlling and mibigatng the matcrial risks that could impact the Group and
mantamning the Group < good relations wath uts sharcholdirs and regulatars

The first EPS performance condition 1s caliulated by reference to adyusted consohidated profit after 1ax on the FI V basis uf accounting for both the lif and unit trust
husingsses {on a fully diluted per share basis) The cFiet of the adjustment to the consohidated after tax figures will be to strip out the post tax LEV imve stment variance and
am < canomic assumption change in the final vear of the purformance period as these factors are not within the control of management and can produce wide variations in
reported carnings duc to stock market Buctuations Howeser this measure of FPS s sull impacted by stock market moscments 1in the prior year due to the impact of any
such movements on the unwind of the discount rate an the current sar

Lhe second EFS performancd condition s cak ulated ina similar way to the first T PS condition, save that a furthe r adjustment i made 1o steip out the impact of the unw ind
of the discount rate  This adjustment himinates any direct impact of stock markct volanlity and changes in the coonemic assumptions throughout the whole three yaar
perind of the performance condition

When assessing the | PS performancd conditions for the 2013 PSP awards, the Commutted note d that the base point of the 2012 hoancial year end frem where the growthin
EPS would be measurdd reprosents a mate nal increase over the provious sear The Commuittee has also looked at analysts’ torccasts for the Company and the TP grow th
ranges adopicd in long term incentine plans operated by simular businesses Overall 0 considers that the grow th range 15 generally abosc those set 10 mast othor comparable
businessis and represonts an cquisalont Jedd of challenge to those ranges st for provious PSP awards

No Exccutine Director has a contractual right to recane an annual bonus award  The satsfaction of the targets st by the Committe 1s assesscd by rederence to the
Company s internal management information systems and wnfied by the Commuttee, which the Commitice bohoves s the most appropriate muthod, given the internal
nature of most of the performance targers Finanoal perfermance metrics are also verific d by the Company < auditors
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Risk Management

Risk 1s managed within the remuneration policy through the Committee

— Takuing into consideration the. rccommendations contained tn the FSA Remuneration Code (the ‘Code’) and associated gutdance
which the Committee considers s relesant albent that St James’s Place 1s not speaifically required to comply with the Code

— Structuring the annual bonus plan to contan a mix of financial and non-financiat performance metrics, where performance
conditions are tailored to the business outlook and strategy, including the management of risk within the business

— Assesung the performance metrics from a risk perspective, with input from the Charrman ot the Risk Commuttee

— Requinng deterral of 50% of annual bonus payments into St James's Place shares which are deferrad for three years

— Ensuring that the majoritv of the incentive pay comes in the form of a long-term incentn e subject to stretching performance targets
measured over multi-year pertormance periods, with the performance period for subsequent aw ards overlapping the previous
award 1his ensurcs that there 1s no particular incentn ¢ to maximise performance over a particular period

Taking inte account the performance of the Group on Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) matters when assessing the
annual bonus to be paid to the Executne Dhrectors

Incorporating claw back into the Company’s banus and long-rum incentne plans
Requiring the Executive Dircctars to build and maintain a substantial sharcholdmg in the Company

Remuneration Policy across the Group

All employee long-term ncentrves

Fhe Company operates a Save As You Earn Share Option Plan and a Sharc Incentine Plan under which all UK employces of the Group,
including the Executive Dircctors, are digible to partiapate

Group wide remuneration policy

The remuneration policy for the Executive Directors 1s designed with regard to the policy for umploycees across the group asaw hole
and the Commuttec aims, where approprate, for there to be a consistent approach applied  For instance, the sute of benehits in kind s
consistent and the vast majority of employvces participate in annual bonus plans All umployecs arc offered the opportunity to
parucipate in the Group’s SAYE Sharc Opuion Plan and Sharc Incentive Plan

Kev differences relate to the fact that there 1s a higher potcnual level of rew ard under performance related elements, 1in order to ensure
that the higher potential remuncration levels at senior executne levels are driven more {and will vary more), by the porformance of the
business More of scnior level remuneration 15 deferred than 1s the case for the workforce as a wholc

Remuneratton Scenarios for Executive Directors

The charts below show how the proporuon of each Exccutinve Dircctor’s remuneration package varies at different levels of
performance, assuming incentves pay out at one half of the maximum, and at a full payout level On this basis the charts show that, at
the maximum level of performance under the annual bonus and PSP, the performance hinked elements of the package comprise around
70% of total remuneration

David Bellamy, Chief Executrve

Mid-point pavout

Maximum 23

20

=]

Proporuen of Total Pay

. Bask: Salery . Renefits & Penunn . Annual Bonus . 4 Performance Shares
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Andrew Croft, Chief Frnancial Officer
lan Gascotgne, Managing Drrecror
David Lamb, Managing Director

Mud-pont payout A
Maximum 2 | R%
0% 20%

[ [EWORRIS . [ —

Service Contracts

40%%

- 25% 59%
28% A%
60% 80% 100%

Proportion of Total Pay

. Annual Bonus

[:] Ferfurmance Shares

In summary the contractual provisions of the Exccutive Director service contracts are as follows

Provision Detailed terms

Notice pcriod 12 months by either party

Termrnation payment

An express obligation on the exceutive to mitigate his loss Payments can be made on a monthly basis and
reduced if an exccutive 15 able to secure alternatine cmploymant

Remuneration entitlemonts  No enhanced rights (other than those proviously approsed by sharcholders m relation to the Group’s share
incentive schemes or bendfits in addition to 1n service entitlament)

Change of control

As on termination

When considering the size ol any proposed termination payment, the Commttec would take into account a number of factors
incluching the health, length of service and performance of the relesant executne, including the duty to mitigate his own loss, w ith a
broad aim to avoud rewarding poor performance while dealimg farrly with cases where the departure 1s due to other reasons, tor

example illness

Further details of the service agreements of the Executine Directors are provided below

Director

Date of contract

Date contract
automatically
terminates

David Bellams
lan Gascmgnc
David Lamb

Andrew Croft

8 August 2006
8 August 2006
8 August 2006
8 Augusl 2006

15 }\prll 2008

7 july 2021

31 January 2022
1 June 2029
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Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The follow ing table sets out the percentage change in profit, dnn idends and overall spend on pay 1o the vear ending 31 December 2012,
compared to the vear ending 31 December 2011

0N 2012 Percentage

£fm £m change |
Opcratng profit after tax 106 8 1071 0 3%
Dividends 394 538 36 5%
Employec remuneration costs 595 6l 4 3 2%

Executive Directors serving as Non-cxecutive Directors on other Company Boards
Currently, no Executine Director acts as a Non-exccutive Director on the Board of another company David Lamb s on the Board of
the Association of Private Chient Insestment Managers and Stockbrokers (APCIMS), for which no fec. 1s paid

Chairman and Non-executive Directors

The non-cxecutive Directors do not have service contracts or any benefits in kind arrangements and do not participate in any of the
Group’s pension or long-term incentive arrangements The termn of the appaintment of cach Non-executne Director (other than those
appomted by Lloyds Banking Group plc pursuant to the Relationship Agreement described more fully on page 54) 1s for three years,
at which tume the appamtment will be reviewed by the Board Any period of service longer than six years 15 subject to particularly
TIZOTOUS Fev1ew by the Nomimnation Commuttee of the Board

The dates of the letters of appointment for the Non-executive Directors arc as follows

Name Date of letter of appointment
Charles Gregson 15 November 2011
Vivian Basalgette 27 May 2011
Sarah Rates 26 July 2004
lain Cornish 28 September 2011
Steve Colsell 30 January 2009
Mike Power 22 April 2005
Baroness Wheatcroft 7 March 2012
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Implementation Report

How the Committee operates to set the Remuneration
Policy

The Remuncration Committed, on behalf of the Board,
determines the Company’s remuncration policy and the
remuncration packages of the Executive Directors of the
Company and the Chairman In addition, the Committee
manttors the remuneration of the senior management team,
nchuding the Group Risk Director and his colieagues in the Risk
Division, and oversces the operation of the exccutive long-term
incentive schemes and all employee share schemes

The membership and terms of reference of the Commuittee are
reviewed annually and the terms of reference are available on the
Company’s wcbsite

Membership of and attendance at the Remuneration
Committee meetings

The members of the Commuttec (all independent Non-uxecutine
Darcctors) are set out bddow as well as their attendance at
meetings during the financial year

Number of meetings attended out of

Name potential maximum

Sarah Bates

(Commttee Chairman) Joutof 3
Visian Bazalgetie 2outof 3
Baroness Wheatcroft loutof 1

Vivian Bazalgette was not able to attend one mecting due to a
prior commutment, but resiewed the papers and gave his
comments to the Comnuttee Chairman prior to the meeting
There s a good lesel of communication between members of the
Commuttee betwon meetings

I he Commuttee recennes advice trom several diffurent sources
— The Company Secretary who acts as Secretary to the
Commutee and provides advice on corporate gosernance, legal
and regulatory 1ssues as well as the design and aperation of the
long-lcrm incentine schemes
— Members of the exccutive team or other third parties as they
sed fit including
— The Chief Executive to provide information on corporate or
indnidual performance to the Commuttee, or to provide
recommendations regardmg the remuneration packages of
mdndual Directors
— The Chairman to provide informanon on the performance
of indnidual Directors, including the Chief Executne
— The Chief Financial Officer to pros e financial information
relatng to the Group
— The Chairman of the Risk Commuttee as part of the
Compam s nish management process
— New Bridge Street as mdependent adviser to the Commuttee

74 St James's Place ple

Any recommendations from the management team are discussed
b the Committee and adopted or amended as the Commuttee
sees fit No Director 1s present at any part of a metting of the
Commttee when thetr indinidual remuneration or contractual
terms are berng discussed

Advisors to the Committee

The Committec 15 advised by independent remuncration
consultants New Bridge Strect (a tradimg name of Aon Hewitt
Limited being an Aon plc company}

New Bridge Street 1s in regular contact with the Remuneration
Committce Chairman to discuss remuneration matters which are
of particular relevance to the Company, and how best it can work
with the Company to mect the Committeds needs New Bridge
Strect1sasignatory to the Remuneration Consultants’ Code

of Conduct

The total fees pard to New Bridge Street tor the advice provided
to the Commuttec durmg the year was £80,165 Feesare charged
predominately on a ‘time spunt’ basis

Neither New Bridge Strect, nor ws parent company Aon ple, has
provided any other services to the Company during the vear
other than some consultancy work relating to the property fund
which Aon Hew itt prosided to the Imvestment Commuttee and
further consultancy work relating to hedge funds The total fees
paid to Aon Hewatt for consultaney work during the year

was £113,000

The Remuneration Commuttec 1s satishied that thesc additional
stryvices i no way compronuscd the independence of advice
providid by New Bridge Street to the Commtted

Statement of Sharcholding Voting at AGM
At last year’s AGM, the Dircetors’ Remuneration Report
recened the following votes from sharcholders

Remuncration Report

Total number of votes % of votes cast

For 423,055,306 99 3%
Apainst 2,945,481 0 7%
Abstentions 104,101 N/A
Total 426,104,888 100%
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Total Shareholder Return performance

The graph below shows a comparison of the Compamy s TSR performance against the FTSE All-Sharc index over the last five financial
years The Company consilers this to be the most appropriate comparative index, ginen the broad nature of the index and the
companies within it
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Directors’ Remuncration (audited)

The information set out m the following tables are subject to audit These tables have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the exisung Schedule 8 legislation, which remains the basis for statutory reporting until the new regulations take
effect in October 2013

Total Directors’ remuncration for the year ended 31 December 2012 1s show n below, with comparative figures for the year ended
31 December 2011

Year cnded Year unded

31 December 31 Decumber

2012 2011

Aggregate emoluments £ 1
Fees to Non-executine Directors 527,187 428,025
Emoluments to Executine Directors 2,466,254 3,152,584
Aggregate gains on excreise of share awards 3,016,563 1,949 983
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes — see note™” to the follow ing table 294,600 354,668

6,304,604 5,885,260
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The follow ing table, which has been preparcd o accordance with regulatery requiraments, sets out the elements of Directors’
aggregate emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2012, or for the period ended 31 December 2012 1f appointed during the year

2012 2011
Deferred Aggregate Aggregate
Ihrector Salaries & Fees Cash Bonus Bonus Benefits  Emoluments  Emoluments
£ £ £ £ £ £
Sarah Bates 65,564 — - - 65,564 68,775
Vivian Bamlgcttc 76,287 - — — 76,287 53,175
David Bellamy 465,000 127,875 127,875 53,792 774,542 860,396
Steve Colsell 26,250 - — - 26,250 26,250
lain Cornish 63,876 - - — 63,876 10,500
Andrew Croit 336,000 92,400 92,400 41,192 561,992 626,126
lan Gascoigne 336,000 92,400 92,400 46,792 567,592 631,802
Charles Gregqon 165,000 - — — 165,000 48,300
David Lamb 336,000 92,400 92,400 41,328 562,128 627,107
Mike Power 79,974 - - - 79,974 64,050
Rogcr Walsom 16,092 - — - 16,092 45,150
Baroness Wheatcroft 34,144 - - - 34,144 -
Notis

(1} Benefits comprise the entitlement to compans <ar or cash equinalent fuel priatc health care, hfe and ernical dlness cover, permanent health insurance and health
screening and are gencrally the amounts which are roturned for taxation purposcs

(1) The foes in respect of the services of Steve Colsull arc pavable dircctly to Lloyds Banking Group

(1} The contributions made to the money purchas group penvion scheme for David Bdllamy Andrew Croft lan Gascoigne and Davad Lamb were £93,000 (2011 £91,667)
£67,200 (2011 £66,667), £67,200 (2011 £66 667)and L67 200 (2041 L66,667) respectivaly bung 20% of base salary carned 1n 2012 Lo the extent that pension
contributions werd capped by legislabon anon pensionable salary supplemcnt was paid to the Frecutine Directors for the balance

(1) As explained on page 67, half of the annual bonus ts paid in cash, with the other hall bung used to purchase St James's Place shares which are. subject to forferture for three
years under the terms of the Deforred Bonus Scheme

(v) Mike Walson, a former Director of the Company was pauld £200,000 tn 2012 us respect of hus role as Chairman of the St James s IPlace Foundation, assisting the Academy
and the recrntmant and retention of the membiers of the St Jamu s s Place Partncrship

Details of variable pay earned 1n the year
Annual Bonus
For the year under report, the performance conditions which apphied to the bonus and the resulting payout under these were as follow s

Proportion of total bonus

available Actual Resulting bonus out-turn
% of performance % of

Performance Hurdle maximuin % of salary achieved maximum % of salary
EEV opurating profit range of between

£360m 10 £395m 33 33% 40% £365 9m 8 3% 10%
EEV new business profit range of between

£275m and £317m (Note (1)) 33 33% 40% £282 Im § 3% 10%
Performance of Executine Directors as a team 1n

delnering the main strategic non-financial See note

objectives set out in the business plan 33 33% 40% (1) below 29 2% 35%
Total 100% 120% 45 8% 55%
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(1) Profitfrom new husiness 1s the FEV nuw business contribution plus the profits ansing 1n the distributton company as shown in the segmental analysis

(1) At the start of the vear under report the Commuttee agreefl that the pcrfnrmancv. of the Executive Dircctors as a team would be measured against a number of non Anancial
objictives set out in the business plan These objectives included retention of funds undcr manage ment, client satisfaction, measured through chent rescarch carried vut by
an independent third party during the year fund management performance compared to peer groups and benchmark indices, complaint luvels, the effectavenuss of the
example portfolies, growth in Partnership numbers, complition of the professional qualifications and ather changes to business processes required by the FSA s Retasl
Distesbution Review (RIJR) Partner productivity, the successful retention of Academy recruits the adoption of elcctronic business submission In, the Partonership, the
maintenance of good invistor relavions and good relations with the Group s regulators The Committee considered how the Executne Directors had performed as a team in
rlatson to all of the above factors duning 2012, taking mto account the views of the Chairman and the other Non executne Directors, proposals made by the Chief
Executive, and documentary esidence of the prformance of the Group againyt vartous scales set by the Commuttec at the start of the vear Taking into account the Group s
performance 1n 2012, particularly the long term purformance record, elunt experience the growth in the sizc of the Partnorshup, the satisfactory compleuon of the
profussional quahifications, requirements and readiness for RDR, the Commttec awarded 35% of salary for the team performance element of the bonus

() The Commetice retains the discretion to amend each dement of the bonus, up or down within the overall cap of 120% of salary, to take into account other reluvant tactors
such as the Group's performance compared to compcutor orgamisations or, for instance an exceptional positine or negative cient which impacts the Group The Commutted
reviowed the Group s purformance as well as competitors and the cxternal market at the end of the performance period and agreed that ne adjusiment was required

(v} Half of the bonus 1s pard in eash with the remainder boing unvested in the Company s shares and deferred for three years, under the Group s deferred bonus plan

Long-Term Incentive Awards

Performance Share Plan (audited)

On 3i December 2012, the awards made on 8 March 2010 under the Company s PSP reached the end of their three-yecar performance
period These will vest on 8 March 2013, buing the third anniversary of the date of grant The porformance conditions which applied

to the 2010 PSP awards, and the actual performance achiescd against these conditions were as follow s
Average annual adjusted EPS growth Average annual adjusted EPS

(including the unwind of the
discount rate) in excess of RPI

growth {extluding the unwind of

TSR relative to the FTSE 250° the discount rate) 1n excess of RP1

% of one third of Performance % of one third of Performance % of one third of

Performance Level Hurdle Performance required award vesting required award vesting required award vesting
Below threshold Below Median 0% BRelow 5% 0% Below 5% 0%
Threshold Mcdian 25% At least 5% 25% At lcast 5% 25%
Stretch or above Upper Quartile or above 100%  16% or above 100% 16% or above 100%
Actual Achicved 66 out of 171 companies 60 1% 19 6% 100% 26 7% 100%

* FTSE 250 excluding investment trusts and companies in the FTSE O and Gas producers and | TSE mining sectors

Accordingly, the total percentage of the 2010 PSP awards sesting was 87%, this resulted 1n the follow ing anards vesting to the
Executive Dircctors

Total number of shares granted Perecntage of awards vesting Number of shares vesting Value of shares vesting (£000)'

David Bellamy 316,666 87% 275,499 £1,090,97¢
Andrew Croft 219,607 87% 191,058 £756,590
lan Gascoigne. 219,607 87% 191,058 £756,590
David Lamb 219,607 87% 191,058 £756,590

(1} The deemed share price used to caleulate the salye of shares vesting was £3 96 being the three month average to 31 December 2012 (as the awards will not actually vost
until 8 March 2013)
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Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to induiduals who were Dircetors during 2012 and which had
}Lt to vest at some point (lurmg the ycar

Performance Share Plan - awards held in return for quahfying services during 2012 (audited)

Balance at Granted 1n Lapsed in Exercised Balance at
Director 1 January 2012 yeart™ year®™ wnyear 31 December 2012 Dates from which exercisable
Dasvid Bellam 331,168(1) - 56,553 274,615 - 2 Mar 2012 to 2 Sept 2012
316,666(1) — - — 316,666 8 Mar 2013 10 8 Mar 2016
267,322 (1) - - - 267,322 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
242,220 - - 242 220 26 Mar 2015 w 26 Mar 2018
Androw Croft 249,350(1) - 42,581 206,769 — 2 Mar 2012 to 2 Sept 2012
219,607(1) - - 219,607 8 Mar 2013 10 § Mar 2016
177,912 (1) — - — 177,912 15 Mar 2014 1o 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 10 26 Mar 2018
lan Gascoigne 249,35041) — 42,581 206,769 - 2 Mar 2012 10 2 Sept 2012
219,607(u) — - — 219,607 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
177,912 an — - - 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018
David Lamb 218,181q1) — 37,259 180,922 - 2 Mar 2012 to 2 Sept 2012
219,607(n) - - - 219,607 8 Mar 2013 to 8 Mar 2016
177,912 (1) — - — 177,912 15 Mar 2014 to 15 Mar 2017
161,206 - - 161,206 26 Mar 2015 to 26 Mar 2018

Nates

(1) Those awards wore made on 2 March 2009 whon the St James s Place share price was £1 73 The performance prnod was the threc vear poriod «nding on 31 Decumber
2011 The performance <ondrtions riate to FPS for two thirds of the award and TSR for one third of the anard  compared 1 a comparator group of other financial services
compani s The EPS sale sarts at RPI+7% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPU+16% for 100% of the award to vest with pro rata vosting between the saied
points The TSR shding scale 1s between median and upper quarttle, wath 25% of the TSR part of the award vesting at median

(1) Thuse anards were made on 8 March 2010 when the St James s Place share price was £2 57 The performance punied 1s the thred vear period ending on 31 Docember 2012
The threw performancy conditions, cach in respect of one third of the award, rulate 1o (1) FPS (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate, as described more
fullv on page 70} (u) FPS excluding the impact of the said unwind and {m) TSR compared 1o the F ISE All Sharc lndex excluding imestment trusts and companies 1o the
oil, gas and mining scctors The FPS scale starts at RPL+7% for 25% of the award to vust and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata sesung
between the said pornts  The TSR shding scale 15 between median and uppor quarnle, with 25% of the 15R part of the award vesting at mudian Up to 11 764 sharus (buny
the £30k Inland Revenue cap on *approved share options) can be exercised via a linked award under an approved share option scheme wath an exercise price of £2 55

(1) Thuse awards waere made on 15 March 2011 when the % James s Place share price was L3 14 The performance period s the three vear period ending on 31 Ducumber 2013
The performance conditions, each tn respect of one third of the award, relate to (1) EPS (including the impact of the unwind of the discount rate as describod more fulls on
page 70, (1) EPS excluding the impact of the said unwind and (1) TSR compared 1w the FTSE All Shard Index, xcluding mvestmunt trissts and companies in the o1l gas
and mining sectors The EPS scale starts at RPL+5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPI +16% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro rata vesting betwien the
said points The TSR shding scale 15 between mudian and upper quartile with 25% of the T5R part of the award vesting at median

(1) These awards were made on 26 March 2012 when the St Jamos s Place share price was £3 73 The performance period 1s the three vear period ending on 31 December 2014

The performance condinions  each 1n respect of ane third of the award relate to (1) EPS (ncluding the umpact of the unwind of the discount rate,, as deseribed more fully on

page 70) (u) EPS excluding the 1mpac: of the said unwind and n) TSR compardd to the FTSE Al Share Index, excluding imvestment trusts and companies tn the o1l gas

and mining sectors The EPS scalc starts at RP1 +5% for 25% of the award to vest and ends at RPl +16% for 100% of the award 1o vest wath pro rata ve sting between the

said points The TSR shding seale 15 between median and upper quartile, with 25% of the TSR part of the anard vesting at median

These awards lapsed 1n part due to the purformance conditions based on TSR (more fully doseribod in note (1) above) not bang fully satisbed and as a result 17 07% of the

award lapsed at the end of the performance period

(+1} On 13 March 2012 when the mid market price was £3 52 David Bellamy excrciscd 274 6135 PSP share anards resulting inagam of £853 190, Andriw Croft exe rowsed
206,769 PSP share awards resulting in a gain of £717 696, lan Gascoigne exeraised 206 769 PSP share awards resulting in a gam of £717 696 and David Lamb exercised
180,922 PSP share awards resulting 1na gain of £627 981

*

fo
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Dgferred Bonus Scheme — Shares held during 2012 (audited)
The table below sets out details of the anards held by the Directors under the deferred element of the annual bonus scheme during 2012

Balance at Released Awarded Balance at

Director 1 January 2012 during year®? during year®? 31 December 2012 Vesting Date
David Bellamy 34,931 34,931 - - 4 Mar 2012
89,990 - - 89,990 10 Mar 2013

77,558 - - 77,558 15 Mar 2014

- 49,563 49,563 26 Mar 2015

Andrew Croft 26,301 26,301 - - 4 Mar 2012
67,757 — - 67,757 10 Mar 2013

58,397 - — 58,397 15 Mar 2014

- 35,813 35,813 26 Mar 2(M5

lan Gascoigne 26,301 26,301 - - 4 Mar 2012
67,7157 - - 67,157 16 Mar 2013

58,397 - - 58,397 15 Mar 2014

- 35,813 35,813 26 Mar 2015

David Lamb 23,972 23,972 - - 4 Mar 2012
59,287 - - 59,287 10 Mar 2013

58,397 - — 58,397 15 Mar 2014

- 35,813 35,813 26 Mar 2015

Notes

{1} These deferred share awards werc awardud on 4 March 2009 cqual in value to 1he exccutive’s 2008 annual cash bonus The St James s Place share price on the date of the
award was L1 85 and an the date of release (13 March 2012y was £3 52

{11) These defirred share awards were avarded an 26 March 2012 cqualinvalue to the cxecutine s 2011 annual cash bonus  These shares wall be held for a rustricted period
cnding on 26 March 2015 The St James s Place share price on 26 March 2012 was £3 73

{u1) Qutstanding awards at the yoar end relate te deferred share awards awarded ain 2010, 2011 and 2012 (see (a1) above) The share price at the date of the 2010 award
(10 March 2010) was £2 54 and as at the date of the 2011 award (15 March 2011) was £3 14

(1v) Turther detarls of the deferred dement of the annual bonus schume are set out on page 67
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SAYE Share Option Scheme — Options awarded in remrnfor qualgjjzmg services during 2011 (audited)
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2012 under the SAYE scheme and any movements during the year are as follows

Options held at Granted Lapsed Exercisedin Options held at Fxercise
Director L January 2012 n year! n year year® 31 December 2012 price Dates from which exercisable
David Bellamy 6,100 - - 6,100 - L1501 May 2012 to 31 Oct 2012
3,040 - - 3,040 L2961 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
Andrew Croft 6,100 - - 6,100 - L1501 May 2012 to 31 Oct 2012
3,040 - - 3,040 £2 96 1 May 2015 to 31 Oct 2015
lan Gascoigne 6,100 - - 6,100 - 150 1 May 2012 to 31 Oct 2012
3,272 - - 3,272 L2775 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
David Lamb 6,100 - - 6,100 - L1 50 1 May 2012 to 31 Oct 2012
3,272 - - 3,272 £275 1 Nov 2015 to 30 Apr 2016
Notus

(1) David Bellamy and Andrew Croft were pranted options undcr the SAYT share aption schume on 23 March 2012 David §amb and lan Gascongne werde granted options under
the SAYE share option scheme on 26 Scptember 2012

() David Bellamy, Andrew Croft lan Gascoigne and David Lamb excreised share aptions held under the SAYE share option schemt on 3 May 2012 when the mid markct price
of S5t James s Place shares was £3 32

(n}At 31 December 2012 the mid market price for St Jamcs's Place shares was £4 215 The range of prices betwedn 1 January 2012 and 31 December 2012 was between
L3 034 and £4 226

Share Incentive Plan — Shares held during 2012 (aud:ted)
The table bolow sets out detatls of the awards held by the Directors under the Share Incentive Plan during 2012

Balance at Partnership shares Matching shares Balance at Holding period

Dhrector I January 2012 allocated during year  allocated during year 31 December 2012 {Matching Shares)
26 Mar 2010 to

Andrew Croft™ 642 - - 642 26 Mar 2013
28 Mar 2011 to

lan Gascmgne"" 502 — - 502 28 Mar 2014

Notes

(1) 584 Partnership shares were awarded on 26 Mareh 2010 unds r the Shard Incontise Plan at a price of £2 5675 per share, o return for £1 500 bung deducted from Mr Croft s
pre tax salary A further 58 Matching sharcs werc awarded on the same date The Partnirship and Matching shares will be held by an employec benefit trust on behalf of the
[nrector The Matching shares must be held for a minimum period of three years from the date of the award

(1} 457 Partnership shares were awarded un 28 March 2011 under the Share Incentin Plan at a price of £3 2775 per share, i retura for £1 500 bang deducted from
Mr Gascorgne s pre tax salarv A further 45 Matching shares were anarded on the same date The Partnership and Matching shares will be held by an employ ee benefit
trust on behalf of the Director  The Matching sharcs must be held for 2 minimum puriod of three years from the datw of the avward

Between 31 December 2012 and 27 February 2013 there werc no transactions in the Company’s share options by Directors
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The interests of the Dircetors in the sharc capital of the Company as at 1 January 2012 (or as at the date of appointment, 1f applicable)

and as at 31 December 2012 (or as at the date of resignation, 1f applicable) are given below

31 December 2012

1 January 2012

Ordinary Shares  Ordinary Shares
Director of I5 pence cach  of 15 pence each
Sarah Bates 13,500 13,500
Vivian Bazalgette 20,000 10,000
David Bellamy 1,346,608 1,177,698
Steve Colsell - -
lain Cormish - -
Andrew Croft 746,298 643,901
lan Gascoigne 688,515 573,924
Charles Gregson 12,535 12,535
David Lamb 428,141 410,200
Mike Power - -
Raoger Walsom™ 3,194 3,194
Baroness Wheatcroft® 1,500 - ‘

Notes
(1) Thentorests of the Directors include thase of thur Cennceted Pursons as defingd in section 96B(2) of the Financual Services and Markets Act

(1) The interests of the Executne Ehrectors set out above include deferred bomis scheme awards held in erust for the Directors, details of which are set out on page 79

The intrests of the [ xecutne Dircctors also include awards under the Share Incentive Plan detarls of which are sct out on page 80

{u1) The Campany's register of Directors interests contains full details of Directors sharcholdings and any share awards under the Company s various share schemes

{1v) Roger Walsom resigned as a Durector on 8 May 2012
{+) Baronuss Wheatcroft was appointed to the Board on 2 April 2012

{31) Disclosure of the Dircetors’ mterests tn share awards 15 grven on pages 77 te 80 of the Remuncration Report and also in Note 32 — Relatcd Party Transactions

Between 31 December 2012 and 27 February 2013 there were no transactions in the Company’s shares by Directors
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Dilutron

Dilution limuts agreed by shareholders at the time of sharcholder approsal of the various long-term mcentive schemes allow for the following

— up to 5% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes,

— up to 10% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees undcr all employce share schemcs, and

— up to 15% of share capital tn ten ycars to be used for grants to employees and members of the St James’s Place Partnership (the
Group’s sales force) under all share schemes 1 e both the employee and ‘Partner’ share schemes This increased limut reflects the
umique structure of the business and the importance of the Partnership to the on going suecess of the Group

The table below sets out, as at 31 December 2012, the number of new ordinary shares in the Company which have been 1ssued, or arc
capable of being 15sued (subject to the satisfaction of any applicable pertormance conditions) as a result of options or awards granted
under the various long-term incentive schemes operated by the Company i the ten years prior to 31 December 2012

Number of new % of total 1ssued

ordinary shares of share capital as at

Share Scheme 15 pence each 31 December 2012
SAYE schemcs 6,511,266 1 29%
Executive Share schemes 12,476,211 2 46%
Partners' Share schemes 21,553,779 4 25%
Total 40,541,256 8 00%

In addition, as at 31 December 2012, the Group’s Employee Share Trust held 212,984 shares in the Company which were purchased m
the market to satisfy awards made under the PSP and executive share option schemes

A further 2,917,453 shares, registered to employees under the turms of the Group’s deferred bonus scheme, have been allocated by the
Group's Employee Share Trust Thuse shares are allocated to the relevant indiiduals on a restricted basis whereby the reciprents

arc not entitled to the shares until completion of the three year restricted period  Further details of the deferred bonus scheme are sct
out on page 67

Lloyds Banking Group plc (qudited)
The Dircctors had no intcrests in the share capital of Lloyds Banking Group plc as at 31 Deccmber 2012 except for the beneficial
interests set out below

31 December 2012 1 January 2012

Ordinary Shares of Ordinary Shares of

10 pence each 10 pence each

in 1 loyds Banking n Lloyds Banking

Director Group Group
Steve Colsell 624,126 111,538
lan Gascoigne 8,086 8,086
David Lamb 307 307

Between 31 December 2012 and 27 February 2013 there have been na transactions in shares of the Llovds Banking Group by the
Directors
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Interests in Shares Held 1n Trusts

Certain Executn e Directors and employees are deemed to have an interest or a potential interest as potential discretionary
benehciaries under the St James's Place Emplovee Share Trust As such, they were treated as at 31 December 2012 as being interested
mn 71,072 ordmary shares of 15 pence in the Company, such shares being held by § G Hambros Trust Company {Channc! Islands)
Limited, the trustee of that trust

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Sarah Bates
Chairman, Remuneration Commuttee

27 February 2013
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

We have audited the group financial statements of St James’s
Place ple for the ycar ended 31 December 2012 which comprise
the Consohdated Statement of Comprehensiy ¢ Income,
Consoheated Statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position, Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flows and the related notes The financial reporting framework
that has becn apphied in their preparation 15 applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs"} as adopted
by the Europcan Unon

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As uxplained moere tully in the Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities set out on page 64, the directors are responsible
for the preparanion of the group financial statcments and for being
satisficd that they give a true and fair view Our responsibiliey 1s
to audit and express an opinion on the group hinanaal statements
m accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ircland) Thosc standards require us to comphy
with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for
Auditors

This report, including the opimons, has been prepared for and
only for the company’s members as a body 1n accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purpose We do not, 1n giving thesc opinions, accept or assume
responstbibity for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report 1s show n or into whose hands 1t may come sase
where cxpressly agreed by our prior consent n w riting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

Anaudit invohves obtaiing evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements suthcient to gne reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are tree from materal
mustatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the group’s circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting
estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and
non-financial informanon in the Annual Report and Accounts to
wdentify material inconsistcncies with the audited financial
statements If we become aware of any apparcnt material
misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the impheations

for our report

Opmion on financial statements

In our opinton the group financial statements

— gneatrue and fair view of the state of the group’s affairs as at
31 December 2012 and of 1ts profit and cash flow s for the yar
then ended,

— have been properly prepared in accordance with 1FRSs as
adopted by the European Unien, and

— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the

Companies Act 2006 and Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulation
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Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

In our opinien

— the information grven in the Directors’ Report for the financial
year for which the group financiat statements are prepared 15
consistent with the group financial statements, and

— the information gnen in the Corporate Governance Report set
out on pages 50 to 64 1n the Annual Report and Accounts with
respect to internal contral and risk management systems and
about share capital structures 1s consistent with the Financial
Statements

Matters on which we are required to report by
exception
W have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you

if, 1n our opinton

— certain disclosures of directors’ remuncration specificd by law
are not made, or

— we have not recerved all the information and explanations we
require for our audit

Under the Listing Rules w ¢ are required to rcview

— the directors’ statement, set out i the Directors’ Report, n
rclation to going concern,

— the part of the Corporate Governance Statement relating to
the company’s comphance with the nine provisions of the UK
Corporate Governance Code speaihed for our review, and

— curtain elements of the report to shareholdcrs by the Board on
directors’ remuneration

Other matter

We have reported scparately on the parent company financial
statements of St James's Place plc for the year ended

31 Decembcr 2012 and on the information in the Directors’
Remuneration Report that is described as hayving been audited

Craig Gentle (Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and en behalf of PriccwaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

27 February 2013

(a) The maintenance and integrity of the St James s Place ple wibsite is the
responsibility of the directors the work carried out by the auditors does not
nvohe consideration of these matters and accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsthiliny for any changes that may hasve oceurred to the financial statemonts
since lhc} were mmtiallv prcscmcd on the website

(b;

~

Legrslation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissemination
of financial statuments may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions
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Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended Yiar Ended
31 December 31 December
Notes 2012 2011
£ Mallion £ Million
Insurance premium income 66.1 73 4
Less premiums ceded to remnsurcrs {26.9) 29 7)
Net insurance premium income 39.2 437
Fee and commission income 4 643 1 524 9
Investment return 5 3,407.7 (1,117 1)
Other operating income 12 16
Net income 3 4,091 2 (546 9
Policy claims and bendfits
— Gross amount (52 6) (58 1)
— Runsurers’ share 210 231
Net pohicyholder claims and benefits incurred (31 6) (35 0y
Change in insurance contract liabilities
— Gross amount (30 0) 239
— Reinsurers’ share (04) 04
Net change 1n insurance contract liabilities (30 4) 243
Investment contract benefits 1,22 (3,246.2) 1,029 3%
Fees, commission and other acquisition costs (409.0) (369 3)
Administration expenses (119.0) (118 7)
Other operating expenses (32) (3 8)
6 (5312) (491 8)
Profit/(loss) before tax 1,3 251 8 (20 1)*
l'ax attributable to policyholders’ returns 1,8 (117 2) 129 8*
Profit before tax attributable to shareholders’ returns 134.6 109 7
Total tax (expense)/credit 1,8 (144 7) 126 9%
Less tax attributable to policyholders' returns 1,8 117.2 (129 §)*
Tax attributable to sharcholders’ returns 8 (275) 29)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 107.1 106 8
Pence Pence
Basic carnings per share 9 215 219
Diluted earnings per share 9 212 212

*

Thesc figures have been re presented te more appropriately reflect the tax prostsion for tax deductions on deemed disposals of unit trust haldings Therc 1s no impact on the

profit before tax attributable to shareholders returns, the profit attributably to the sharcholders of the company or carnings per share More information is gnen in Mot 1

to these accounts

The notes and information on pages 90 to 136 form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Statement

CDIPDHHC Gmermmre

of Changes in Equity I

Treasury
Share Share Shares Retained Maiscellaneous
Notes Capital Premwum Reserve Earnings Rescryves Total
£ Million £ Milhon £ Miulhon £ Million £ Midhon £ Million
At ] January 2011 729 98 1 (8 2) 421 2 23 586 3 |
Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year 106 § 106 8
— Duvidends 10 (35 1) (351
— Issue of share capital
—Serip dradend 02 33 35
— Excreise of options 09 90 99
Consideration pad for own shares {3 6) 3 6)
Own shares vesting charge 33 3 3) -
Retained earnings creditin ruspect of share
option charges 30 10 5 105
At 31 December 2011 740 110 4 (8 5) 500t 23 678 3
Profit and total comprehensive income for the
year 107 1 107 1
— iDividends 10 (45 3) {45 3)
— Issue of share capital
— Exercise of aptions 20 173 193
Consideration pawd for own shares (24 24
Ow n shares vesting charge 20 {20) -
Retained earnings credit m respect of share
option charges 30 54 54
Retamned carmings credht in respect of proceeds
from exercise of sharc options held in trust 01 01
At 31 December 2012 76 0 127.7 89 5654 23 762.5
The number of shares held in the Ireasury Share Reserse s gnen in Note 29 Share Capital on page 129
Miscellaneous reseries represent other non-distributable reserves
The notes and information on pages 30 to 136 form part of these accounts
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Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position

31 December

3t Decumber

Notes 2012 2011
£ Mullicn L Million
Assets
Intangible assets
— Defcrred acquisition costs 11 9716 865 1
— Acquired value of in force business 11 432 46 4
— Computcr software 11 117 84
— Customer list 11 30 09
1,029.5 920 8
Proporty & equipment 12 3.6 54
Delerred tax assets 13 190.9 248 §
Invcstment property 14 5976 5509
Invcstments
— Equities 18,991 6 15,743 4
— Fixed income securities 50799 3,7581
— Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 4,109 1 3,002 7
— Dernative Finanecial Instruments 861 28 2
Reinsurance assets 20 38.6 390
Insurance and investment contract receiables 46 5 445
Income tax assets 852 413
Gther recenables 16 508 4 5302
Cash & cash equivalents 17 2,997 0 2,329 3
Total assets 33,7640 2724213
Liabilities
Insurance contract habilities 19 424 0 394 0
Other pronisions 21 92 31
Financial liabilities
— Investment contracts 22 27,1474 22,2273
— Borrow ings 23 707 438
— Dernatine Financial Instruments 536 43 4
Deferred tax habilities 24 269 0 2189
Insurance and 1y estment contract pavables 24.9 299
Deferred income 25 616.5 5369
Income tax habilities 77.2 12 4
Other payables 26 434.2 376 4
Nct asset value attributable to umit holders 3,874 8 2,6779
Total habihties 33,001 5 26,564 ¢
Net assets 762 5 678 3
Sharcholders’ equity
Share capital 29 76 0 740
Share promium 1277 110 4
Treasury shares reserve 89) (8 5)
Miscellaneous reserves 23 23
Retained carnings 565.4 500 1
Total shareholders’ equity 762.5 678 3
Pence Pence
Net asscts per share 150 4 1375

The financial statements on pages 86 to 136 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

D Bellamy Chief Executsie A Croft Chief Finanaal Gfficer

The notes and information on pages 90 to 136 form part of these accounts
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Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
Nates 2012 2011
£ Mithon £ Million
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/{loss) belore tax for the period 2518 (20 1=
Adjustments for
Deprecation 12 23 26
[mpairment losses 12 0.4 01
Amortisation of acquired valuc of m-torce business 11 32 38
Amortiation of computer software and customer st 1 06 03
Fair value gans on non-operating imestments — 0 3)
Sharc based payment charge 30 54 105
Changes 1n operating assets and habilities
Increasc in deferrcd acquisition costs (106 5) (109 4)
Increase in nvestment property (46 7) (153 1)
Increase in 1mvestments (5,7343) (1,195 86)
Decrease/(increase) 1n reassurance assets 04 (04)
Increase 1n insurance and 1mvestment contract recenables (2.0} (30 3)
(Increase)/decrease 1n other recenables (12.3) 61
Increase/{decrease) i insurance contract habihities 30.0 (23 9)
Increase/(decreasc) 1n provisions 61 {0 5)
Increase in financial iabihites (cxeluding borrowings) 4,9303 1,099 9%
Decrease in insurance and imvestment contract payables (50) (14 7
Increase n deferrcd income 796 673
[ncrease/(decrease) in other payables 57.8 {57 2)
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders 1,196 9 7330
Cash gencrated from operating activities 658.0 3181
Income taxes recen ed/(pard) 180 (25 6)
Net cash from operating activities 676.0 292 5
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property & equipment (09 (14)
Acquisition of intangible assets 11 (60) (75
Proceeds from sale of property & equtpment - 12
Net cash from 1nvesting activities {(69) 77
Cash flows from financing activities
Procecds from the 1ssue of share capital 193 99
Consideration paid for ow n shares (2.4) 36)
Proceeds from exeraise of options over shares held in trust 01 -
Addional borrow ings 700 300
Repavment of borrowings (43.1) (21
Drvidends paid 10 {45.3) (31 6)
Net cash from financing activities (14) 26
Net increase 1n cash & cash equivalents 667 7 287 4
Cash & cash equnalents at 1 January 2,329 3 2,042 0
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held - on
Cash & cash equivalents at 31 December 2,997 0 2,329 3

Exchange rate fluctuations result from cash held in the unit-hnked funds

* Thuse figures hase buen re presented to more appropraately reflect the tax provisien for tax deductions on decmed dispesats of unit trust holdings There 15 no 1mpact on the
net mcriase 1n cash & cash cquinalents More information 1s givenin Notc | to these accounts

The notes and informaton on pages 90 to 136 form part of these accounts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards

I ACCOUNTING POLICIES
St James's Place plc (‘the Company’) 15 a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales

Statement of Compliance
The Group financial statements consalidate these of the Company and 1ts subsidiartes (together referred to as the ‘Group’)

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approsed by the Directors in accordance with Inturnational Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*adopted [FRSs") and interpretations 1ssued by the International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Commuttee ('IFRIC) and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 that are apphicable when reporting under IFRS

The follow ing amended standard, which the Group has adopted as of 1 January 2012, has not had any material impact on the Group’s
reported rosults

IFRS7 Amendment — Financial instruments Iisclosures

As at 31 December 2012, the following standards, which are relevant to the Group but have not been applied in the financial
statements, were in issuc but not yet effectine

T1AS 1 Amcndment — Financial statement presentation

IAS 12 Amendment — Income taxes

IA§ 28  Resvised — Imvostments it associates and joint ventures
[AS 32 Amendment — Financial instruments Presentation
IFRS 7 Amendment — Ninancial instruments Disclosures
[FRS 9 Financal instruments — Classification and measurement
[FRS 10 Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 Amendment — Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests in other entities

IFRS 12 Amendment — Disclosurces of interests in other entities
IFRS 13 Fair value measurcment

Annual Improyements to [IFRSs 2009-2011 Cydle

The adoption of the aboyve standards and interpretauon 1s not expected to have any material impact on the Group’s results reported
within the financial statements other than requiring addittonal disclosure or alternatn e presentation

The Group financial statements also comply with the rovised Statement of Recommended Practice 1ssued by the Association of British
Insurers in December 2005 (as amended in December 2006), 1n 50 far as these requirements do not contradict IFRS requirements

Basis of Preparation
As discussed 1n the Directors’ Report, the going concern basis has been adopted in preparing these accounts

The financial statements arc presented 1n pounds sterling, roundcd to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds They are prepared on
a historical cost basis except for assets classified as imvestment property, imvestments and currency forwards, and habhties chissified as
mvestment contracts, insurance contracts and third party holdings in unit trusts, whech are held at fair vatue

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the applicavon of policies and reported amounts of assets and habilities, income and expenses The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expenience and various other factors that are bilieved to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of makmg the yudgments about carry ng values of assets and liabnhtics that are not readily apparent
from other sources Acrual results may differ from these estimates
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are review ed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised i the
pentad in which the estimate 1s revised if the revision affects only that puriod, or in the peniod of the resision and future periods, if the
revision affects both current and future periods

judgements made by management in the application of IFR 55 that have signtficant effect on the financial statements and esumates with
a sigmihicant risk of material adjustment 1 the next year are discussed in Note 2

The financal statements are prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under
1FRS and the accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods prescnted m these consohidated
financial statements

Re-presentation of tax deductions on deemed disposals of unit trust holdings

[n prior years the provision for tax deductions on deemed disposals of unit trust holdings has been shown as an actuarial reserve within
‘Financial habilitics — investment contracts’ with the moscment in that provision being shown w ithin imestment contract benefits

The prosentation of this provision has been changed in the current vear to more appropriately retlect its nature with the provision
being presented wathin ‘Deferred tax halhties’ and the mosements in the provision bung reported as tax attributable to
pohcyholdrs’ returns within the tax charge

1 he consohdated statement of comprchensive income for the year ended 31 Dccember 2011 has been re-presented to reflect this
change with the credit for ‘Investment contract henefits” and profit bfore tax being reduced by £41 4 mulion and the tax credit
attributable to policyholders’ returns and the overall tax credit being increased by £41 4 millien The profit before tax attributable
to sharcholders’ returns, the profit attributable to the sharcholders of the company and earnings per share are unaffected by this
prescntation change The impact of this change in presentation on the consolidated statement of hnancial position at 31 December
2011 would not have becn material and so this statement has not been re-presented  The impact of this change on the consohdated
statument of financial position at 1 January 2011 was to increase deferred tax habilities by £41 4 mullion to £265 7 mullion with a
corresponding reduction tn ‘Financial liabilitics — imvestment contracts’ to £21,150 5 milhon The change has no impact on the total
assets, hiabilities or equity at 1 January 2011 and therefore the dircctors do not conaider it necessary to include a re-presented
consolidated statement of financial position at that date

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial infarmation incorporates the assets, hahities and the, results of the Company and of 1ts subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are thosc entities 1n which the Group directly or indircctly has the power to govern the financial and operating policies in
order to gain benefits from s activitics (including unit trusts i which the Group holds more than half of the units) The Group uses
the acquisition method of accounting to account for business combinations T'he financial statements of subsidiarics are included 1n the
consolulated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ccascs Accounting policies of
subsicharies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency w th pohaes adopted by the Group

[ntragroup balances, and any income and expenses or unrealised gans and losscs arising from wtragroup transactions, are eliminated
n preparing the consolidated financial statements

(b} Product classification
The Group's products are classified for accounting purposes as cither insurance contracts or imy estiment contracts

(1) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are contracts that transfer significant insurance risk The Group’s product range includes a variety of term
assurance and whole of life protection contracts involving significant insurance sk transfer

(1) Investment contracts

Contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are treated as investment contracts: The majority of the business written by
the Group 1s unit hnked investment business and 15 classificd as investment contracts
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards conunued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(<) Long-term business

(1} Insurance premium revenue

For unit linked insurance contracts, promiums are recognised as resenue when the habihities arising from them are ruogmscd
All other premiums are accounted for when duc for payment

Investment contract premiums arc not included in the statement of comprehensive income but are reported as deposits to 1nvestment
contract halalities in the balancc sheet

(1) Revenue from imestment contracts

Fees charged tor services related to the management of 1nvestment contracts are N.Lugnlscd as revenue as the scryvices arc provided
Initial fees, including dealing margins from unit trusts, which excoed the level of recurring tees and relate to the future provision of
scrvices, are deferred These are amorused ovor the anticipated period in which services will be provided

(1) Policy claims and benefits
For insurance contracts, death claims are accounted for on notification of death  Critical illness claims are accounted for when
admuatted All othor claims and surrenders are accounted for when payment s duc

For imestment contracts, benefits paid are not included in the statcment of comprehensine income but are instead deducted from
investment contract habilities The mosement n investment contract bencfits within the statement of comprchensive income
principally represents the investment rcturn credited to palicyholders

(1v) Acquisition costs

For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as imtial commission and the indirect costs of obtaining and
processing new business Acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial vear, net of any impairment losscs, are deturred and
then amorused aver the peried during which the costs are expected to be recoverable and 1n accordance with the incidence of future
rclated margins

For imestment contracts, only directly artributable acquisition costs, which vary with and are related to sccuring new contracts and
renewing existing contracts, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of [uture resenue These deferred acquisition
costs, which represent the contractual night to bunefit from pros iding inscstment management services, net of any impairment losses,
are amortised on a straight-line basis over the expected lIifetime of the Group's investment contracts All other costs are recognised as
cxpunses when incurred

(+) Insurance contract habilities

Insurance contract habthty provisions are determined follow ing an annual actuarial iy cstigation of the long-term tund in accordance
with regulatory requirements The provisions arc calculated on the basis of current information and using the gross premium valuation
method The Group’s accounting policies for insurance contracts mect the mimmum speafied requirements for habilit adequacy
testing under IFRS 4, as they consider current estimates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as claims

handling costs

Insurance contract labilities can never be defimitive as to their timing nor the amount of claums and are theretore subject to subsequent
reassessment on a regular basis

(v1) Im estment contract liabihities

All of the Group’s investment contracts are unit inked  Unit inked habilites are measured at fair value by refercnce to the value of
the underlying net asset value of the Group's unitised imvestment funds, determined on a bid value, at the balance sheet date An
allowance for deductions due to {or from) the Company 1n respect of pohicyholder tax on caputal gans (and losses) m the hife assurance
funds 1s also reflected 1n the measurement of unit inked habilities Inyestment contract habilities are recogmsed when umits are first
allocated to the policyholder, they are derecogmsed when units allocated to the pohcyholder have been cancclled
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The decision by the Group to designate 1ts unit hnked habihities as fair value through the profit and loss statement reflects the fact that
the undcrlying im estment portfolio 15 managed, and ns performance cvaluated, on a fair value basis

{(vn) [nsurance and investment contract recenvables and payables
Insurance and imvestment contract recenables and payables are ininally recogmised at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost,
using the effcctine interest method, less impairment losses

{d) Reinsurance
Runsurance premiums are accounted for when due for payment and remnsurance recoverics are accounted for in the same period as the
related claim

Reinsurance asscts, which are accounted for at amortised cost, represent amounts recoscrable from reinsurers in respeet of claims
and i1n respect of insurance contract habilities, nct of any future reinsurance premuums payable and after allow ance for any
impairment losses

(¢} Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income primarily consists of management fees on 1nvostment contracts {see accounung policy note ¢ (1)) and
comnussion due in respect of products sold on behalt of third parties Commission 15 recogmsed in full on acceptance and inception
of the policy by the product provider Whore the product provider retains the right to clawback of commission on an indemnity basis,
turnover on sale of these products 1s recognised net of a provision for the estimated clawback

(f) Investment return

Investment return comprises investment income and 1imestment gains and losses Imvestment income ncludes disidends, interest and
rental income from 1mvestment properties under operating leases Dividends are accrued on an ex-disidend basis, and rental income s
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease Interest, which 1s gencrated on
assets classificd as farr value through profit or loss, 15 accountcd for on an accruals basis

(g) Expenses

(1) Commussion

Commussion expense 15 recognised 1n respect of manufactured insurance and investment business, together with third party products
Commussion comprises imtial commission (paid at policy outset within the ‘initial period’}, renewal commssion (payable on regular
contributions) and fund lce commission (based on funds undur management and payable on the policy annnersary) [nitial and renewal
commission are recognised in line with the associated premium income, but initial commission on insurance and investment contracts
may be deferred as sct out 1n accounting poliey {¢) () Tund fec commission 1s recognised on an accruals basis

Commussion 1n respect of some insurance and im estment business may be pard 1n advance on renewal premiums and accelerated by up
to five years The uncarned element of this accelerated commission 1s recogmsed as an asset within other recennables Should the
contributions reduce or stop within the inual period, any uncarned commssion 15 clawed back

{u) Operating lease payments

Leases where a significant proporton of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the lessor are classified as operatng leases
Payments made under operating leases are recognised 1n the statement of comprehensise income on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease Lease incentives recenved are recognised in the statement of comprehensi e income as an integral part of the total lease
expense and are spread over the hife of the lease
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(h) Income taxes

Income tax on the profit or loss for the vear comprises current and dederred tax payable by the Group in respect of policvholders and
sharcholders Income tax 1y recogniscd in the statement of comprchensive income except to the extent that 1t relates to stems
recognised directly m cquity, in which case it 1s recognised in equity

(1) Current tax
Current tax 15 the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance shect date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of provious years

(1) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet lability method, pros wding for temporary differences betw con the carrying amounts
ol assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The follow ing differences are not
provided for the imitial recognition of assets or habihitics that affeet neither accounting nor taxable profit, and dilferences relating o
imvestments in subsidiaries to the extent that they waill probably not reserse in the foresceable future The amount of deferred tax
provided 1s based on the expected manner of raalisanion or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and habiliies, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 1s recogmised only 1o the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that 1t 1s no longer probable that the relatcd tax bencfit will
be reahised

() Pohcyholder and sharcholder tax

The total income tax charge 15 a separate adjustment within the statement of comprehensive income based on the movement in current
and deferred income taxes in respect of mcome,, gans and expenses [he total charge reflects tax incurred on behalt of policiholdrs
as well as shareholders, and so 1t 15 useful to be able to identify these separatels Policyholder tax reflects the UK tax pawd in the hic
business at the policvholder tax rate of 20%, together with other small amounts of with-holding tax incurred by the unit hnked funds
on behalt of policyholders All other remaining tax is sharcholder

(1} Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company s shareholders are recognised 1n the period in which the dividends arc paid, and, for the final
dnidend, when approved by the Company’s shareholdcrs at the Annual General Meeting

{1) Intangible assets
(1) Deferred acquisition costs
Sce accounting policy note ¢ (1)

{1} Acquired value of in-force business

The acquired value of in-force business 1n respect of insurance business represcnts the present value of prohts that are cxpected to
emerge from insurance business acquired on business combinations It 15 caleulated at the time of acquisition using best estimate
actuarial assumptions for interest, mortality, persistency and expenses, net of amy impairment losses, and 1t 1s amortised as profits
cmerge over the anticipated hves of the related contracts in the portfolio Anintangible asset 15 also recogmsed in respect of acquired
1 estment management contracts representing the fair value of contractual rlghts acquired under those contracts The acquired value
of in-force business 1s expressed as a gross figure 1n the balance sheet with the associated tax included within deferred tax Labihtis

[t 15 assessed for impairment at each reporting date and any movement 15 charged 1o the statement of comprchensn e income

() Computer software

Computer software 1s recognised as an intangible asset du ring development and amortised on a stratght hine basis over 1ts useful hfe of
four years, commencing when the software is operauonal Computer software 1s stated at cost less amortisation and any recognised
impairment loss The carrying value s reviened for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carryving
value may not be recoverable
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(1) Customer hist

Customcr list 1s recognised as an intangible asset and represents the valtue of future commission income streams follow g the
acquisition of financial seryvices’ busincsses and 1s amortised over four years as the income stream 15 realised  Customer bist 15 stated at
cost less amortisatton and any recognised impairment loss The carrying salue 15 reviewdd for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrving value may not be recoverable

(k) Property & equipment

Items of property & equipment arc stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see accounting policy note (p))
Cost includes the ortginal purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condhtion for its
mntended use The deemed cost of owner occupied property s the fair value determined by an independent valuer at the date of
transition to IFRS

Deprecation s chargul to the statement of comprehensi e income to administration expenses on a straight-line baus over the
estimated useful hves of the property & equipment as follows

Computers 3 years
Fixtures and fittings 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Buildings 50 years

Land 1s not depreciated

(1) Investment property
Invcstment properties, which are all held within the unit linkcd funds, are properties which are held to carn rental income and/or tor
capital appreciation They are stated at fair value

An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recogmised professional quahficatron and recent experience in the location and |
category of property being valucd, valucs the portfohio every month

The fair valucs are bascd on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation betwecen a willing buyer and a willing seller 1n an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wheren the parties had
cach acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion

Any gain or loss arising from a change 1n fair value 1s recognised m the statement of comprehensive income within investment income
Rental mcome from investment property 15 accounted for as deseribed n accounting policy note (f)

{m) Investments

The Group’s investments are all classified at fair value through profit or loss, with all gains and losses recognised within investment
income 1n the statement of comprehensive income  The fair values of quoted financial imvestments, which represent the vast majority
of the Group's imestments, are based on current bid prices If the market for a inancial inv estment 1s not active, the Group establishes
fair value by using valuation techniques such as recent arm’s length transactions, reference to similar hsted investments, discounted
cash flow models or option pricing models

The decision by the Group to designate its investments at fuir value through the profit and loss reflects the fact that the investment
portfohio 1s managed, and 1ts performance cvaluated, on a fair value basis

The Group recognises purchases and sales of investments on trade date The costs associated with insestment transactions are included
within administration expenses in the statement of comprehensiv e income
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Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards contnued

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(n) Currency forwards

The Group uses currency forwards within some unit linked funds to hedge exposure 1o foreign currncy Each contract is recognised
mitially and subsequently at fair value, based on quoted market prices, with all changes 1n value recognised within investment income
in the statemcnt of comprchensive income

(o) Other recervables

Other recevables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost less impairment losses The value of any
impairment ru.ugnlscd 15 the difference between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the onginal effective intercst rate Sce accounting policy note (p) (Imparrment policy) for information relating to the
treatment of imparred amounts

(p) Impairment pohcy

Formal ruviews to assess the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs on nsurance and investment contracts, the acquired value of
in-force business, customer list and loans are carricd out at vach balance sheet date The recoverability of such asscts 15 measured and
the asset 15 deemed impaircd iof the prajected future margins are less than the carrying value of the asset The carrying amounts of the
Group’s other assets that are not carried at fair value arc also reviewed at cach balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any
mdication of impairment  if there 15 any indication of irrecoverabihty or impairment, the asset’s reeoverable amount 15 cstimated based
on the present salue of its cstimated future cash flows

Impairment losses are reversed — through the statement of comprehensine income —1f there 15 a change 1o the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount  Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrving amount does not exceed the
carrysng amount that would have been determined, nct of depreciation or amortisation where applicable, il no impairment loss had
been recogniscd

{q)} Cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly hiquid i estments, and bank
overdrafts to the extent that they are an integral part of the Group's cash management

Cash & cash equivalents held within unit linked and unit trust funds are clasufied at fair value through the profit and loss All other
cash & cash equinalents are classihed as loans and recenables

(r) Provisions

Prosisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructn e obligation as a result of past cvents such that it 1s probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a rehable estimate of the amount of the obhigation can
b made Provisions are measured as the discounted expected future cash flows taking account of the risks and uncertainties associated
with the specific hability where appropriate The Group recogmises provisions for onerous contracts when the expccted benefits to be
dern cd from a contract are less than the unavowdable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract

(s) Borrowings

Borrowings are measured imtally at fair value, net of directly attributable transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised
cost The difterence between the proceeds and the redemption value 1s recognised 1n the statement of comprehensive income over the
borrow ing period on an effectnn e interest rate basis Borrow ings are recogmsed on drawdow n and derecogmsed on repayment

(t) Other payables

Other payables are recogmsed wutially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method
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(u) Net asset value attributable to unit holders

The Group consolidates unit trusts in which 1t holds more than half of the units and exercises control The third party interests in
these unit trusts are measured at fair value, since the underly ing investment portfolios are managed on a fair value basts, and they are
presented in the balance sheet as net assct value attributable to unit holders [ncome attributable to the third party interests s
accounted for withim imustment income, offset by a corresponding change 1n 1nvestment contract benefits

{v) Employee benefits

(1) Pension obligations

The Group operates a dehined contribution personal pension plan for its employees Contributions to this plan are recogmsed as an
expense 1n the statement of comprehensive income as incurred

(1) Share-based payments

The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans The fair value of equity mmstruments grantcd 1s recognised as an expensc
spread over the vesung puriod of the mstrument which accords with the period for which related services are provided, w itha
corresponding increase. 1n cquity in the casc of cquity settled plans The total amount to be expenscd 1s determined by relerence to the
farr value of the awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pricing modcls

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments that are expected to vest and it
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, 1f any, in the statement of comprehensi e mcome, such that the amount
recognised for employce services are based on the number of shares that actually vest The chargc to the statcment of comprchensive
income 15 not revised for any changes in markct vesting conditions

{w) Treasury shares

Where any Group company purchascs the Company's share capital, the consileration paid 1s deducted from equity attributable to
shareholdcrs, as discloscd n the Treasury Shares reserve Where such shares are subsequently sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of,
anv consideration recaved 1s included 1n equity attributable to sharehelders, net of any directly attributahle incremental transaction
costs and the related income tax effects

(x) Foreign currency translation
The Group's presentational and the company’s functional currency 1s pounds st&.r]mg

Foreign curiency transactions are translated into sterling using the exchange rate prey ailing at the date of the transactions Monctary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curroncics are translated using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and
the gan or losses on translation are recogmised in the statement of comprehensiie income

Non-monetary assets and habilities which are held at historical cost are translated using exchange rates presailing at the date of
transaction, thosc held at fair value are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on which the fair value was determined

(r) Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported 1in a manner consistent with the mternal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
The chief operating decision maker, which 1s responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identihed as the Board of the Company

(z} Current and non-current disclosure

Assets which are expected to be recovered or scttled no more than twelie months after the balance sheet date are disclosed as current
within the notes to the accounts  Those expected to be recovered or settled more than tw elve months after the balance shect date are
disclosed as non-current

Liabihties which are expected and due to be settled no more than twelve months after the balance sheet date are disclosed as current

within the notes to the accounts Those labilities which are expected and due to be settled more than twele months after the balance
sheet date are disclosed as non-current
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under International Financial Reporting Standards continued

2 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Judgements

The PTiMmary arca in w hich the Group has applied judgement in appl) Ing accounting policies ltcs in the classification of contracts
between msurance and imestment business Contracts with a sigmficant degree of insurance risk are treated as mmsurance All other
contracts are treated as investment contracts The Group has also elected to treat all assets backing linked and non unit hinked
contracts as fair value through profit or loss although some of the assets in question may ulumatcly be held to maturity

Estimates

The principal areas in which the Group applies accounting estimates are

— Determining the value of insurance contract liabilities

- DQCIdIng the amount of managemcnt CxXpenses that are treated as a(.qumtlon LXpenses
— Amortisavion and recoverability of deferred acquisition costs and deferred income

— Determuiming the fair value, amorusation and recos crability of acquired in-force business
— Determining the fair value lrability to pohieyholders for capital losses in unit funds

Estimates are alse applicd 1n determlmng the amount of duferred tax asset recognised on unrehieved expenscs and the value ol
other provisions

Measurement of insurance contract habilities

The assumptions used in the calculation of insurance contract habilities that have a sigmficant effcct on the statement of comprehensive
income of the Group are

— The lapse assumption, which s set prudently based on an imvestigation of experience during the year

— The level of expenses, which 1s based on actual expenses in 2012 and expected long-tcrm rates

— The mortahty and morbiduy rates, which arce based on the results of an imesuigation of experience during the year

— The assumed rate of imvestment return, which s based on current gilt yiclds

Greater detail on the assumptions apphied 1s shown in Note 19

Acquisition expenses
Certain management cXpenses 1ary w ith the lovdd of sales and have becn treated as acquisiion costs Bach line of costs has becn
raiened and its variability to sales volumes estimated on the basis of the levd of costs that would be incurred if sales ceased

Amortisation and recoverability of Deferred Acguisition Costs (‘DAC’) and Deferred Income (‘DIR’)

Deterrcd acquisition costs and 1income on 1nyvestment contracts are amortised on a stralght—lmc basis over the <xpected hifetime of the
underlymg contracts The expected hfetime of the contracts has been estimated from the experienced termination rates and the age of
chents at tnception and maturity

Deferred acquisition costs and income on msurance contracts are amartised over the pcried during which the costs are expected to be
recor crable in aceordance with the projected emergence of future margins

Deferred acquisition costs relating to insurance and investment contracts are tested annually for recoverability by reference to
expected future income levels Future income levels are projected USIZ assUMPLIons consiStent w ith those underlving our embedded
value caleulation
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Acquired m-force business

There have beun no new business combinations during the year The acquired value of the in-force business 15 amortised on a basis that
reflects the expected profit stream arising from the business acquired at the date of acquisition Thas profit stream 15 cstimated from
the experienced termination rates, expenses of management and age of the chients under the individual contracts as well as global
ostimates of imvestment grow th, based on recent expertence at the date of acquisition

The acquired value of in-force business relating to insurance and investment contracts 1s tested annually for recoverability by reference
to expected future incomd levels

Valuing capital losses 1n umt funds
In linc with 1AS 12 the Group has recogmised a deferred tax asset in relation 1o capital losses at the balance shect date  This asset has
been tested tor impairment against the level of capital gains realistically expected to arise in future

Much of the benefit of the deferrcd tax asset on capital losses will be sharcd with policvholders The palicyholder investment contract
liability has therefore been increased to reflect the fawr value of this additional bencfit The assumptions that have a signihcant effect on
the fair value of the hiabilitv arc as follow s

— The assumed rate of mvestment return, which is based on current gilt yields

— The lapse assumption, which 1s sct prudently based on cxperience during the year

— The assumed period for deyclopment of capital gains, which 1s estimated from recent experience

3. SEGMENT REPORTING

IFRS 8 Opcrating Scgmunts requires operating scgments to be wentihed on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that arc regularly reviewed by the Board in order to allocate resources to the segment and 1o assess its performance The
Group's reportable scgments undur 1FRS 8 are thorcfore as follows

1 Lile busingss — oftering pensions, protection and investment products through the Group's life assurance subsidiaries,

2 Umat Trust business — offering unit trust imestment products, including 15As, through the $t James's Place Unit Trust Group,

3 IDustribution business — the distribution network for the St James's Place life and umit trust products as well as hnancal products
such as annuities, mortgages and stakeholder pensions, trom third party prosiders

The figurcs tor scgment income provided to the Board 1n respect of the distribution business relate to the dastribution of the products
of third party providers only  The figures for segment profit provided to the Board take account of fecs and commussions payable by the
hfe business and unit trust business to the distribution business

4 Othcr - all other group actinitics

Separate geographical segmental information 1s not presented since the Group docs not segment its business geographically, its
customers being based and its assets managed predominantly in the United Kingdom
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING continued
The income, profit and assets of these segments are set out below

Segment Income

Annual Premium Equivalents (‘APE’)

APE, being rcgular premiums plus one tenth of single premiums, 15 the income measure that 1s monitored on a monthly basis by
the Board

Year knded Year Ended
1l Deccmber 31 December

2012 2011

£ Million £’ Millon
Lite busincss 488 7 447 1
Linm Trust business 148.5 136 9
Distribution business 106 1 58 3
Othcr busingss — —
Total APE 743 3 642 3
Restatement to reconcile to IFRS basis
Life business
Exclude iny estment business APE (486 0) (443 0)
Mifference between insurance business APE
and premium recenable 634 69 4
Less insurance premium income ceded to rensurers (26 9) (297
Fee income (management fees) 498.2 394 0
Net mosement on deferred income (43 5) (30 6)
Imy estment income (primarily 1n unit hinked funds) 30165 (992 0)
Unat Trust business
Exclude unit trust APE {148 5) (136 9)
Fee income {dealing profit and management feus) 166.3 1517
Net movement on deferred income (36 1) 36 7)
Investment income 03 05
Distribution business
Exclude distribution APE (106 1) (58 3)
Fec and commssion income recenable 58.0 435
Other investment income 0.8 03
Other business
Income recen able 0.2 29
Im estment 1ncome on third party holdings in
consolidated unit trusts 386.3 (128 8)
Other investment income 3.8 29
Other operating income 1.2 16
Total adjustments 3,347.9 (1,189 2)
Net income — IFRS 4,091 2 (546 9)

All segment income 1s generated by external customers and there are no segment income transactions betw cen operating segments as
measured by APE
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Segment Profit
Three separate measures of profit are monitored on a monthly basis by the Board Thesc are European Embedded Value (‘ELV’), IFRS
{both pre-tax) and the post-tax cash result

EEV operating profit

ELV operating profit 15 monitorcd on a monthly basis by the Board The components of the EEV operating profit are included 1n more
detaul 1n the Supplementary Information on EEV basis within the Annual Report and Accounts on pages 147 to 156 A reconcihation of
ELV operating profit to {FRS profit before tax 1s show n below

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 201
£ Mallion £ Million
Life businuss 2939 254 2
Unit Trust business 826 84 5
Distribution business 53 61
Other business (159) (13 3)
EEV operating profit 3659 3715
Imvestment return variance 190.4 (180 4)
Economic assumption changes 37) (0 3)
EEV profit hefore tax 5526 190 8
Adjustments to IFRS basis
Movement in hife value of in-force and pohicyholder tax {201 0) (196 4)*
Movement 1 unit trust value of in-force (99 8) (14 5)
IFRS profit before tax 2518 (20 1)*
Cash result
Year Ended Year | nded
31 December 31 Decumber
2012 2011
£ Million £" Mulhon
Life business 59.4 343
Unit Trust business 33.6 28 3
Distribution business 4.0 S 4
Other business (5.3) (1 0)
Cash result after tax 91.7 670
IFRS adjustments (after tax})
Share option expense (5-4) (10 5)
Deferred acquisition costs (DAC) 82.4 82 4
Deferred income (DIR) {63 8) G4 1
Acquired value of in-force (PVIF) (25) 29
Sterhing reserves 56 26
IFRS tax adjustments 09) 223
IFRS sharcholder profit after tax 107 1 106 8
Sharcholder tax 275 29
IFRS profit before sharcholder tax 134 6 109 7
Policyholder tax 117 2 (129 8)*
IFRS profit before tax 251.8 (20 )*

*

gl\ enn Note | to thc':e acceounts
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING continued

IFRS segment result
Year knded Year Ended
31 December 31 Decemlier

2012 2011

£ Millhion £ Million
Lite business
— sharcholder 117 891
— pehicyholder tax gross up 117 2 (129 8)*
Unit Trust business 335 27 8
Distribution business 53 61
Other busingss (15.9) (13 3)
IFRS profit before tax 2518 (20 1)*

* Thest figurcs have buen re prosented 1o more appropriately reflect the tax prosision for tax deductions on duemed disposals of umit trust holdings More information s given
i Note | 10 these accounts

Included within the EEV, IFRS profit before tax and post-tax cash result are the follow ing

Year Ended Year I nded
31 December 31 December

2012 201

£'Million £ Million

Sharcholder interest income 56 46
Depreciation 23 26

Scgment Assets
Funds under Management (‘FUM’)

FUM within the St James's Place Group, rounded to the nearcst £0 1 bilhon, are monitored on a monthly basts by the Board

31 December 31 Decumbur

2012 201
£ Milhion £ Mallun
Life business 27,3000 22,5000
Uit Trust business 7,500 0 6,000 0
Total FUM 34,800.0 28,5000
Exclude third party holdings in non-consohidated unut trusts (3,508 2) (3,360 5)
Add balance shcet habihities in unit linked funds 486 3 2679
Adjustments for other balance sheet assets excluded from FUM
DAC 971 6 865 1
PVIF 432 46 4
Computer soltware 117 84
Goodwill 30 09
Property & equipment 36 54
Deferred tax assets 1909 248 5
Fixed income securities 8413 800
Collective 1mvestment schemes 3224 208 6
Reinsurance assets 386 390
Insurance and imvestment contract recenables 46 5 445
Income tax asscts 852 413
Other recenables 1931 236 3
Other recenvables eliminated on consolidation (186 7) —
Cash & cash equnalents 1825 46 5
Other adjustments (40) (360
Total adjustments (1,036 0) (1,257 7)
Total assets 33,764 0 27,242 3
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Year Ended Year ! neded
31 December 31 Deccember
2012 2011
£' Mallion £ Mallion
Unit Trust managument fees 106.4 953
Unit Trust dealmg prnﬁl 59.9 56 4
Third party commission income 58.2 46 5
Life company management fees 498 2 394 0
Movement in deferred income (79 6) 67 3)
Total fee and commaission income 643 1 524 9
5 INVESTMENT RETURN
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
£ Million i Milhon
Divadend income 4197 430 6
Interest income 2858 2039
Rental itncome 39.6 31s
Net realised gains/(losses) 179.9 (315 6)
Nt unrealiscd gains/(losses) 2,096 4 (1,338
Income attributable to third party holdings in unit trusts 3863 (128 8)
Total investment return 3,407 7 (1,117 1)
6 EXPENSES
The followmg items are 1nclucled within the expenses disclosed in the statement of comprehensive income
Year Ended Year | nded
31 December 31 December
22 2011
£ Mallion £ Million
Emplovee costs (see Note 7} 61 4 595
Depreciation 23 26
Impairment losses 04 01
Amorusation of acquired value of in-force business 32 38
Amortisation of DAC 97.7 862
Amorusation of computer software 0.3 03
Pay ment under opcrating lcases 9.9 91
Fees payable to the Compamy’s auditor for the audit of the parent Company and consolidated
financial statements 0.1 01
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for other services
— The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 04 0?2
— Audit related assurance services 01 (V)
— Tax ads 1507y services - ol

[Imparmunt losses are included within admimistration expenses within the statement of comprehensive inceme
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7 EMPLOYEE COSTS

Year Fnded Year I nded

31 December 31 Ducember

2012 2014

£ Mulhion £ Milien

Wages and salaries 46.0 41 7
Social security costs 60 48
Penson costs in relation ta defined contribution schemes 4.4 39
Cost of share awards and options 5.0 91
Total employee costs 61 4 595
A erage number of person» employed by the Group during the year 854 746

The abore information includes Directors’ remuneration Detads of the Directors’ remuneration, share options, pension entitlements

and interests in shares are disclosed 1n the Remuneration Report on pages 66 to 83

8. INCOME TAXES

Ycar Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
202 200
£ Malhon £ Milbon
Policyholder tax
Oncrseas withholdimg taxes 5.2 129
Deterred tax on unrehicved expenses
— Current year charge/(credit) 7.9 (19 4)
Deferred tax i respect of gans and losses in unit linked funds 94.5 (119 2)*
UK corporation tax
— Current year charge 10.2 44
— Adjustment in respect of prior year {0.6) (85
Total policyholder tax charge/(credit) for the year 117.2 (129 8)*
Shareholder tax
UK corporation tax
— Current year charge 20.8 -
— Adjustment in respect of prior year (0.7) 0 2)
Oherscas taxes
— Current ycar charge 2.4 15
— Adjustment in respect of prior ycar (0.3) 01
222 14
Deferred tax on pension business losses
— Current \car charge - 29
— Adjustment in respect of prior year - (0 4)
Deferred tax charge on other items
— Current year charge 152 60
— Adjustment in respect of prior year a7 -
Change 1n tax rate
— Current year {82) {7 2)
— Adjustment in respect of prior vear - 02
Total shareholder tax charge for the year 275 29

* Those figures hase been re presented to more appropriately reflect the nature of the 1ax provision for tax deductions on deemed disposals of unit trust holdings and to record

the movement in the tax attnibutable to policyholders’ returns within the tax charge More information ts given tn Note | to these accounts
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Where deferred tax balances represent future adjustments at the policyholder rate, these are rccogmsed as pelicyholder items

The deferred tax components to which the policyholder and shareholder deferred tax moyements above relate to are disclosed in

Note 13 Deferred Tax Asscts and Note 24 Deferred Tax Liabihties

Included within the sharcholder deterred tax current vear charge 1s a crechit of £0 1 million (2011 £0 ¢ mulhon credit) relating to

share based pay ments charged directly to equity, as disclosed in Note 30 Sharc-based Payments

The change in the corporation tax rate from 25% to 23% eflectine from 1 April 2013 enacted 1n the Finance Act 2012 has been

incorporated into the deferred tax balances and 1s quantified 1n the rcconcthation of the tax charge below and on page 106

In addition to the changes in rates of corporation tax disclosed above, a further reduction to the UK corporation tax ratc to 21% was
announced in the December 2012 Autumn Statement to be cfuctive from 1 April 2014 This further change had not been substantiely
cnacted at the balance sheet date, and thordfore, 1s not included in thesc financial statements The estimate effect of the further

reduction in rate 1s to reduce net delerred tax hiabhioes by £8 million

Year Ended Tear Ended
31 December 31 Decumber
2012 2011
£ Mallion i Million
Reconciliation of tax charge
Profit/(loss) before tax 251 8 (20 1)y*
Tax at 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 61.7 (5 3)
Effcets of
Deferred tax on unrelics ed expenses current year - (19 4)
Onerseas withholding tax 1n unit hinked funds 6.1 105
Deferred tax in respect of unit hinked funds 47.9 (85 6)*
Shareholder deduction for policyhelder tax 38.2 32
Difference due to Lifc Insurance tax regime (Sharcholder FIl) - (17 3)
Policyholder tax rate dilferential 2.1 32
Adjustment in respect of prior year (2.6} ()
Change 1n tax rate (82) 70
Other adjustments (05) (15)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year 144 7 (126 9)

The policyholder tax rate differential relates to the effect of the difference between the sharcholder tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%)

and the pohcyholder tax rate of 20%

* Those figures have been re prescnted 1o more appropriately reflect the nature of the tax provision for 1ax deductions on deemed disposals of umit trust holdings and to recerd

the movement in the tax attributable to poheyholders rcturns within the tax charge Morc information 1s given 1n Note | to these accounts
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8. INCOME TAXES continued

Year knded tear Ended
31 December 31 December
Reconciliation of tax charge 2012 2011
£Million £ Million
Profit/(loss) before tax 251.8 (20 1=
Tax attributable to policyholders’ rcrurns™ (117 2) 129 8%
Profit betore tax attributable to shareholdcrs” returns 134.6 1097
Sharcholder tax charge at corporate tax rate of 24 5% (2011 26 5%) 330 24 5% 291 26 5%
Adjustments,
T'ax regime difierences
Differunee due to Life Insurance tax regime (Deferrad Income Reserve) 2.1 32
Difterence due to oscrseas subsidiarics (1.4) 27
0.7 0 5% 05 0 5%
Market related
Difference due to Life Insurance tax regume {deferral of E) - GhH
Difference due to Life Insurance tax regime (UCG) 40 21
Difference due to Lite Insurance tax regime (Shai cholder Fi1) - (17 3)

40 30%  (203) (18 5%)

Other
Adjustment in respect of prior year (2.6) a3
Other 0.6 19

(20) (t 5%) 06 0 5%
Change in tax ratc (82) (6 1%) (7 0) (6 4%)
Shareholder tax charge 275 20 4% 29 2 6%
Policyholder tax charge/{credit) 117.2 (129 8)*
Total tax charge/(credit} for the year 144 7 (126 9y

*  lhose figures have been re-prosented o more appropriately reflect the nature of the tax provision for tax deductians on deumed disposals of unut trust holdings and ta rec ord
the mosy e ma ntin the tax atmbutable to pullt.\hnldtrﬂ' returns within the tax (‘hargt. More information 1s ghvenin Note | 1o these accounts
** Profit belore tax attributable 1o policvholder returns 1s cqual 1o the policyholdr tax charge

9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year Fnded  Year Ended
31 December 31 Ducember

2012 2011

Pence Pence

Basic earnings per share 21.5 219
Diluted carnings per share 212 212
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The earnings per sharc (EPS) calculations are based on the following figures

Year knded  Year Fnded
31 December 31 Decuember
2012 0m

E Milhion L Milhion

Earnings

Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS) 107 1 106 8
Adjustments - -
Adpusted profit { for both basic and dilured FPS) 107 1 106 8
Weighted average number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue (for basic £PS) 497 7 487 6
Adjustments for outstanding share options 85 16 1
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for difuted EPS) 506 2 5037

10. DIVIDENDS
The follow ing dinidends have been paid by the Group

Year Ended  Yiar Ended Yecar Ended Year knded
31 December 31 Decumber 31 December 31 December
2012 2041 2012 2011
Pence per Pence per £ Million £ Milhon
Share Sharc
Final dividend in respect of previous financial year 4 80 3975 239 19 4
Interim dinidend 1n respeet of current financial year 4.25 3 200 21 4 157
Total dividends 9.05 7175 45.3 351

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 6 39 penec por share (2011 4 8 pence) This amounts to £32 4 million
(2011 £23 7 mmlhon) and will, subject to sharcholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 24 May 2013 to those
sharcholders on the register as at 12 Apri] 2013
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Lafe Lafe Ut Trust Acquired
business business business salue of
—thsurance —Investment —investment m-force Computer Customer
DAC DAC DAC  Total DAC business software list Total
£ Malhon £ Milhon £'Milhion £ Millon EMillion £ Millon £ Milhion I’ Mallion
Cost
At 1 January 2011 99 2 814 5 2044 11181 73 4 21 — 1,193 6
Additons 44 1503 40 9 195 6 — 66 09 2031
At 31 Decomber 2011 103 6 964 8 2453 1,3137 73 4 g7 a9 1,396 7
At 1 January 2012 103 6 964.8 2453 1,313.7 73.4 87 09 1,396.7
Additions 31 157 4 437 204.2 - 36 24 210.2
At 31 December 2012 106.7 1,1222 2890 1,5179 73.4 123 313 1,606.9
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2011 795 2310 519 362 4 232 - - 385 6
Charge for the year 67 63 8 157 862 38 03 - 20 3
At 31 December 2011 86 2 294 8 676 448 6 270 03 - 4759
At 1 January 2012 86.2 294 8 67.6 448.6 27.0 03 - 4759
Charge for the year 6.0 731 186 977 32 0.3 0.3 1015
At 31 December 2012 92,2 367 9 86 2 546 3 30.2 06 03 5774
Carrying value
At 1 January 2011 197 5835 152 5 7557 502 21 - 808 0
At 31 December 2011 17 4 670 0 1777 8651 46 4 84 09 920 8
At 31 December 2012 14 5 754 3 2028 971 6 432 117 30 1,029 5
Current 879
Non-current 941 6
1,029 5
Outstandlng amortisation period
At 31 December 2011 6years 14 years 14 years 14 years 4 years 4 years
At 31 December 2012 6 years 14 years 14 years 13 years 4 years 4 years

Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs 1s charged withim the fees, commussion and other acquisition costs hine in the statement of
comprehensine ncome  The amortisation of the acquired value of in-force business, computer software and customer hist 1s charged
within other operating expenses Amoruisation profiles are reassessed annually
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Fixtures,
Futings,
Computers
& Office Land &
Equipment Buildings Total
£ Milhon £ Million £ Millhion
Cost
At 1 January 2011 32 22 334
Additions 12 02 14
Disposals on 09N (10
Impairment losses — on 0D
At 31 December 2011 323 14 337
At 1 January 2012 32.3 14 337
Additions 06 0.3 09
Disposals - - -
Impairment losses — (0.4) (04)
At 31 December 2012 129 1.3 342
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2011 257 - 257
Charge for the year 26 - 26
[hsposals - - -
At 31 December 2011 283 - 28 3
At January 2012 283 - 28.3
Charge for the year 23 - 23
Disposals - — -
At 31 December 2012 306 - 306
Net book value
At | January 2011 55 22 77
At 31 December 2011 40 14 54
At 31 December 2012 23 1.3 36
Current 23
Non-current 13
36
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13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

31 December 31 December
2012 2011

£ Malhon £ Million

Lile business — unrelicved expenses 759 838
Life business — net capital losses 1n umit linked funds 37 62 2
Life business — pension business 64 47
Lifc business — deferrcd income 402 372
Unit Trust business — delerred income 571 531
Other 76 75
Total deferred tax assets 1909 248 5
Current 425 112 4
Non-current 148 4 1361

1909 248 5

The utihsation of the defcrred tax asset on net caputal losses and unrelieved expenses depends on growth in the stock market and the
consequential positive ‘I — E' result in future ytars Tax assets estabhished in relation to duferred income will be utilised as the
underlying income 1s recognised  Other assets depend on the future profitability of the business The changes to the taxation rules tor
life assurance companies from 1 January 2013 hav¢ been taken mto account in the assessment of the deferred tax asscts

At the balance sheet date there were unrecogmsed deferred tax assets of L0 2 million (2011 £0 2 milhon) 1n relation to capital losses
referable to shareholders No value has been recognised due to the uncertainty of whether there will be appropriate gains against

which they can be used There 15 no tume irmit on the use of the losses

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December 31 Ducember

2012 2011

£ Million £ Million

Balance at | January 5509 3978
Additions 128 9 175 4
Disposals (55 8) (10 4)
Changes in tair value (26.4) (11 9}
Balance at 31 December 597 6 5509

Investment property 1s held within unit hnked funds and 15 considered current

The rental incame and direct operating expenses recognssed 1n the statement of comprehensn e mcome 10 respect of investment
properties are set out below All expenses relate to property generating rental income

Year Ended  Ycar Ended
31 December 31 December

212 2001

£ Milhon L Million

Rental income 3196 315
Direct operating expenses 54 32

At the vear end contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop imvestment property amounted to £0 1 ullion (2011 £5 9 nulhion)
and to dispose of investment property amounted to £20 0 million (2011 £N1))
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Included within the balance sheet are the foliow ing assets and liabihities which represent the nct assets held to cover hnked habilities
and those attributable to third party holdings in unittrusts (‘UTMI') The difference between these assets and habihities and those

shown in the consolhdated balance sheet represents assets and habilinies held outside the unit hinked funds and the UTM!

31 December 31 Dicembar
2012 2011
£ Million £ Milbon
Assets
Investment property 597.6 550 9
Investments
— Equities 18,9916 15,743 4
— Fixed income securities 4,995 6 3,678 1
— Imvestment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,786.7 2,794 1|
— Currency forwards 577 136
— Other durnvatines 84 -
— Contracts for differences 200 14 6
Other recenables 3152 293 9
Other recenables eliminated on consolidation 186 7 -
Cash & cash equnalents 28145 2,282 8
Total assets 31,774.0 25,371 4
Liabilities
Financial habihties
— Currency forwards 349 233
— Other derivatives 2.8 -
— Contracts lor differences 159 201
Other payables 2851 2245
Othcr payables ehiminated on conselidation 147.6 -
Total liabithities 486 3 2679
Net assets held to cover linked habilities and third party holdings in unit trusts 31,2877 25,1035

Net assets held to cover hoked liabilities and third party holdings i unit trusts are considered to have a maturity of up to onc year

since the corresponding umit habihues are repayable and transferable on demand
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16. OTHER RECE1VABLES

31 December 31 Dicember
2012 2011

£ Milhon £ Milhion

St James's Place Partnership loans 139.9 94 4
Prepayments 15.0 14 6
Uncarned comnussion 21.2 223
Unit linked funds and UTMI (including outstanding security sales) 315.2 2939
Unit Trust dealing recen ables 3.7 787
Miscellaneous 13.4 26 3
Total other receivables 508.4 5302
Current 385.8 453 3
Non-current 122.6 769

508.4 5302

The fair value of loans and recen ables included 1n other recervables 1s not materially different from amorused cost St James's Place
Partnership loans are interest bearing (linked to Bank of England base rate plus a margin), repayable on demand and sceurdd against
the tuture rencwal income streams of that Partner

£14 9 million of short term loans 1n anticipation of receipt of external funding has been reclassified from miscellaneous to $t James’s
Place Partnership loans as at 31 December 2011 to match the presentation adopted as at 31 December 2012

17. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

2012 201

£ Million £' Mtllion

Cash at bank 1825 1145
Bank overdrafts - 68 0)
Cash & cash equnalents held outside unit linked and unu trust funds 1825 46 5
Balances held within unit hinked and unit trust funds 28145 2,2828
Total cash & cash equivalents 29970 2,3293

All cash & cash equnvalents are considered current
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18, INSURANCE RISK
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Insurance risk arises from inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence, amount and tming of insurance habiliies The Group assumes
isurance risk by 1ssuing insurance contracts under which the Group agrees to compensate the chent (or other beneficiary}ifa
specified future event (the insured event) occurs The Group insures mortality and morbidity risks but has no longes ity risk as we have
never written any annuity business The Group has a medwim appetite for insurance risk, only actnely pursuing it where financially

beneficial, or 1n support of strategic objectives

Risk Description Management

Underw riting Failure to price appropnatel} { he Group ceased writing new protection business in April 2011
for a risk, or the impact of Experience 1s monutored regularly For most business the premium or
anti-sclection deduction rates can be re-set

Epidemic/disaster An unusually large number of  Protection 1s pros tded through reinsurance
claims arising from a single
incident or event

Expense Administration costs excecd Administration is outsourced and a tarifl of costs s agreed The
expense allowance contract 1s monitored regularly to rationalise costs incurred Internal ‘

overhead cxpenses are monitored and closely managed
Retention Loss of future profit due to Retention of insurance contracts 1s closely monitored and unexpected

more clients than anticipated
withdraw ing their funds

experience 1s lmcstlgatcd Retention experience has continued 1n Line
with assumptions during 2012

19 INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES

2012 2011
£ Million £ Milion }
Ralance at 1 January 394 0 4179 ‘
Mosement in unit hinked habilities 287 (36 5)
Movement m non-umt hinked habilities
— New business {0 3) 05
- Existing business 36 (0 3y
— Other assumpuion changes 08 21
— Experience variance (28) 33
Total movement 1in non-umit linked hablities 13 126
Balance at 31 December 4240 394 0
Unit linked 3365 307 8
Non-unmit hinked B75 86 2
424 0 394 0
Current 89.5 829
Non-current 334.5 31
424.0 354 0

Unit hnked Liabilities move as a funcuon of net cash flow s into policyholder funds and underlying imvestment performance of those funds
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19. INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES continued
Assumptions used 1n the calculation of habihities
The principal assumpuions used 1n the caiculation of the habilitics are

Assumption

Description

interest rate

Mortality

Morbidity
— Critical [llness

Morbidity
— Pcrmanent Health Insurance

Expenses

Persistency

1 ]4‘ St James’s Place plc

The raluation interest rate 1s calculated by relerence to the long—tcrm gﬂt
vield at 31 December 2012 and the speafic gilts backing the habihiues “The
speaific rates used are between 1 3% and 2 5% depending on the tax regime
(1 5% and 2 6% at 31 December 2011)

Mortality 1s based on Company experience and 1s sct at 72% of the TM/F92
tables with an addinonal leading for smokers There has been no change sinec

2006

Morbidity 15 based on Company experience There has been no change during
2012 Sample annual rates per L for a male non-smoker are

Rate
Agt 2012 201
25 0 000760 0 000760
35 0.001334 0001334
45 0 003189 0003189

Mol‘bldll) 15 bascd on Company experience There has been no change during
2012 Sample annual rates per £ income benefit p a for a male non-smoker
are

Rate
Agt 2012 2011
25 0 00548 000548
35 0.01447 0 01447
45 003138 0 03138

Contract habilities are calculated allowing for the actual costs of
admintstration of the business The assumpuon has been amended to allow for
changes to the undcrl}mg administration costs

Annual Cost

Product 2012 Hn

Protection business £34 30 £34 50

Allowance 1s made for a prudent level of lapses withim the calculation of the
habihities The rates have not changed n 2012 Sample annual lapse rates are

Lapses
2011 & 2012 Jear 1 Year 5 Year 10
Protecuion business 7% 9% 8%
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The table below sets out the sensitivity of the profit on insurance business and net assets to changes in kev assumptions The lesvels of
sensitiyaty testad are consistent with those proposed 1n the EEV principles and reflcct reasonably possible levels of ch:mgf: in the
assumptions The analysis reflects the change i the variable/assumption show n while all other vanables/assumptions are left

unchanged In practice vartables/assumptions may change at the same time as some may be correlated (for example, an increase 1in

interest rates may also resultin an increase in expenses if the crease reflects higher inflation) It should also be noted that in some
instances sensitnitics are non-lincar The sensitnty % has been apphed 1o proportion the assumpuon e g application of a 10%

schsitivity to a withdrawal assumption of 8% will reduce it to 7 2%

Change in Change un

profit profit  Changen Change in

Changuin before tax before tax net assets net assets

Sensttsaty analysis assurmprion 2012 2011 2012 2011
£ Milhon £ Milbon £ Mallion £ Million
Withdrawal rates “7) Gy (38) {4 1)
Expensc assumptions 13 14 1.1 12
Mortality/morbidity (29) 09 (2.3) 08

A change 1n interest rates will have no material rmpact on insurance profit or net assets

20 REINSURANCE ASSETS

31 December 31 Decumber

2012 2011
£ Malhon &' Mithon
Remsurers’ share of insurance contract liabihities
~ Long-term insurance contract Liabihty 35.7 358
— Claims outstanding 2.9 32
Reinsurance assets 38.6 330
Current 102 105
Non-currcnt 284 285
386 390
A reconcihiation of the movement in the net ronsurance balance 1s set out below
I
2012 0n
£ Mallion £ Mallion
Reinsurance asscts at 1 January 19.0 386
Reinsurance component of net change in claims provision {0 3) (7
Reinsurance component of change in insurance habilitics 1) 21
Reinsurance assets at 31 December 386 390
The overall impact of reinsurance on the profit for the year was a net charge of £6 3 million (2011 charge of L6 2 million)
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21 OTHER PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Office Other

Endowments Restructuring Provisions Total

£ Million £ Milhon £ Milhon £ Million

At 1 January 2012 0.3 2.8 - 31

Reclassification from msurance and investment contract payables - - 7.3 7.3
Utilised /released during the year (0.1) (24) (17) (42)

Additional provisions 0.3 06 2.1 30

At 31 December 2012 0.5 10 7.7 92

Current - 03 5.0 5.3

Non-current 0.5 07 2.7 39

0.5 10 7.7 92

The undowments provision relates to the cost of redress for mortgage endowment complaints The provision 1s based on ¢stimates of
the total number of complaints expected to be upheld, the average cost of redress and the esumated tuming of settlement

The office restructuring proyision represents the expected amounts payable under a number of non-cancellable operating leases for
office space that the Group no longer occupies The provision 1s based on cstimates of the rental payable unul the approximate dates on
which the Group expects aither to have sublet the altected space or to have reached break clauscs within the redevant lease agreements
and after makmg appropriate allowance tor the time value of moncy

A reserve in respect of self insured labihties of £7 3 muillion has been reclassified as Other Prosisions {previously in Insurance and
Investment Contract Payables) as a result of changes to the Group's insuranet arrangement

As more fully set out 1n the summary of principal risks and uncertainties on pages 31 and 32, the Group could 1n the course of 1ts
business be subject to legal procecdings and/or regulatory actnaty Should any such material circumstance arise, a provision would be
¢.stablished based on the Board’s best estimate of the amount required to settle the obhg:mon While therc can be no assurances, the
Dnrectors do not believe, based upon information currently available to them, there 1s any such actinity that would have a matcrial
adserse cffet on the Group’s finanaal position

22 INVESTMENT CONTRACT BENEFITS

2012 200
£ Mallhion £ Million
Balance at 1 January 22,2273 21,150 5*
Deposits 4,225.5 31,8356
Withdrawals (1,667.1} (1464 3)
Investment contract benefits (principally representing 1on estment expense/income) 3,246 2 (1,029 3)*
Less 1mestment contract benefits attributable to fund deductions (498 2) (394 0y
{Less)/add iny estment contract benefits attributable to third party holdings in unit trusts (386.3) 128 8
Balance at 31 December 27,147.4 22,2273
Current 2,036.1 1,667 1
Non-current 25,111.3 20,560 2

27,147.4 22,2273

* Those ﬁgurcs have been re pres-.nlcd to more appropriatels reflect the tax prevision for tax deductions on deemed d:sposals of unit 1rust holdmgs More information 1s gren
m Note | to these accounts
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23, BORROWINGS
31 December 31 December

2012 2011

£ Mullion £ Milhon

Bank loan 707 43 8
Current 07 4 8
Non-current 70.0 390
70.7 43 8

During the year, bank loans previously held from Barclays Bank ple (2011 £30 0 milhon) draw n under a three year £30 million
revolving credit facility and from Royal Bank of Scotland (2011 £13 0 mullion) drawn under a three year £15 0 million vesolving
credit facibity, were fully repaid These loans werc replaced by anew £45 0 mullion loan from Barclays Bank ple (sariable interest
rate, repayable after threo vears (£25 mullion) and five years (£20 million)) and a new £25 0 millton loan from Royal Bank of Scotland
(variable interest rate, repayable after four years) during the year, in order to continue to finance loans from the Group to members
of the $t James’s Place Partnership The Partners’ loans are secured against the tuture renewal income streams of that Partner

Bank loans also includes £750,000 (2011 £750,000) from Bank of Scotland which is secured on property disclosed in Note 12 to
the accounts

The Company also guarantees £89 6 milhion (2011 £87 7 mulhon) of direct leans from Bank of Scotland to members of the St James's
Place Partnership drawn undcr a total facility of £125 0 million In the event of default of any indnidual Partner loan the Company
guarantees to repay the outstanding balance of that loan These Partners’ loans are sccured against the future rencw al incomc streams
of that Partner As the Company's guarantce 1s contingent these loans are not shown as a financial habulity under borrowing

The fair valuc of the outstanding bank loans are not materially different from amortised cost

24 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
31 December 31 December
2012 2001

£ Mallion £ Million

On deferred acquisition costs 214.5 206 1
On acquired value of in-forec business 99 116
In respect of umit linked funds 407 —
Other 39 12
Total deferred tax habilities 269 0 2189
Current 291 239
Non-current 2399 1950

269.0 2189

In 2012, a deferred tax hability has been recognised on unrealised capital gains on eligible imvestments within the umit linked funds of
£40 7 million In 2011, there was a deferred tax asset of £62 2 million as there were losses in the unit linked funds

Annual Report and Accounts 2012 117




Notes to the Consolidated Accounts

under International Financial Reporting Standards conenued

25 DEFERRED INCOME
3l December 3} December

2012 2011

£ Mallion £ Million

Life business 368.2 324 7
Lnit Trust business 248 3 212 2
Total deferred income 616 35 5369
Current 127.6 111
Non-current 4889 425 8
6165 5369

26. OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 31 Decomber

2012 2011

£ Mallion L Millhion

Accruals 584 312
Uit Trust dealing payable 593 913
Unut linked funds and UTMI (imcluding outstanding securuty purchases) 285.1 224 5
Miscellancous 314 294
Total other payables 434 2 376 4

All other payable balances are consilered current

The fair value of financial habilities in other payables 1s not maternlly different from amortised cost
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27. FINANCIAL RISK

Risk management objectives and risk policies

The Group seeks to manage risk through the operation of unit inked business whereby the policyholder bears the financial nsk
In addiion, sharcholder assets are invested 1n highly rated msestments

Under IFRS 7, the Group 1s required to analyse thur exposure to the following risks
~— Credit nisk

— Liquidity risk

— Markct risk

— Currency risk

Credat rick s the risk of loss duc to a debtor’s non-payment of a loan or other hine of eredit Credit risk also arises from holdings of
cash and cash equivalents, deposits and formal loans with banks and financial institutions The Group has adopted a risk averse
approach to such risk and has a stated policy of not acunely pursuing or accepting credit risk except when necessary to support other
objectives

Risk Description Management
Shareholders’ Loss of assets Sharcholder funds arc predominantly invested in AAA rated unitised money market funds
assets and deposits with approved banks Maximum counterparty hmits are set for each

company within the Group and aggregate limits are also set at a Group leve!

Investment Loss of value of assets  These habilities are matched by fixed interest securities with mimimum AAA credit

matching of ratings or UK Government Gilts, maximum counterparty hmus for such holdings are

non-linked again sct for each company within the Group and at an aggregate Group level

labilties

Rernsurance Failure of Crodit ratings of potentaal reinsurers must meet or exceed mmimum specihed levels ‘

counterparty or Consideration 1s also given to size, nsk concentrations/exposures and ow nership in the |

|
|

counterparty unable  selection of reinsurers The Group also secks o dnversify nts ransurance credie risk
to mect habihities through the use of a spread of ransurers

Partner loans and  Inability of Partners  Loans and advances are managed in line with the Group’s secured lcndmg policy Loans
advances to repay loans or are secured on the future renewals income stream expected from a Partner’s portfolio
adhances from §)P and loan advances vary in relation to the projected future income of the relevant Partner
Outstanding balances are regularly review ed and assessed on a conservative basis
Support 1s provided to help Partners manage their business appropriately Appropriate
provision 1s made where there 15 objective evidence of impairment

Liquudity risk 1s the risk that the Group, although solsent, either does not have available sufficient financial resources to enable it to
meet its obligations as they fall due, or can secure such resources only at excessive cost The Group 15 averse to hquedity risk and seeks
to mimimase this risk by not actively pursuing it except where necessary to support other objectives

Risk Description Management

Cash or expense A sigmificant cash or expense Al free assets are tnvested in cash or cash equisalents and the cash position and

requircment requirement needs to be met at forecast are montored on a monthly basis Also, the Group maintains a margin
short notice of free assets in excess of the mimimum required sohvency caprtal within 1ts

regulated entities
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27. FINANCIAL RISK contrnued
Market risk 15 the impact a fall in the value of equity or other asset markets may have on the business The Group adopts a risk averse
approach to market risk, with a stated solvency policy of not activily pursuing or accepting market risk except where necessary to
support other objectines Howenver, the Group accepts the risk that the fall in cquity or other asset markets will reduce the level of

annual management charge income dernved from policyholder assets and the risk of low er future prohts

The table below summarises the main markct risks that the business 1s exposed to and the methods by which the Group seeks to

mitigate them

Risk

Descrlptlon

Management

Chient
liabilities

As a result of a reduction 10 cquity values, the Group may
be unable to meet chent hiabihitics

Thus risk 15 substantially mitigated by the Group’s strategic
focus on umt-linked business, by not providing guarantees
1o dients an policy values and by the matching of assets and
habilities

Tax In adverse market conditions, when the Group 1s realising The tax position 1s montorcd closcly, in parucular the size
mvestment losses rather than gains, the working of the I-E and sources of relevant income streams
tax regime can lead to short-term capital inctficiencies,
including the deferral of the cash beneht arising from tax
relief on expenses
Retention Loss of future profit on imvestment contracts due to more  Retention of imvestment contracts is closely monitored
clients than anticipated withdrawing their funds, and unexpected experience s ariances are imestigated
particularly as a result of poor investment performance Retention has remained consistently strong throughout
2012, despite the challenging economic environment
and volatihity, and fund surrender rates have remamned
lowatc 0 5%
New Poor purtormance in the financial markets 1 absolute The benefit of longer term equity 1nvestment n a range of
Business terms, and relative to intlation, leads to existing and riskicr financial assets 1s fundamental to our business modcl

future clients rejecting investment 1n longer term assets

Aduce and markcting remain vahid even when market values
fall, how erver, greater attention 1s required to support and
gne confidence to existing and future chents in such
circumstances, and this 1s taken account of by the Group in
1ts activaties

Currency risk
The Group 1s not subject 1o any significant currency risk since all material sharcholder financial assets and financial Labilities are
denominated n Sterling
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Categories of financial assets and financial habilities
The categorics and carrying values of the financial assets and financial habilhities held in the Group’s balance sheet arc summarised in

the table below

3t December 2012

31 Ducember 2011

Busniness Reswen

Cerporate Gosernance

Financial Siatements

Other !r_)ﬁ:rmunun

Financial Financial Financial Financial Financial Fuinancial
assets at leabilities at habilities assets at liabalitws at Liabilittes
fairvalue fair value measured fairvalue farr value measured
through through at through through at
profitand Loansand profitand  amortised profitand Loans and profitand amortised
loss®™  recewvables loss™ cost o recenablus losa™ cost
£ Mullion £' Million £ Milhon £ Mathon i Milion £ Milhen £ Mullion £ Million
Financial Assets
Equities 18,991 6 15,743 4
Fxcd mmcome securities 5,0799 3,758 1
Imvestment in Collective Imestment
Schemes 4,109 1 3,002 7
Dernatine Anancial instruments 861 28 2
Other recovables®
— St James’s Place Partnership loans 139.9 94 4
— Other 3323 398 9
Total other recaivables 4722 493 3
Cash & cash equivalents 2,814.5 1825 2,282 8 114 5
Total financial assets 31,08t 2 654 7 24 815 2 607 8
Financial Liabilities
Investment contract benefits 27,147 4 22,2273
Barrowings 707 111 8
Dernatne financial instruments 8316 43 4
Other payables 434 2 376 4
Net asset value attributable to umit holders 3,874 8 2,677 9
Total financial lhabihities 31,075.8 504 9 24948 6 488 2

(1) All inancial assets and habilitics at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such upon initial recognition

(2) Other hinancial assets exclude prepayments and unearned commssion from other recenables

The carrying value of the unit inked investment contract labihitics may differ from the amount contractually required to pav at
maturity Maturity valucs of the financial habilites vary w ith future policyholder investment and withdrawals as well as investment
return, coupled with the impact of capital losses in the funds The contractual value required to be pad to policy holders as at

31 December 2012 would be £58 3 mullion lower than the investment contract benefits stated above
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27 FINANCIAL RISK contrnued
Income, expense, gans and losses arising from financial assets and financial hhabilities
The income, expensc, gains and losses arising from finanaal asscts and financial habihties are summarised in the table below

Year I nded 31 December 2002 Year Pnded 31 December 2011
Financial Financial Financial Finanaial Finanuial Imancial
assets at habihties at habilities asseis at habilities at Liabilaties
fairvalue fatrvalue  measured latr value fair valuc measurcd
through through at through through at
profitand leansand profitand amort:sed profitand Loans and profit amd amortisud
loss!"  recenables lass'" cost lose® recurnablis los cost

£ Milhon £ Milhon £ Million £ Mallion £ Million £ Mullion £ Million L Million

Financial Assets
Umit inked assets 3,401.5 (1,136 5)
Fixed income securities 0.7 135
Imvestment in Collectn ¢ Inyvestment
Schemes 1.5 28
Other recenables
— 8t James's Place Partnership loans 33 22

Total other recenables 3.3 22
Cash & cash equnalents™® 0.7 03

Total financial assets 3,403.7 4.0 (1,120 2) 30

Financial Liabilities®

Inmyestment contract benefits 2,3617 (1,335 9)
Borrowings — —
Net asset value attributable to umit holders 3863 (128 8)

Total financial labilities 2,748.0 (1,464 7)

(1} All hnancial assirs and labalit s at fair valuc theaugh profit or loss are dusignated as such upon initial recogruton
(2} The majority of the return from cash & cash equinalents 15 include d within umit hinked assets
(3} Nonc of the change in the faie value of financaal liabilinies at fair value through profic or loss 1s attrbutable to changes in thor credit risk

Fawr value estimation

Financial instruments, which are held at fair value in the balance sheet, are required to have disclosed their fair value measurements by

level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in actine markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)

— Inputs other than quoted prices included within Lesel 1 that are obsersable for the asset or hiabihity, either directly (that 15, as prices)
or indirectly (that s, dernved from prices) (Level 2)

— Inputs for the asset or labihity that are not based on obscryvable market data (that 1s, unobsersable inputs) (Level 3)
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31 December 2012
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Total
Lesel ] Level 2 Level 3 balance
£Million £ Milhon £ Milhon ' Milhon
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equities 18,991.6 18,991 6
INxed income securttics 5,079 9 5,079 9
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 4,107 5 16 4,109
Dernative financial instruments 86 1 86.1
Cash & cash equivalents 2,814 5 2,814.5
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 259136 5,166 0 1.6 31,081 2
Financial habihities at fair value through profit or loss:
Imvestment contract benefits 27,147 4 27,147 4
Dernatine financial instruments 53.6 536
Net asset valuc attributable to unit holders 3,874 8 3,874 8
Total financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 3,8748 27,21 0 — 31,075.8
31 December 2011
Total
Lovel Level 2 Tend 3 balance
£ Millwon L' Milhon £ Million £ Million
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Equities 15,743 3 ot 15,743 4
Fixed income securitics 3,758 1 3,758 1
Investment 1n Collective Investment Schemes 3,001 9 08 33,0027
Currency forwards 282 28 2
Cash & cash equivalents 2,282 8 2,282 8
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 21,0280 3,786 3 09 248152
Financial liabihities at fair value through profit or loss.
Investment contract benefits 22,2273 22,2273
Currcncy forwards 43 4 43 4
Net asset value attributable to unit holders 2,677 9 2,677 9
Total financial habilities at fair value through profit or loss 2,6779 222707 - 24,948 6

The farr value of financial instruments traded 1n active markets 1s based on quoted bid prices at the balance shect date, as described in
the accounting poliey (m) These instruments are included in Level 1 Instruments included in Level 1 comprise primanily histed

equn\ nstruments

The Group closely monitors the valuation of assets in markets that have become less hquid Determining whether a market 15 actine

requires the exeraise of judgement and 1s determuined based upon the facts and circumstances of the market for the instrument being
measured Where it 15 determined that there 1s no active market, fair valuc 15 established using a valuauon techmique  The techniques
applied incorporate relevant information available and reflect appropriate adjustments for credut and hquidity ricks These valuation
techniques maximise the use of obseryvable market data where it 1s available and rely as hittle as possible an entity specific estimates
The relatine wesghtings given to diffuring sources of information and the dutermination of non-obseryable inputs to valuation models

can require the exeraise of significant judgement

IFall signihcant inputs rcquired to fair value an instrument arc observable, the instrument s included in Level 2 1f one or more of the
sigruficant mputs 1s not based on observable market data, the snstrument 1s included 1n Level 3
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27 FINANCIAL RISK comumued

Speaific valuauon techniques used to value financial mstruments include

- The use of observable prices for recent arm’s length transactions

— Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow and option pricing models, are used to determine fair value for the remaining
financial instrumecnts

Note that all of the resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 2, except for certain equutees and investments 1n Collective
Investment Schemes (CIS) as detailed below

I he follow ing table presents the changes in Level 3 equities and imyestments in CIS

2012 201
£Milhen L Millton
Openlng balance 0.9 30
Transfer into/(out of) Level 3 07 {19
Additions during the year - -
Disposed during the year - (01
Losses recognised i the profit or loss - {01
Closing balance 16 09
Total losses lor the year included in profit or loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period 0.3 0N
Credit risk

The follow ing table sets out the maximum credit risk exposurc and ratings of hnancial and other assets which are neither past due or
mmpaired and susceptible to credit risk

31 December 2012
Unit hnked

funds and
third party
holdings in
AAA AA A BBB Unrated unit trusts Total
£ Million £ Midhon £ Miathen £ Million £ Millhien £ Million £ Mallion
Fixed income securities 843 49956 5,0799
Investment 1n Collectine Investment Schemes® 3216 0.8 3,786.7 4,109 1
Cash & cash equnalents 22,6 158 9 1.0 28145 2,997.0
Amounts due from reassurers
— Claims outstanding 29 29
- Reassurers share of long-term insurance
contract habilities 3157 357
Total amount due from reassurers 186 386
Other recenables 17.1 315.2 3323
Total 405.9 612 158 9 1.0 179 11,912.0 12,5569

(1) Credit risk refaung to unit linked and unit trust funds 1s borne by the policyholder/unit holder

(2) Insestment of sharcholder asscts in Collective Investment Schemes refers to mvestment 1n unitised money market funds held for the longer term
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31 December 2011
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Ut linked
funds and
third party
holdings in
AAA AA Unrated unit trusts Total
£' Millon £ Millon £ Millhon £ Milhion £' Million
Fixed income securitics 800 36781 3,758 1
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes 2079 07 2,7941 3,002 7
Cash & cash equnalents 251 2,2828 2,3973
Amounts duc from reassurers
— Claims outstanding 32 32
— Reassurers share of long-term insurance
contract liabilitics 358 358
Total amount due from reassurers 390 390
Other recenables 105 0 293 9 398 9
Total 2879 60 1 1057 90489 9,5%0

Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
Loans to St James's Place Partnership of £139 9 million (2011 £94 4 milhion) are net of an impairment provision of £6 7 million
(2011 £6 7 million) (sce Note 16) The movement 1n the imparrment loss recognised within administration expenses in the statement
of comprehensi ¢ income was a charge of £0 7 million (2011 £0 6 milhon) The factors considered 1n determining the impairment
nclude default history, the nature or tvpe of the Partner loan, exposure levels to indiidual Partners and whether the indisidual

Partner 1s active or has left

There are no other financial assets that are impaired, would otherwise be past due or impaired whosc terms have been renegotiated or

are past due but not impaired
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27. FINANCIAL RISK continued

Contractual maturity and hquidity analys:s

The follow ing table sets out the contractual maturity analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial habilities as at 31 December 2012

31 December 2012

Total ex
Unat Unit hnked
lIinked  fundsand
fundsand third party
Uptol 1-5 Over$ otherumt holdingsin
year years years holders unit trusts” Total
£ Million [ Million £ Million £' Milhien £ Million £' Malhon
Financial Assets
Equities - 18,9916 18,9916
Fixed income securities 12.1 12.2 60.0 84.3 49956 5,0799
Imvestment in Collective Investment Schemes 3224 3224 13,7867 4,109 1
Dernative financial instruments - 861 861
Othcr recenables
— St James's Place Partnership loans 34.2 82.9 22.8 1399 1399
— Other 17.0 17.0 315.3 3323
Total othor recenables 51.2 829 22.8 156.9 31513 4722
Cash & cash equnalents 182.5 1825 2,8145 29970
Total financial assets 568.2 95.1 82.8 746.1 30,9898 31,7359
Financial Liabihities
[nvestment contract benefits - 27,1474 27,147 4
Borrowings 707 70.7 70.7
Dernatine financial instruments - 53.6 536
Othcr payables 149 1 149.1 2851 434 2
Total financial habilities 149 1 70.7 219.8 274861 27,7059

* Fmmancial habihities included under unit hinked funds and {nct asscts) attributable to unit holders are deemed to have 2 maturity of up to one vear since the corrusponding

umt hinked hiabilities are repavable and transferable on demand In practice the wontractual matunitis of the assits may be longer than one year, but the majority of assets

held within the unit linked and unit trust funds are hughly liquid and the Group also actively momitors fund Liquadty
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The table below sets out comparatine contractual maturity and hiquidity analysis as at 31 December 2011

31 December 2011

lotal ex
Unit Uit linked
Iinked funds and
furds and third party
i Uptol t-5 Onrer 5 other unit holdings 1n
aear years years holders  unit trusts Total

£ Million £ Mulon £’ Million £ Million £ Million £ Million

Financial Assets

Equities — 15,7434 15,743 4
Fixed income sccurities 121 679 800 3,678 1 3,758 1
Imvestment in Collective Investment Schemes 208 6 2086 2,794 1 3,0027
Dernatne financial instruments - 28 2 28 2
Other recenables

— 5t James’s Place Partnership loans 54 452 138 94 4 94 4
— Other 105 0 1050 293 9 398 9
Total other recenables 140 4 452 138 199 4 2939 4933
Cash & cash equnnalents 114 5 1145 22828 2,3973
Total financial assets 463 5 573 817 6025 248205 254230
Financial Liabilities

Investment contract benefits — 222273 22,2273
Borrowings 728 390 111 8 11 8
Dervative financral instruments - 43 4 43 4
Other pavables 1519 1519 2245 376 4
Total financial habilities 2247 390 2637 22,4952 22,7589

*  [nanaal hablies included under unu linked Funds and attributable to unit holders are deemed to have a maturity up to one year as they are repavable or transferable
on demand

Sensitivity analysis to market risks

The majority of the Group'’s business 1s unit linked and the direct associated market risk 1s therefore borne by policyholders (although
therc 15 a sccondary impact as sharcholder income 1s dependent upon the markets) Financial assets and habihties held outside unimised
funds primarily consist of fixed interest securities, units in moncy market funds, cash and cash equinalents, and other assets and
labilittes  The fixed interest securities are held to match non linked habilites and the ability salues mosc broadly in line with the
matching asset values such that fair value interest rate risk 1s immatcrial, although these 1s some residual risk due to imperfeet
matching Cash held in unitised money market funds and at bank 15 valued at par and 1s unaffccted by mosement 10 interest rates
Other assets and hiabilities are simularly unaffected by market moycments

As a result of these combined factors, the Group’s finanaial assets and liabihiuies held outside unitised tunds are not materially subject o

market risk, and movements at the balance shect date i interest rates and equity values have an immaterial impact on the Group’s profit
after tax and equity Future profits from annual management charges may be affected by movements in interest rates and equity values
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28 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT AND ALLOCATION

It 15 the Group’s policy to maintan a strong capital base in order to

— protect policyholders’ and creditors’ interests,

— support the development of its business and create sharcholder value, and
— meet regulatory rcquirements at all umes

Within the Group each subsidiars manages 1ts ow n capital in the context of the Group capital plan Capital generatud in excess of
ptanned requirements is returned o the Group's parent, St James's Place ple, normally by way of diidends The Group capial plan is
monitored by the Finance Executne Committee on hehalf of the St James's Place ple Board

The Group’s policy 1s for each Company to hold the higher of
— the Company s internal assessment of the capual required, and

— the capital requircment of the relevant supen 1sory body plus a specihed margin over this to absorb changes

Generally, because of the nature of the business and the current regulatory rules, the higher requirement 15 that of the supervisory
body plus the speaified margin

The follow ing entitics are under supervisory regulation and have to maintain a minimum leael of regulatory capital

Entity Regulatory Body and Junisdiction

5t James’s Place UK ple FSA Long term insurance business

St James’s Place International plc Central Bank of Ireland Life insurance business
St James's Place Unit Trust Group Limited FSA UCITS Management Company

St James’s Placc Wealth Management ple FSA Personal Investrent Firm

St James’s Place Reassurance (2009) Limited F5A Reassurance Company

St James's Place Trust Company Jersey Limited Jersey Financial Services Commission

5t James's Place Wealth Management (PCIS) Limited FSA Sccuritics and Futures

The FSA regulatory requirement for St James’s Place UK plc, which makes up the majority of the Group capital requirement, includes
the prescribed mmimum solvency margin requirement (the Capital Rosources Requirement (CRR)) and an assessment of the risks
taced under the business, known as the Individual Capital Assessment The capital requirement 1s assessed and monitored by the
Finance Executine Commuttee, a committec of the St James’s Place UK plc Board

The regulatory requirements for the remaining companies within the Group are assessed and monitored by the relevant Board

There has been no matenal change in the Group’s management of capital during the period and all regulated entities exceed the
mummum solvency requirements at the balance shect date

Capital composition

The principal forms of capital are included in the follow ing balances on the consolidated balance sheet
31 December 31 December

2012 2011

£ Maullion £ Mallion

Share capital 760 740
Share premium 127 7 110 4
Treasury shares reserve (8 9) (8 5)
Miscellanecus reserves 2.3 23

Retained earnings 565 4 5001
762.5 678 3

The abose assets do not all qualify as regulatory capital Analysis of the assets which do qualify as regulatory capital 1s given in
Section 3 of the Financial Resiew on page 26 The Group and 1ts indnidually regulated operations havc complied with all externally
and internallv imposed capital requirements throughout the period
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29 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
Ordinary Share
Shares Capital
£ Mallion
At | January 2011 486,149,186 729
— Scrip divadend 1,107,415 02
— Exeraise of options 6,166,150 09
At 31 December 2011 493 422,751 74 0
— Lxercise of options 13,408,396 20
At 31 December 2012 506,831,147 76 0

The total authorised number of srdinary shares 1s 605 million (2011 605 million), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(20t1 15 pence per sharey Allissued shares are fully paid

Included in the 1ssued share capital are 3,052,273 (2011 3,048,030} shares held in the Treasury Shares Reserye with a nominal value ‘
of £0 5 mullion (2011 £0 5 mullion) ‘

The. number of shares reserved for 1ssue under options and contracts for sale of shares, including terms and conditions, 15 included ‘
within Note 30

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012 the Group operated a number of different equity settled share-based payment arrangements,

which arc aggregated as follows

— SAYE plan ~ this 15 a standard HMRC appros ed scheme that 1s available to all employees where indviduals may contribute up to
£.250 per month over three vears to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the market price at the date of the 1y nation to participate

— Executive deferred bonus schemes — undcr these plans the deferred elument of the annual bonus 1s used to purchase shares at market
ralue in the Company The shares are held by the Company unul vesting after three years and, 1n addition to the performance
targets, which apply prior to any entitlement being granted, further performance conchtions may also apply on vesting

— Executne performance share plan — the Remuneration Commuttcc of the Group Board may make awards of performance shares to
the Executnn e Directors and other semor managers Two-thirds of shares awarded to Directors are subject to an carmings growth
condition of the Group and onc-third of sharcs awarded to Directors are subject to a comparative total shareholder return (TSR)
condition, both measured over a three year peried Further information regarding the vesting conditions of the earnings grow th and
total shareholder return dupendent portions of the award 1s ginen in the Remuneration Report on page 68 Awards made to senior
managers are largely only subject to the earnings grow th condition of the Group

— Partner share option schemes — these were offered to the Partners of the St James’s Place Partnershup and vest over three to six
years subject to satlsfylng personal sales related performance criternia The last award undcr these schemes was made 1n 2007

— Partner performance share plan —a new scheme was launched in Janvary 2008 whereby Partners are entitled to purchase shares in
the tuture at nomnal value (15 penccy The number of shares the Partners are entitled to purchase will depend on their personal .
sales production 1n the year of the award and validation over the following threc years This scheme 1s now closed with no further
awards being made

Share options outstanding under the various share option schemes, together with shares due under the deferred bonus schemes at

31 December 2012 amount to 21 0 million shares (2011 32 0 million) Of these, 107 mullion (2011 20 5 nullion) are under option to
Partners of the St James's Place Partnership, 8 7 mullion (2011 9 5 muthon) are under option to cxecutives and sentor management
(including 3 2 nullion (2011 3 5 nulhon) under option to Directors as disclosed in the Remuneration Report on pages 78 to 80) and

1 6 mullion (2011 2 0 million) arc under option through the SAYE scheme Thesc are excraisable on a range of future dates
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

The table below summarises the share-based payment awards made 1n 2011 and 2012

Executine Executive
Deferred Performance
SAYE Bonous Share Plan
Awards 1n 2011
Date nfgrant 23 March 15 March Various
Number granted 327,130 1,133,358 1,797,964
Awards n 2012,
Date of grant 23 March & 26 March Various
26 Sept
Numbecr granted 1,621,267 747,571 1,590,512
Contractual hifc 3 5vears 3 years 3 5 years
Vesting conditions 3 year saving 3 )ears' 3 }cars'
period service and service and
achicxement achievement of
of pursonal arrungs and
targets 1n some TSR targets
nstances

Financial assumptions underlying the calculation of fair value

The fair value expense has been based on the fair value of the instruments granted, as calculated using appropriate deris ative pricing
modcls The table below shows the assumptions and models used 1o calculate the grant date fair value of each award

Executne Executive
Deferred Performance
SAYE Bonus Share Plan
Black- Black- Mante
Valuation model Scholes Scholcs Carlo
Awards in 2011
Fair value {pence) 125 1@ 3316 245 4/331 6%
Share price (pence) 3223 3316 331 610 355 0%
Exercise price (pencd) 2420 0 00 G 00
Expected volathty {% pa)” 44 N/A 44
Expected dividends (% pa) 19 N/A® N/A
Risk-free intercst rate (% pa) 19 N/A N/A
Volatility of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A 1410 111
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A 20
Awards n 2012
Fair value (pence) 10217110 ¥ 364 7 212 3/364 7%
Share price (punce) 362 0/369 9 364 7 341 50 371 09
Exercise price (pence) 296 0/275 0 ¢ 00 000
Expected volaulity (% pa)t” 34/32 N/A 34
Expected dinidends (% pa) 22/24 N/AW® N/A
Risk-free interest rate (% pa) 07/03 N/A N/A
Volatihity of competitors (% pa) N/A N/A 171069
Correlation with competitors (%) N/A N/A 20
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(1) Fxpected volanlity 1s based on an analysis of the Company s historie share price volaulity over a period (typically three or five vears) which 1s commensurate with the

txpected term of the optiens or the awards

(2} In 201l and 2012 the vesting periad for the SAYE plan was threc years The vesting period may be «xtended by up 10 six months in order 1o catch up on mssed

contnibutions

(3} Duvdends payable on the shares during the restricted poriod are paid sut during the rostricted peniod for the exccutive defurred hones schemes and no dividend viekd

assumption 15 therefore required

(4) The anards made undur the Lxecutne performance share plan are dependent upon carnings grow than the Company {two thirds of the award) and a total sharcholdur return

of a comparator group of companics {one third of the award) This results 1n having two fair values for each of the awards made in the table above, the first being 1n relation

to the comparator total sharcholdur retuen and the second rdating to the Company’s arnings growth
(5) Awards were made under the executive performance share plan on five separate occasions during 2012 (2011 6)
(6) Thert ware no awards made 1n 2011 or 2012 for the wxccutnve share option sche mes or the sales manageme nt sharc option sche mas

Year Ended Year Ended Year Fndud Year I nded
31 December 31 December 31 Decumber 31 December
2012 2012 21 2011
Number of Waighted Number of Waighted
Opt:lons a\erage uplmnﬁ an Lrﬂgc
EXETCISE Prl(.c LXETCISE prlcc
SAYE:
Outstamlmg at start of}car 1,987,287 £1.70 1,889,767 Ll 62
Granted 1,621,267 £2.86 327,130 L2 42
Forferted (594,764) £2.88 {121,564) £1 97
Exercised {1,441,618) £1.50 {108,046) 12 10
Expired - -
Outstanding at end of year 1,572,172 £2.63 1,987,287 £1 70
Exercisable at end of vear 5,468 £2.25 6,100 £1 50
Executive Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year 987,443 £1 84 1,431,122 £178
Granted - -
Forfened — -
Exercised (463,095) £1.66 (443.679) L1 63
Expired — —
Outstanding at end of year 524,348 £201 987,443 £1 84
Exercisable at end of year 524,348 £2.01 987,443 £1 84
Sales Management Share Options
Outstanding at start of vear - 12,500 £2 42
Granted — -
Forfeited - -
Exercised - 12,500y £2 42
Expired - -
Outstanding at end of year - -
Exercisable at end of year - -
Partner Share Options
Outstanding at start of year 17,892,050 £2.45 12,542 325 £2 38
Granted - —
Forfeited (24,667) £1,37 (395,208) £279
Exercised (7,456,245) £202  (4,255,067) £2 01
Expired - -
Outstanding at end of year 10,411,138 £277 17,892,050 £2 45
Exercisable at end of year 10,398,388 £2797 17,857,625 £2 46

The average share price during the year was 357 5 pence (2011 329 2 pence)
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30 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had excreise prices of 150 pence (2,196 options), 204 pence (233,563
options), 242 pence (247,348 options), 296 pence (303,692 options) and 275 pence (785,373 options) and a weighted average

remaining contractual life of 2 1 years

The opuions sutstanding under the executive share option schemes at 31 December 2012 had exercise prices ranging from 85 5 pence
to 254 25 penceand a w elghted avcrage remaining contractual ife of 1 6 years

The options oulstandmg under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2012 had exercise prices ranging from 85 5 pence to
465 pence and a weighted average remaiming contractual hiic of 3 0 years

Executive Performance Share Plan (nil cost option — no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Fnded

31 December 3 Diecembar

2012 2011

Number of Number of

options aptions

Outstanding at start of year 5,851,489 5,954 291
Granted 1,590,512 1,797,964
Forfeited (407,200) (675,117)
Exercised (1,764,426)  (1,225,649)
Expired - -
Outstanding at ¢nd of year 5,270,375 5,851,489
Exercisable at end of year 40,494 -

Partner Performance Share Plan (15 pence nominal share value option — 15 pence per share on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Decumber

2012 2011

Number of Number of

options options

Qutstanding at start of year 2,617,500 2,772,500
Granted - -
Forfewed (223,854) (155,000)
Exercised (2,086,146) -
Expired - —
Outstanding at end of year 307,500 2,617,500
Exeraisable at end of year - -

Executive Deferred Bonus (no proceeds on exercise)

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 31 Dicember

2012 2011

Number of Number of

shares shares

Outstanding at start of year 2,690,807 2,705,275
Granted 747,571 1,133,358
Forfeited (53,957) (63,295)
Exercised (460,734)  (1,084,531)
Ouistanding at end of vear 2,923,687 2,690,807

Exercisable at end of year - _
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I
Early exercise assumptions |
The follow ing allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested |
|
|
I

(1) SAYE plan —all option holders arc assumed to exerase half-w ay through the six month exeraise window

(2) Exccutne, sales management and partner share option schemes — 1t 15 assumed that 10% of option holders are forced to exercrse
their options each year irrespective of the level of the share price For the remainder 1t 1s assumed that one-half will exercise ther
optiens each vear if the share price 1 at least 33% above the cxeraise price

Allowance for performance conditions

The executn ¢ purformance share plan includes a markct based performance condition based on the Company’s total shareholder
rcturn relative to an index of comparator companies The impact of this performance condition has becn modelled using Monte Carlo
simulation techniques, which involve running many thousands of simulations of future share price movements for hath the Compam
and the comparator index For the purpose of these simulations 1t 1s assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator
index are 20% (2011 20%) correlated and that the comparator index has volatilities ranging between 17% pa to 69% pa (2011 14%
pa to 111% pa)

The pertormance condition 1s based on the Company's performance relative to the comparator index over a three year period
commencing on | January each year The fair value calculanions for the awards that were made in 2012 therefore include an allowance
tor the actual performance of the Company’s share price relatne to the index over the period betwecn 1 January 2012 and the vanious
award dates

Charge to the consohdated statement of comprehensive income
The table below sets out the charge to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 1 respect of the share-bascd payment anards

Year Ended  Year Frded
31 December 31 Dicembor
2012 201

£ Million £ Mihon

Share-based pay ment expensc 54 105

31 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2012 the Group had the follow ing annual commiutments under non-cancellable operating leases 1n connection with
the rental of office buildings and officc equipmant with varying lease end dates ranging from 2012 1o 2027

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

£ Mulhion L Millien

Within one year 1.9 04
Between two and five years 23 32
In more than five years 6.6 64
Total financial commitments 10.8 100

Asat 31 December 2012, there was £1 0 nullion (2011 £3 0 million) of future mimmum sublease pay ments expected to be recenved
under non-cancellable sub-leases
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company and the Group have entercd into related party transactions with Lloyds Banking Group ple (*LBG’), various subsidiaries
of LBG and the Dhrectors of the Company and the Group LBG, which owns 57% of the Company's share capital, 1s the ultimate
controlling party of the Group

Transactions with LBG and LBG group companies

The following transactions were carried out, on an arm’s length basis, with LBG and 1ts subsicharies during the year

— Commussion of £0 8 milhon (2011 £0 8 mullion) was rccenable from the sale of banking scrvices for St James’s Place Bank
(a division of Halitax plc)

— Commussion of £1 1 mulhon (2011 £1 1 malhion) was recenable Irom the sale of pensions offered by Scottish Widows

— Commussion of £0 9 milhon (2011 £0 9 mulhoen) was recenvable from the sale of Halifax, Cheltenham & Gloucester, Bank of
Scotland, Birmingham Midshires, Scottish Widows and The Mortgage Business mortgages

— Commussion of £0 5 milhion (2011 £1 0 milhen) was recenable from Bank of Scotland Annunty Service

— Commssion of £37,000 (2011 £22,000) was recenable brom Bank of Scotland in respect of corparate banking income 1n 2012

— During the year, deposits were placed with Bank of Scotland and Lloyds TSB on normal commeraial terms At 31 December 2012
these depostts amounted to £54 7 mallion (2011 £21 8 million)

— Amounts lent by, or assigned to, the Bank of Scotland to members of the St James’s Place Partnership, under guarantee by
St James's Place, totalled £89 6 million (2011 £87 7 mullion)

— Amounts lent by the Bank of Scotland to the Group totalled £0 8 million (2011 £0 8 million)

— lax fees of £27,000 (2011 £21,500) in respeet of annual tax comphance and ad-hoe tax advice ware charged by LBG ple to certain
unit trusts

— Fecs of £26,250 (2011 £26,250) were payable to LBG in respect of the services of non-uxecutive St James’s Place, Board Directors

— The Group has an arm’s length contract with Prudential (which owns 5 53% of the sharc capital) to provide admimstrative services

St James’s Place Board Dircctors have been included in a directors’ and othicers” insuranee policy negotiated on a group basis by LBG

HM Treasury 15 a related party of the Company as a result of 1ts 39 2% (2011 40 2%) holding of shares in Lloyd's Banking Group
The Group and Company have entered into transactions with HM Treasury on an arm’s length basis incdluding but not exclusively in
relation to, the payment of corporation tax and value added tax

Transactions with St. James’s Place unit trusts

In respect of the non-consolidated St James’s Place managed unit trusts that are held as investments in the St James's Place hife and
pension funds, there was income recogmsed of £154 0 mullion (2011 £18 8 million expense) and the 1otal value of transactions with
those non-consolidated untt trusts was £650 9 million (2011 £668 6 mullion) Net management fues reconabk. from these unit trusts
amounted to £56 2 milhon (2011 £62 4 million) The value of the investment into the non-consohidated unit trusts at 31 December 2012
was £1,404 1 million (2011 £925 5 million)

Transactions with key management personnel

The compensation paid to key management personnel, being the Board of Directors of St James’s Place, 15 set out i the Remuncration
Report on page 76 The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the Deferred Bonus Scheme, the
Performance Share Plan, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with details of the
Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company

The charge to the statement of comprehensne income in respect of the share-based payment aw ards made to the Executne Directors
of 5t James’s Place during 2012 was £1 4 mullion (2011 £4 1 milhon)

Commusston of £814,687 (2011 £662,391) was pad, under normal commercial terms, to St James's Place Partners who were related
parties by virtue of being connected persons with key management The outstanding amount pasable at 31 December 2012 was
£230,191 (2011 £27,386)
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At the start of the year a St James's Place Partner, connccted to Mr Andrew Croft, held 86,000 options under the Partner share
option scheme, exercisable between 1 July 2003 and 1 July 2009 {expiry dates between 31 July 2012 and 26 july 2016) at excrcise
prices ranging between £1 45 and £3 28, and 27,500 options under the Partner performance sharc plan exercisable on between 8
March 2012 and 8 March 2015 at an exeraise price of £0 15 During the year 31,000 options under the Partner share option scheme
were exercised (2011 51,000} at £1 45 and £2 36 leaving a balance at 31 December 2012 of 55,000 options undcr the Partner share
option scheme In addition, 9,167 vosted award shares were excraiscd under the Partner performance share plan at £0 15 leaving a
balance at 31 December 2012 of 18,333 vested award shares under the Partners performance share plan The 31,000 options and 8,167
award shares were exeraiscd on three scparate occasions 11,000 at £1 45 on 7 June 2012 when the share price was £3 311, 20,000 at
£2 36 on 1 November 2012 when the share price was £3 955, and 9,167 at £0 15 on 29 November 2012 when the share price was

44 00, realising a gain of L87,664

33 PARENT COMPANY

The company regarded by the Directors as the ulumate parent company 1s Llovds Banking Group ple, a imited liability company
incorporated and domiailed 1n Scotland, which 1s also the parent undertaking of the largest group ot undertakings for which group
financial statements arc draw n up and of which the Company 15 a member Copies of the group financial statements may be obtaned
from Group Sccretariat, Lloyds Banking Group ple, 25 Gresham Street, London EC2V 7HN HBOS pleis the parent undertaking of
the smallest group of undertakings lor which group financial statements are drawn up Copies of the HBOS ple consolidated financial
statements may be obtamned from HBOS ple, The Mound, Edinburgh, EH1 1YZ

Lloyds Banking Group plc was the ulumate controlling party as at 31 December 2012 and has been the ulmate controlling party of
the company since 1ts acquisition of HBOS plc on 16 January 2009

34. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Investment Holding Companies St James’s Place Investments ple

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group ple
Life Assurance 5t James’s Place UK plc

St James's Place International ple (incorporated 1n Ireland)
Unit Trust Management St James’s Place Umt Trust Group Limited
Distribution St Jamcs’s Place Wealth Management ple
Management Services St James’s Place Management Services Lumited
Internal Reassurance St James’s Place Reassurance (2009) Limited

The Company ow ns either directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiarics
A full hst of subsidiaries 15 available on request from the registered ofhice and will be submitted with the Company's Annual Return
All of these companies are registered in England and Wales and operate principally in the United Kingdom except where otherwise stated

Due to on going solvency requirements, there are rostrictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the hfe assurance, unit
trust and financial services operating companies of the Group which restricts their abibty 1o transfer cash dinidends to the Company
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES coninued

The follow ing whotly-owned subsidiaries of St James’s Place ple have taken advantage of the exemption from statutory audit granted
by scetion 479A of the Companics Act 2006 In accordance with section 479C, 8t James's Place plc has thercfore guaranteed all the

outstanding liabihuies as at 31 December 2012 of

Angha Financial Limited (03835743)

Entellus Lumited (01611224)

Lopsystem Limuted (01503794)

MHS (Holdings) Limited (00559995)

SJPC Group Limited (0187354 6)

SJPC 7 Limuted (02102279)

SJPC 2000 ple (SCO13363)

5t James'’s Place Admunistration Lumited (00740495)
St James’s Place Investment Trust Limited (00209445)
St James’s Place Investments ple (01773177)

St James’s Place Partnershap Limited (00425649)

St James’s Place Property Services Limited (02608806)
St James's Place 1990 Limited (02513402)

St James's Properties Limited (01075927)

In addition, the Group accounts consolidate the follow ing unit trusts
St James’s Place Allshare Income Unit Trust

St James's Place Alternative Assets Unit Trust

St Jamcs's Place Balanced Managed Umit Trust

St James's Place Cash Unut Trust

St James's Place Continental European Unit Trust

St James's Place Corporate Bond Unit Trust

St James's Place Ethical Unut Trust

St James’s Place Far East Unit Trust

St James’s Place Gilts Unit Trust

5t James’s Place Global Equity Umit Trust

St James’s Place Global Unit Trust

St James's Place Global Emerging Markets Unit Trust

St James’s Place High Octance Upit Trust

St James’s Place Index Linked Guts Unit Trust

St James’s Place International Corporate Bond Unit Trust
St James’s Place Investment Grade Corporate Bond Unit Trust
St James's Place Managed Grow th Uit Trust

St James's Place Mulu Asset Unit Trust

St James’s Place North Amenican Unit Trust

St James's Place Strategic Managed Unit Trust

St James's Place UK Absolute Return Umit Trust

St james’s Place UK and International Unit Trust

St James's Place UK Grow th Unit Trust

St James's Place Worldwide Opportumties Umt Trust

All of these unit trusts are managed n the United Kingdom

136 St James s Place plc
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the members of St. James’s Place plc

We have audted the parent company hnancal statcments of

St James's Place ple for the vear ended 31 December 2012 which
comprise the Balance Sheet of the Parunt Company and the related
notes The financial reporting lramework that has been apphed in
their preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice)

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully 1n the Statement of Dircctors’
Responsibilities set out on page 64, the directors are responsible
for the preparation of the parent company financial statements
and lor l)clng satisfied that they gnve a truc and fair view Our
responsiility 1s to audit and cxpress an opiion on the parent
company financial statements 1n accordance with applicable faw
and [nternational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ircland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Pracuices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and
only for the company’s members as a body 1n aceordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other
purposc We do not, in gnimg these opinions, accept or assume
rcaponslblllty for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report s shown or into whose hands it may Come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent o w riting

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit imvolves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements sufficicnt to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the parent company’s aircumstances and hasve been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonablcness of significant
accounting estimates madc by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the financial statements In addition, we read all
the financial and non-fAnancial informatton 1n the Annual Report
and Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the aundited
financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or 1ncensistencies we consider the impheations for
our rcport

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion the parent compan financial statements

— gneatrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2012,

— have been proporly prepared in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

— have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006

1 38 St James's Place plc

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies

Act 2006

In our opinon

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006, and

— the inlormation given m the Directors” Report lor the financial
vear for which the parent company financial statements arc
prepared 1s consistent with the parent company financial
statements

Matters on which we are required to report by

exception

We have nothing to report 1n respect of the Follnwmg matters w here

the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 1f, m our

opinion

— adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
compam, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us, or

— the parent cornpany financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Rumuneration Report to be audited are not in
agrecment with the accounting records and returns, or

— certamn disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
arc not made, or

— we have not recened all the information and cxplanations we
require for our audn

Other matter
We have reported separatcly on the group financial statements of
St Jamcs's Place ple for the vear ended 31 December 2012

Craig Gentle (Semior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Prices atcrhouse Coopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Bristol

27 Fcbruary 2013

(a) The mamntenance and integrity of the 8t James's Place ple website 1s the
responsibility of the directors the work carried out by the auditors does not
invale considi ration of these matters and, accordingly the auditors aceept no
responsibility for any changes that mav have occurred to the financial statements
sinee they were inatially presented on the wibsite

(b) [ egnlstion m the United kingdom gorvurning the preparation and disserination
of financial statements may differ from legaslation im other jurisdictions

Registered No 03183415
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31 December 31 December

Notes 2012 2011
£ Million £ Milhon

Fixed assets
Investment in subsidiaries 2 3828 377 4
Current assets
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 14.9 -
Corporation tax asscts — 01
Other debtors 01 01
Current liabihities
Amounts owed to Group undcrtakings - (22 6)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 15.0 (22 4)
Total assets less current habilities 3978 3550
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 3 760 740
Share premium account 4 127.7 110 4
Share option resersve 4 734 68 0
Other reserves 4 01 01
Profit and loss account 4 120 6 102 5
Total shareholders’ funds 3978 3550

The financial statements on pages 139 to 144 were approy ed by the Board of Directors on 27 Tebruary 2013 and signed on 1ty behalf by

Yo ke,

D Bellamy
Chief Executine

The notes and information on pages 140 to 144 form part of these accounts

Annual Report and Accounts 2012
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

St James's Place ple (the ‘Company’) 1s a limuted hability company mcorporated in England and Walcs and whose shares are publicly
traded The Company offers a range of insurance, investment and other wealth management serices through its subsicharies, which
are principally incorporated 1n the UK and Ircland

The financial statements have becn prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the historical cost
comvention The Company has elected 1o continuc to prepare the parent financial statements in accordance with UK Generally
Aceepted Accounting Practice In publishing the Parcnt Company finaneaal statements, the Company has taken ads antagc of the
exemption in Section 408 ot the Companies Act 2006 not Lo present its indin idual profit and loss account and related notes that form
part of these financial statements The Company 1s not required to present a statement of total recognised gains and losses

As discussed 1n the Directors’ Report the going concern basis has been adopted in preparing these accounts

Allaccounting policies have been reviewed for appropriateness tn accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (‘FRS’) 18 (Accounting
Policiesy and have been applicd consisiently 1o all periods presented in these Parent Company financial statements The Company has
not presented a cash flow statement as a consolidated cash flow statement 1s presented in the consolidated Group financial statements

Significant accounting policies
{(a) Investment return
Investment return comprises dividends from subsidiaries, which are accounted for when recened

{b) Taxation
Taxation 1s based on profits and wncome for the period as determined 1n accordance with the relevant tax legislation, 1ogcther with
adjustments to provisions tor prior periods

(¢} Investment 1n subsidiaries
Investments 1n subsidiaries are carried at cost after impairment losses, plus the cost of share awards granted by the Company of 1ts
oW n sharcs

(d) Debtors

Debtors are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses

(e) Amounts owed to Group undertakings
Amounts ow ed to Group undertakings are stated at amortised cost

(f) Impairment losses

The carry mg amounts of the assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date to determine whether there s any mdicatnion of
impairment If there is any indication of irrecoserability or impairment, the asset’s recovcrable amount 1s cstimated based on the
present value of 1ts estimated future cash flows
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2 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

2012 2011
£ Malthoen £* Million

Cost at 1 January
Imestment in Group undertakings 311 4 311 4
Share options granted by Company 680 575

3794 Jeg 9

Additions in the year
Imestment in Group undertakings - -

Share options granted by Company 5.4 105
54 i0s

Cost at 31 December

Investment in Group undertakings 311 4 311 4

Share options granted by Company 73.4 68 0

3848 37’94
Impairment n value
[nsestment in Group undertakings (20) 20

Net book value at 31 December 3828 377 4

[he Dircctors’ believe that the carrying value of the investments 1s supported by their underlying net assuts

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2012

Investment Holding Companies St James's Place Investments plc

St James’s Place Wealth Management Group ple
Life Assurance St James’s Place UK plc

St James’s Place International ple (incerporated 1 freland)
Unit Trust Management St James’s Place Umit Trust Group Limited
Distribution St James’s Place Wealth Management plc
Management Services St James’s Place Management Services Limited
Internal Reassurance St James’s Place Reassurance (2009) Limited

A full List of subsidiaries 15 available on request from the registered office and will be submitted with the Company’s Annual Return
The Company owns either directly or indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the aboye-named subsidiaries
Al} of these companies are registered in England and Wales and operate principalls in the United Kingdom except where otherw ise stated

Due t6 ongoing solvency requirements, there are restrictions on the amount of chstributable reserves within the hfe assurance, unit
trust and financial sers ices operating companies of the Group which restricts their ability 1o transfer cash dividends to the Company

Annual Reportand Accounts 2012 14]




Notes to the Parent Company Accounts conunued

3. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
Ordinary Called up
Shares Share Capital
L Million
At | January 2011 486,149,186 7?29
~ Scrip dividend 1,107,415 02
— Exercise of opuions 6,166,150 09
At 31 December 2011 493,422,751 740
— Exercise of options 13,408,396 20
At 31 December 2012 506,831,147 760

T'he total authorised numbcr of ordinarsy sharcs 1s 605 milhon (2011 605 mullion), with a par value of 15 pence per share
(2011 15 pence per share) Al ssucd shares are fully pard

13,408,396 shares were 1ssued in the year at a nominal value of £2 0 mullion, for which the company recen ed consideration of £19 3 million

4 RESERVES
Share Profit Share
Premiym and [ oss Option Other
Account Account Reserve Reserves Total
£ Million £ Million £ Milhon £ Milion £ Milhon
At 1 January 2011 98 1 96 1 575 01 251 8
Profit for the financial year 415 415
Dnadends (351) 350
lssue of share capital
Scrip dividend 33 33
Exercise of options 90 20
Cost of share options expensed in subsidiary 105 105
At 31 December 2011 110 4 102 5 680 01 2810
Profit for the financial year 63 4 63 4
MDividends (45 3} (45 3)
Issue of share capital
Exercise of options 17 3 173
Cost of share options cxpensed in subsidiary 54 54
At 31 December 2012 1277 120.6 734 01 3218

5 AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The total audit fee in respect of the Group 1s set out 1n Note 6 on page 103 of the consoldated financial statements The audit fec
charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 15 £1,000 (2011 £1,000)
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6. DIVIDENDS
The follow ing dividends have been pawd by the Group

Year Lnded  Year Ended Year Lnded  Ycar Ended
31 December 31 Ddecember 31 December 31 December
02 m 2012 2011
Pence per Punce per £ Million £' Mulbon
share Share
Final dinidend in respect of prestous financial year 4 80 3975 239 19 4
Interim davidend in respect of current financial year 425 3200 214 157
Total 905 7175 453 351

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of 6 39 pence per share (2011 4 8 pence) This amounts to £32 4 million (2011
£23 7 mullion) and will, subject ta shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 24 May 2013 to those sharcholdcrs
on the register as at 12 Apnil 2013

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

At the year end the follow ng related party balances existed

31 December 31 Docember
2012 201

£ Mullion L Millien

Investments in GI’OUP companies

St Jamcs’s Place Partnership Limited 420 420
St James's Place Wealth Management Group ple 1610 1556
St jamcs’s Place [nsestments ple 179.8 179 8
Intra group debtors

St James’s Place [nvestments ple 14.9 -
Intra group creditors

St James's Place Imestments ple - 22 6

During the year, the Company recened £63 4 million (2011 £43 0 mullion} duvvidends from subsidiary undertakings

The follow ing wholly-ow ned subsidiarics of St James’s Place plc have taken advantage of the exemption from statutory audit granted
by section 479A of the Companics Act 2006 [n accordance with section 479C, St James’s Place plc has therefore guaranteed all the
outstanding habilities as at 31 December 2012 of

Angha Financial Limited (03835743)

Entellus Limited (01611224)

Lopsystem Limited (01503794)

MHS (Holdings) Limited (00559995)

SJPC Group Limited (01873546)

SJPC 7 Limited {02102279)

SJPC 2000 plc (SCO13363)

St James’s Place Admunistration Limited (00740495)
St James’s Place Investment Trust Limited (00209445)
St James’s Place Investments plc (01773177)

St James's Place Partnership Limited (0042564%)

St James’s Place Property Services Limited (02608806)
St James’s Place 1990 Limuted (02513402)

St James's Properues Limited (01075927)
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Notes to the Parent Company Accounts e

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The Directors’ rcsponsitbihities relate primarily to the trading companies of the Group and accordingly their costs are charged to those
companies and none are mct by the Parent Company Disclosure of the Directors’ emoluments 1s made within the Remuneration
Report on page 76

9 PARENT COMPANY

The company regarded by the Directors as the ultimate parent company is Lloyds Banking Group ple, a limited hability company
incorporated and domiailed 1n Scotland, which 1s also the parent undertaking of the largest group of undertakings for which group
financial statements are drawn up and of which the Company 15 a member Copics of the group financial statements may be obtained
from Group Secretariat, Lloyds Banking Group ple, 25 Gresham Strect, London EC2V 7HN HBOS plc 1s the parent undertaking of
the smallest group of undertakings for which group financial statements are drawn up Coptes of the HBOS plc consohdated financial
statements may be obtained from HBOS ple, The Mound, Edinburgh, EH1 1YZ

Lloyds Banking Group plc was the ulumate controlling party as at 31 December 2012 and has been the ultimate controlling party of
the Company since its acquisition of HBOS plcon 16 January 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report

to the Directors of St. James’s Place plc (‘the Company’) on the
Supplementary Information on European Embedded Value Basis

We have audited the Supplementary Information on the European
Embedded Value Basis of St James’s Place plc for the year ended
31 December 2012 that comprise the Consolidated Statement of
Income — European Embedded Value Basis, Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity — Curopean Embeddcd Value
Bawis, Consohdated Statement of Financial Position — European
Embedded Value Bass and the related notes (“the Supplomentary
Information”), which has been prepared 1n accordance with the
European Embedded Value (‘EEV’) basts set out in Note [ — Basis
of Preparation and which should be read in conjunction with the
Group's financial statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully i the Statement of Directors
Responsibilitics, the directors are responsible for preparing the
Supplementary Information on the EEV basis in accordance with
the EEV basis set out 1n Note 1 — Basis of Preparation Qur
responqlbllnty 15 to audit and express an opinion on the
Supplemcntary Information in accordance with applhcable law
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ircland) Those
standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinton, has been prepared for and
only for the Company’s directors as a body 1n accordance with
our letter of engagement dated 6 July 2042 and for no other
purpose We do not, in giving this oprmion, accept or assume
responsibihty for any other purpose or to any other purson to
whom this report 1s show n or into whose hands 1t may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wniting

Scope of the audit of the Supplementary Information
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and
disclosurcs 1n the Supplementary Information sufficicnt to gne
reasonable assurance that the Supp]cmemar) Informanion 1s free
from material misstatement, whether caused I)) fraud or error
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies
are appropriate to the Group's circumstances and have been
consistently apphied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the
overall presentation of the Supplementary Information In
addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information
in the Annual Report and Accounts to wdennfy material
inconsistencies with the audited Supplementary information

if we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or
mconsistencies we consider the imphcations for our report

146

St James's Place ple

Opinion on the Supplementary Information

[n our opinton, the Supplementary Information for the year
cncked 31 December 2012 has been properly prepared in all
material respects n accordance with the European Embedded
Value basis set out in Note [ — Basis of Preparation

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants
Rristol

27 February 2013

(2) The mantenance and integrity of the St James s Place Ple website 1s the
responsibilsty of the dircctors the work carried out by the auditors does not
ln\()l\-l— L()nsldl ration ()i ‘hLSL matters ;l"[‘ al.(l]r[llﬂgly ll’ll: au(ll‘l}ri acce i][ no
responsiiliey for any changes that may have occurred to the Supplementary
Information since they were initially prosented on the website

b

=

1 epaslation in the United Kingdom govirning the preparation and dissemination
of Supplementary Information may differ from legislation 1n other jurisdictions

Regntered No 03183415




Business Reszen

Consolidated Statement of Income
European Embedded Value Basis Financial Staremens

Other Information

The following supplementary information shows the result for the Group adopting a European Embedded Value (EEV) basis for
reporting the results of 1ts whally ow ned life and unit trust businesses

Year Ended  Year Fnded
31 December 31 December

2012 201

£ Million £ Millhon

Life business 2939 294 2
Unit Trust business 826 84 §

Distribution business 53 61
Other (159) (13 3)
EEY operating profit 365.9 3715
Investment return variances 190 4 (180 4}
Economaic assumption changes 3.7) (0 3)
EEY profit before tax 5526 190 8

Tax

Life business (89 5) (34 5
Unit Trust business (28 9) 9 9
Distribution business (13) (16)
Other 52 35
Corporation tax rate change 216 505
(229) 80

EEV profit after tax 459 7 198 8

The notes and information on pages 150 to 156 form part of this supplementary information
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

European Embedded Value Basis

Year Ended  Year Fnded
31 December 31 December
2012 2011

Opening shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis

EEV profit after tax for the year

Issue of share capital

Retamned earnings credit in respect of share option charges

Retamed earnings credit in respect of proceeds from exercise of share options of shares held in trust
Dwvidends paid

Consderation paid for own shares

£ Malhion £ Mullon

1,899.5 1,7155
459.7 198 &

19.3 13 4
5.4 105
01 -

(453) (351

(24) 36

Closing shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis

2,336.3  1,8995

The notes and informatien on pages 150 to 156 form part of this supplementary information

14‘8 St James's Place ple
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Consolidated Statement of

Corporate Gosernance

Financial Position
European Embedded Value Basis

31 December 31 December
2012 2011

L Mallien & Mullion

Assets
intangible assets
Detorred acquisition costs 971 6 865 1
Value of Iong-lcrm busingss in-force
— long-term insurance 1,223 6 950 2
— unit trusts 3835 305 8
Computer software 11.7 8 4
Customer list 30 09
2.593.4 2,130 4
Property & equipment 36 54
Deferred tax assuts 190 9 248 5
Investment property 597.6 5509
Investments 28,266.7 22,532 4
Remnsurance asscts 386 3% 0
Insurance and investment contract recenvables 46.5 45
Income tax assets 852 41 3
Other recenables 508.4 530 2
Cash & cash equnalents 2,9970 23293
Total assets 35,3279 28,4519
Liabilities
Insurance contract labilities 424 0 394 0
Other provisions 92 31
Financial habilities 27,217 22,314 5
Deferred tax habiliues 2591 207 3
Insurance and imvestment contract payables 249 299
Delerred income 616.5 5369
Income tax habulities 772 12 4
Other payables 434 2 376 4
Net asset value attributable to umit holders 38748 2,677 9
Total hhabilities 32,991.6 26,552 4
Net assets 2,336.3 1,899 5
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 76.0 740
Share premmm 127.7 110 4
Treasury share reserve {8.9) (8 5)
Miscellancous reserves 23 23
Retained earnings 22,1392 1,721 3
Total shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 2,336.3 1,899 §
Pence Punce
Net asscts per share 461.0 385 0

The supplementary information on pages 147 to 156 was approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2013 and signed on 1ts behalf by

Ve \ oo

D Bellamy A Croft
Chief Executinve Chicf Financial Officer

The notes and information on pages 150 to 156 form part of this supplementary mformation
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

I BASIS OF PREPARATION

The supplementary informatton on pages 147 to 156 shows the Group's results as measured on a European Embedded Value ('EEV')
basts This includes results for the hife, pension and investment business, including umit trust business The valuation 1s undertaken on
a basis determuned mn accordance with the EEV Principles 1ssued i May 2004 by the Chuef Financial Officers Forum, a group of chicf
financial officers trom 19 major European msurers as supplemented by the Addiional Guidance on EEV Disclosures 1ssued in October
2005 (rogether ‘the ELV Principles’) The treatment of all other transactions and balances 1+ unchanged from the primary financial
statements on an [FRS basis The EEV basis Tecognises the long-term naturc of the emcrgence of shareholder cash returns by rcﬂectmg
the net present value of expected future cash flows

Under the EEV methodology, proht is recognised as it 1s earned over the lifc of the products within the covered business The
cmbedded value of the covered business 1s the sum of the sharcholders’ net worth in respect of the covered business and the present
value of the projceted profit stream

II. METHODOLOGY
(a) Covered business
The covered business 1s the hife, pension and imestment business, including umt trust business, undertaken by the Group

(b) Calculation of EEV on existing business

Profit from existing business comprises the expected return on the value of 1n-force business at the start of the year plus the impact of
any changes in the assumptions regarding future operating experience, plus changes in reserving basis (other than economic
assumption changes), plus profits and losses caused by differences betw cen the actual expenence for the pertod and the assumptions
used to calculate the embedded value at the end of the period

(c) Allowance for risk

The allowance for risk in the sharcholder cash flows 1s a key feature of the EEV Principles The EEV Principles set out three main areas
of allow ance for risk 1n the umbedded value

— The risk discount ratc,

— The allowance lor the cost of financial options and guarantees, and

— The cost of holding both prudential reseries and any additionat capital required

The reported EEV allows for risk +1a a risk discount rate based on a bottom-up market-consistent approach, plus an appropriate
additional margin tor non-market risk  [he Group does not offer products that carry any significant financial guarantees or options

(d) Non-market risk

Best estimate assumptions have been established based on available information and when used within the market consistent
calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market risk How esver, some non-market operational risks are not
symmetric, with adverse experience hay inga higher impact on the EEV than faourable experience Allowance has been made for this
by increasing the rnisk discount rate by 0 8% (2011 0 8%)

(e) The risk discount rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated

In principle, cach cash flow 1s valued using the discount rate applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets However in pracuce,
swhere cash flows are either independent or move lincarly with market moscment, 1t 1s possible to apply a simplified method know n as
the ‘certainty equnnalent” approach Under this approach all assets are assumed to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that
risk free rate A market-consistent cost of holding the required capital has also been caleulated

As part of this approach, an appropriate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses does not
more hnearly with market mosements Finally, an additional allow ance for non-market risk has been made by increasing the discoumnt
rate by 0 8%

For presentational purposes, a risk discount rate has then been calculated whrch under the EEV basts gives the same value determined

above This provides an average nisk discount rate for the EEV and 1s described in relation to the risk free rate This average risk
discount rate has also been used o calculare the published value of new business
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(f) Cost of requured capatal
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In light of the results of internal analy sis, the Directors constder that the mmimum regulatory capital provides adequate capital cover
for the risks inherent in the covered business The required capuital for the EEV calculations has thereforc been set to the optimised

minimum r(,gulatnr}' Cil|)lla]

Fhe EEV includes a reduction for the cost of holding the required capital No allowance has been made for amy potential adjustment

that the imestors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital Any such adjustment would be subjective, as

different investors will have different views of what, if any, adjustment should be madc

{g) New business

The new business contribution ansing from reportcd new business premiums has been calculated using the same assumptions as used

in the EEV at the end of the financial year The value of contractual incremental premiums to existing business 1s treated as

nCwW

business in the year of the ncrement, rather than at the outset of the policy This approach betier refleets the way the Group manages

1ts business

The value of new business has been established at the end of the reporting period and has been calculated using actual
acqsition Losts

(h) Operating profit

Operating profit 1s determined as the increase in the embedded value over the year excluding market-related impacts such as the

cffects of economic assumpton chanpes and mvestment variances and grossed up for sharcholder tax
g g I

(1) Tax

The EEV includes the present salue of tax relief on hie assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis This calculation

takes into account all expense and income amourts projected for the in-foree business (including any cartied forward unuul
on LXpenses)

13ed rehefl

[n determining the market-consistent value an appropriate allowance 1s made to reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses

does not move hinearly with market movements
When calculating the value of new business, priority 1s gnen to relieving the cxpenses relating to that business

III. ASSUMPTIONS
(a) Economic assumptions
The principal economic assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December are set out below

Year Ended Year Fnded
3{ December 31 Docember
2012 201
Risk free rate 1.8% 2 0%
Inflation rate 2.5% 2 7%
Risk discount rate (net of tax) 4.9% 51%
Future myestment returns
— Gilts 1.8% 2 0%
— Equutics 4.8% 5 0%
— Unt linked funds
— Captal growth 1.2% 1 4%
— Dnvidend income 2.9% 2 9%
-~ Total 4.1% 4 3%
Expense inflauon 3 4% 3 5%
Annual Report and Accounts 2012 151




Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

III ASSUMPTIONS contrnued
(a) Economic assumptions contrnued
The risk free rate 1s set by reference to the yvield on 10 year gilts Other imestment returns are set by reference to the risk free rate

The inflation ratc 1s dernved from the impliait inflation in the valuauon of 10 vear index-hnked gilts: This rate 1s increascd to reflect
higher increases n earnings related expenses

(b) Experience assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best estimate basis They are revicwed rcgu!arl}

The persisiency assumpuons are derned from the Group’s own expurtence or, where insutheient data exasts, from external industry
eXpLrience

The expense assumptions clude allowance for both the costs charged by the rclevant third party administrators for acquisiuion and
maintenance, and the corporate costs incurred in respect of covered business The corporate costs have becn apportionced so that the
total maintenance costs represent the anticipated ongoing expenses, including systems desvelopment costs, which are expected to arise
1n future years in meeting the policy servicing requirements of the in-force business

Mortality and morbidity assumptions have been set by relcrence to the Group’s own experience, published industry data and the rates
sct by the Group’s reassurcrs

(c) Tax

The EEV result has been calculated allowing for tax and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and low
account The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up 15 21 3% (2011 22 2%} for UK hfe and pensions business, 12 5% (2011

12 5%) for lrish hfe and pensions business and 21 7% (2011 23 4%) for unit trust business Future tax has been determined assuming
a conunuation of the current tax legislation The reduction in tax rates for UK business reflects both the changes in tax rate enacted in
the year, and also the turther 2% reduction to which the government has committed in tuture years

IV, COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT

(a) Life business

Year Ended  Year Ended

31 December 3t December

Now 2012 201

£ Mulhon £ Mllion

New business contribution 1 208.9 182 5

Profit from existing business

Unw ind of discount rate 76.9 727
Experience varances 6.9 394
Operating assumpuon changes {1.7) 2H
Investment income 29 23
EEV operating profit 293.9 294 2
Investment return vanances 1395 (141 2)
Economic assumption Changes (3 5) 27
EEY profit before tax 4299 1557
Tax (89 5) (34 5)
Corporation tax rate change 14 7 376
EEV profit after tax 3551 158 8

Note T New business contribution after tax 1 £165 2 mullion (2011 £142 5 millien)
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(b) Unit Trust business

Year Ended  Yecar Ended
31 December 31 December
Nate 2012 b {3}

£ Million L Milhon

New business contribution 1 679 635
Profit from cxisting business

Unw ind of discount rate 191 185

Experience varances 23) (13)

Opcrating assumption changes (26) 33
[nvestment income 05 05
EEV operating profit 826 84 5
[nvestment return variances 509 (392 2)
Economuc assumption changes (02) 30
EEV profit before tax 1333 42 3
Tax (28 9) ©9)
Corporation tax rate change 69 129
EEV profit after tax 111.3 453

Note 1 Nuw business contributron after tax s £53 1 mslhon (2011 £48 7 million)

(c) Combined Life and Unit Trust business

Year Fnded  Year Ended
31 December 31 December

Note 2012 2011

£ Mallion £ Mdhon

New business contribution 1 276 8 246 0

Proht trom existing business

Unw ind of discount rate 96 0 912
Experience variances 46 381
Opcrating assumption changes (4 3) 06
Imvestment income 3.4 28
EEV operating profit 376.5 378 7
[nvestment rcturn variances 190.4 (180 4)
Economic assumption changes 3.7 (0 3)
EEV profit before tax 563.2 198 0
Tax (118.4) (4 4)
Carporation tax rate Change 21.6 505
EEV profit after tax 466.4 204 |

Note 1 New business contnibution after tax 1s £218 3 malbion (2011 £191 2 million)
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

V. COMPONENTS OF EEV PROFIT conunued

(d) Detailed analysis

In order to better explain the movement in capital flow s, the components ot the EEV profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
show n scparately betw een the mosement 1n 1ERS net assets and the present salue of the in-force business ("'VIF') in the table below

All figures are shown net of tax

Morvement
m [FRS  Movement Movement
Net Assets i VIF in EEV

New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
EX perlence Yariances
Operating assumption changes
Investment return
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes
Maiscellaneous
Corporation tax rate change

£ Millien £ Milien £ Million

(67.8)  286.1 2183
1603 (160.3) -

- 75.8 758
17.3 (9-4) 7.9
10 (4-4) (34)
28 - 2.8
104 1397 1501
(66) 3.5 Gn
(10 3) - (103)
- 21.6 216

EEV profit after tax

107 1 352.6 4597

The comparatne figures for 2011 are as follows

Moement

n [FRS Maoremunt Movcmont

Nct Assets m VI m EEV

L Milhon £ Midhon £ Millon

New business contribution (65 8) 256 9 1911
Profit from cxisting business 154 5 (154 5) —
Unwind of discount rate - 711 711
Experience variances 38 8 (6 8) 320
Operating assumption changes 21 (16) 05
Investment return 22 - 22
Investment return variances (132 (1284) (141 6)
Economic assumpution changes (4 9) 48 O 1)
Miscellancous 69 - €9
Corporation tax rate change - 505 505
EEV profit after tax 106 8 920 198 8
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The table below shows the estimated impact on the combined life and unit trust reported vahue of new business and LEV to changu; n
key assumptions The sensitivities are speaified by the EEV principles and reflect reasonably possible levels of change [n each case,

only the mdicated 1tem 1s varied relame to the restated values

Changen
European
Change 1n new business ¢ o 499
contribution Value
Notes Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax
¢ Midlon £ Milhon £ Million !
Value at 31 December 2012 276.8 2183 23363
100bp reduction n risk free rates, with corresponding change
fixed interest asset values 1 (19 (1 6) (29)
10% reductron 1in withdrawal rates 2 255 201 117 2
10% reduction in expenses 49 39 27 4
10% reduction in market value of equity assets 3 - - (219 4) |
5% reduction in mortality and morbidity 4 - - (L 1) |
100bp 1ncrease in equity expected returns 5 - - - '
100bp increase 1n assumed inflation 6 4 8) (3 8) (209) !

Note | This ts the kv econamic basis change sensitinaty The business model 15 relatinely insensitive 1o change in cconomic basis. Note that the sensitivity assumes a

carresponding change in all invistment returns but no change tnntlatton
Note 2 The 10% reduction 15 applied 1o the lapse rate Far instance, tf the lapse rate 15 8% then a 10% scnsunaty reduction would reflecta change 10 7 2%

Note 3 For the purposes of this required sensitnaty, all umit inked funds are assumed 1o be imsested in cquities: The actual mix of asscts varics and 1n recent vears the

proportion invested darectly 1o Uk amd overseas equitics has exeecded 70%
Note 4 Assumcs the benefit of lower experience is passed on to cleents and reassurers at the earhust opportunity

Note 5 Asamarket consistunt approach is used, equity expected returns only affiet the dernod discount rates and not the embedded value or contribution 1o profit from new

business
Notc 6 Assumud inflation 15 sct by reference to 10 year sndex hinked gilt yields

Change in

Luropean

Change in new business g 4.9

contribution Value

Pre-tax Post-tax Post-tax

£ Million £ Millon £ Midhon

100bp reduction m nisk discount rate 372 293 162 9

Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation, this scnsitivity shows the level of adjustment which would be.

required 1o reflect differing i estor views of risk
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Notes to the European Embedded Value Basis

continued

VI. RECONCILIATION OF IFRS AND EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND NET ASSETS

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
£ Million £' Milhon
IFRS profit before tax 2518 (20 1)*
Movement in hfe value of in-force and pohcyhelder tax 2010 196 4%
Movement in unit trust value of in-force 99 8§ 145
EEV profit before tax 5526 190 §
3l December 31 Dicembor
2012 2011
£ Milhon £ Malhon
IFRS net assets 7625 678 3
Less acquired value of in-force {43 2) (46 4)
Add deferred tax on acquired value of in-force 2.9 116
Add life value of in-force 1,223 6 950 2
Add umit trust value of in-force 3835 305 8
EEV net asscts 2,336 3 1,899 5

VII. RECONCILIATION OF LIFE COMPANY FREE ASSETS TO CONSOLIDATED GROUP EQUITY AND ANALYSIS OF

MOVEMENT IN FREE ASSETS

31 December 31 DDeec mber

2012 2011

£ Mallion i Malhon

Life company estimated free assets 155.7 122 3
Estimated required life compamy sohvency capital 43 8 43 4
Other subsidiaries, consolidation and IFRS adjustments 563.0 5126
IFRS net assets 762 5 678 3
31 December 31 December

2012 011

£ Million £ Million

Life company estimated free assets at | January 1223 1021
Imvestment in new business (64 4) (71 2)
Profit from cxisting business 120 8 108 5
Dunidends paid (250) (15 0)
Investment return 24 18
Movement in required sohency capital {0.4) 39
Life company estimated free assets at 31 December 1557 1223

* Those figures have been re presented to more appropriately reflect the nature of the tax provision for tax deductions on deemed disposals of unnt trust holdings

information 1s gnen m Mote 1 to these accounts
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Shareholder Information

ANALYSIS OF NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS

Analysis by Number of Shares Holders % Shares held Y
1 —-999 2,403 40 920,039 02
1,000-9,999 2,357 43 1 7,092,070 1 4
10,000 - 99,999 522 96 14,918,173 29
100,000 and aboc 180 33 483.900,865 955

5,462 1000 506,831,147 100 ¢

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Ex-dividend date for final dinvidend

Record date for final dinidend

Announcement of first quarter new business

Final date for receipt of Dividend Renvestment Plan mandates
Annual General Meeting

Payment date for final dividend

Announcement of [nterim Results and second quarter new business
Announcement of third quartur new business

10 April 2013

12 Apnl 2013

25 Apnl 2013

2 May 2013

21 May 2013

24 May 2013

31 July 2013

3i October 2013

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN (‘DRP’}

The Directors introduced a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (DRP) during 2012 If vou would prefor to recenve new shares instead of cash
dividends, please complete a Dinidend Reimbursement Plan (DRP) mandatc form, which 1s available from our Registrars,

Computershare Imvestor Services PLC Thewr contact details are on page 159

SHARE DEALING

A telephone share dealing servicc has becn established with the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, which provides
sharcholders with a simple way of buying or selhing St James’s Place plc shares on the London Stock Exchange [i you are interested 1n

this service telephone 0870 703 0084

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

If you would like to have access to shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General Mecting through

the internet rather than recenve them by post, please register at www etreeuk com/stjamesplace

An internct share dealing service 1s also available. Further informanion about this section can be obtained by logging on to

www computershare com/insestor/sharedealing

158 St James's Place ple

Repistered No 03183415




How to Contact Us and Advisers .

HOW TO CONTACT US

Registered Office

St James's Place House
1 Tetbury Road
Cirencester

GL7 1FP

Iel 01285640302
Fax 01285 640436
W W S]p co uk

Chairman
Charles Gregson
email charles gregson@s)p co uk

Chief Executive
David Bellamy
email david bellamy@syp co uk

Chief Finanaial Officer
Andrew Croft
email andrew croft@s)p co uk

Company Secretary
Hugh Gladman
email hugh gladman(@s)p co uk

Customer Service

Will Alterman

Tel 01285 878352

Fax 01285 878111

email will alterman@s)p co uk

Analyst Enquiries

Andrew Croft

Tel 01285878079

Fax 01285657208

emall andrew croft@s)p co uk

Media Enquiries
Tulchan Commumications Group
Tl 020 7353 4200
Fax 0207353 4201

email stjames'splace@tuichangroup com
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ADVISERS

Bankers

Bank of Scotland
150 Fountainbridge
Edinburgh

EH3 9PE

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
London

El4 5HP

The Royal Bank of Scotland
135 Blshopsgau_

London

EC2M 3UR

Brokers

JPMorgan Cazenove Limited
20 Moorgate

London

EC2A 6DA

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
2 King Edward Strect

London

ECIA IHQ

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
31 Great George Street

Bristol

BS1 5QD

Registrars & Transfer Office
Computershare Imvestor Services PLC
The Pavilions

Bndg\\ ater Road

Bristol

BS99 627

email web queries@computershare co uk
Tel 0870702 0197

LR R computershare com
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St. James’s Place Partnership Locations

Aberdeen

3 Quecns Gate
Abcrdecn
ABI5S5YL

Hugh Morton
0122 420 2400

Belfast

St James’s Place House
14 Cromac Place
Beltast

BT7 2]B

Gerry Quinn
Tel 028 9072 6500

Bristol

Beuech House
Brotherswaood Court
Great Park Road
Bradley Stoke
Bristol

BS32 4QW

George Hills
Tel 01454 618700

City

St James’s Place House
3 Moorgate Place
London

EC2R 6EA

Stmon Coil
Tel 020 7638 2400

Edinburgh

Mclhille House

18 - 22 Melville Street
Edinburgh

EH3 7NS

Hugh Morton
Tel 0131 4599200
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Elstree

St James's Place House
5 Qaks Court
Warwick Road
Borehamwood

Herts

WDé 1GS

Mark Newman
Tel 0208207 4000

Glasgow

Minersa House

131 - 133 Minerva Street
Glasgow

G3 8LE

Hugh Morton
Tel 0141 304 1700

Hamlton Place
11 Hamalton Place
Mayfair

London

W1] 7DR

Nick Brett
Tl 0207495 1771

Kingsway
3rd Floor
York House
23 Kingsway
l.ondon
WC2B 6}

Nigel Preston
Tl 0207333 1900

Leeds

2nd Floor
Chancellor Court
The Calls

Leeds

1.S2 7EH

Richard Balmforth
Tel 0113 244 4054

Liverpool

5th Floor
Martins Bu:ldlng
Water Street
Liverpool

L2 35X

Matt Quinn
Tel 0151 224 8700

Manchester

7th Floor

Su nllght House
Little Quan Street
Manchester

M3 3]Z

Matt Quinn
Tl 0161 834 9480

Newbury
Montague Court
London Road
Newbury

Berks

RG14 1L

Chris Faerber
Tel 01635582424

Newcastle

One Inmity Gardens
Broad Chare

New castle upon Tyne
NE1 2HF

Phihp Pringle
Tel 0191 260 5373

Nottingham

St James's Place House
Castle Quay

Castle Boulevard
Nottingham

NG7 IFW

Richard Thompson
Tel 0115924 2899

Piccadilly
117 Piccadilly
London

Wwi1j 7ju

Damian Bradbury
Tel 020 7399 6889

Solent

St James's Place House
1480 Parkway

Solcnt Business Park
Whitley

Farcham

Hants

PO15 7AF

Jason Flood
Tel 01489 881400

Sohhull
St James’s Place House
Central Boutesard

Blythe Valley Business Park

Shirley
Solihull

B%0 8AR

Sean McKillop
Tel 0121 7336733

Westerham
1st Floor
The Crown
London Road
Westcrham
Kent

TNI16 1D]

Nick Froggatt
Tel 01959 561 606

Witham

Rosh n House

16 Newland Street
Witham

Essex

CMS 2AQ

Paolo Payne
Tel 01376 501947
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